CHINESE PEOPLE

HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
PbREKRBIRZA G

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(REFEAMA L 2 BEREFELRF])
(Stock Code B 13135 : 681)

2020

ANNUAL REPORT
(FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020)
£ 3

(BE2020412H31H 1L ALEA)




R R B SR 35 0 40 [

Distribution of business in China

(B, Z2020F 12 H31H At 31 December 2020)

¢

Shaanxi Province

2

E)

o
Wi

Hubei Province

[
milE

Sichuan Province

Chongqlng ity

o
s

Hunan Province

BEME

Guizhou Province

Yunnan Province

EFEAREAE
Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous
Region

Chonggqing City
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3 piped gas projects, lncludlng Tongnan.
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1 cylinder gas and 4 FMCG and food ingredients supply projects in Chongging.
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Fujian Province
BEE ® Piped gas EiEMRR
38 piped gas projects, which covers 8 regions (total 9 regions) in
FUJlan Province including Zhangzhou; Longyan; Sanming; Nanping;

ggde and Fuzhou etc.
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Guizhou Province
BME ©Piped gas EEMR / Cylinder gas LR
13 cylinder gas projects, including Guizhou; Changshun; Southwest Panva and Zunyi Panva.
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1 plped gas project in Zhenfeng county.
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Hebei Province
SR ® Cylinder gas fERME
1 cylinder gas project in Rengiu.
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Henan Province i
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1 cylinder gas project in Zhongmu County, Zhengzhou.
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Gas distribution project
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1 cylinder gas project in Jingzhou.
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Hunan Province
A @ Cylinder gas fERME
8 cylinder gas projects including Hunan and Xupu.
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Jilin Province
EHE .GasM
as project in Yanbian.
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Shaanxi Province
AL € Piped gas BIEER / Cylinder gas MR, Gas distribution $AE 5 85
3 piped gas projects, including Yanliang and Fuping.
3EEERRER WABERKREF ©
1 cylinder gas project, 1 gas distribution project.
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Sichuan Province

miE ® Piped gas EIEHRE  Cylinder gas SEEMA
5 piped gas projects, including Mianzhu; Yanting; Hanwang and Beichuan.
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Tianjin City

KER ® Cylinder gas 2 #%. FMCG and food ingredients supply BFH AFERNE 15
5 cylinder gas projects in Tianjin.
5 {EiER SR IE B (LA RIET ©
1 FMCG and food ingredients supply project in Tianjin.
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Yunnan Province
E@E ® Cylinder gas T
17 cylinder gas projects, including Yunnan; Yunnan Panva;

Baoshan Panva and Yunnan Jiehua. X
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Guangdong Province
BXRE © Cylinder gas MR
1 cylinder gas project in Dongguan.
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Chairman’s Statement
EHFHRE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Chinese
People Holdings Company Limited (the “"Company”) and all of
its subsidiaries (collectively the “"Group” or “we"”), | am pleased
to present the Group’s annual report for the nine months ended
31 December 2020 (the “9 Months Reporting Period”) to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)").

ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND ANNUAL
RESULTS

In 2020, the domestic GDP reached approximately RMB101.60
trillion, representing a growth of 2.3%. China experienced
continuous and steady recovery of its economy, and took the lead in
realizing positive growth among major economies in the world, with
the economic aggregate reaching a new level of RMB one hundred
billion.

According to public information from the China Development
and Reform Commission (“NDRC"”) and the National Bureau of
Statistic: in 2020, the natural gas production was 188.85 billion
m3, representing an increase of 9.8% over last year and the same
growth rate as that of last year. The production has increased
by more than 10 billion m*® for four consecutive years; natural
gas imports were 100 million tons, representing an increase of
5.3%; natural gas apparent consumption was 325.91 billion m3,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 7.5%. In 2020,
China’s LPG production was 44.48 million tons, representing a year-
on-year increase of 7.6%; LPG imports were 19.66 million tons,
representing a year-on-year increase of 4.62%; the total retail sales
of social consumer goods were approximately RMB39,198.1 billion,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 3.9%.

With the joint efforts of the management and all employees, the
Group recorded the piped gas sales of 220.43 million m* for the 9
Months Reporting Period, representing a decrease of 22.47% as
compared to twelve months ended 31 March 2020 (the “Previous
Year”); the cylinder gas sales of 139,737 tons, representing a
decrease of 17.13% as compared to the Previous Year.

The annual revenue for the 9 Months Reporting Period was
approximately RMB1.748 billion, representing a decrease of
21.73% as compared to the Previous Year. Profit for the 9 Months
Reporting Period was RMB145 million, as compared to the profit of
approximately RMB217 million as of the Previous Year. The profit was
mainly derived from pied gas transmission and distribution business
and cylinder gas supply business.

Increase/decrease of projects

In this financial year, there was 1 new cylinder gas project of the
Group.
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FINANCIAL POSITION

During the 9 Months Reporting Period, by ensuring the stability of
the financial position, the Group carefully utilises fund for reasonable
investment and seizes the opportunity of business development. As
at 31 December 2020, the consolidated debt-to-capitalisation ratio
of the Group, representing the ratio of total borrowings to total
borrowings and equity attributable to owners of the Company, was
5.10% (the Previous Year: 3.69%).

REVIEW AND PROSPECT OF THE
INDUSTRY

Piped gas business

2020 was destined to be an extraordinary year. Although significant
fluctuations in the national economy due to the epidemic, the piped
gas business of the Group registered a stable performance with
good momentum for growth amidst the impact of the epidemic,
and stood erectly in the turmoil of the epidemic in a way featuring
low posture and stabilizing income. Facing the epidemic, the Group
has achieved an outstanding performance of “ensuring gas”,
“maintaining supply” and “improving people’s livelihood” throughout
the 9 months Reporting Period. The corresponding policies issued
by the state have also brought substantial benefits to the piped gas
business of the Group. 2020 is the final year of the “13th Five-Year
Plan” and also the planning year for the “14th Five-Year Plan”. The
recent years' development in China has also shown the needs of the
national economy for the environment and new energy. The natural
gas industry will steadily promote the high-quality development of
the industry pursuant to the new energy security strategy of “Four
Revolutions, One Cooperation”. The Group will focus on ensuring the
safety, efficiency and continuity of gas consumption, and continue to
“ensure gas”, “maintain supply” and “improve people’s livelihood” in
ways that actively expand new markets for gas business.

Cylinder gas business

The cylinder gas is the other major gas supply method besides
pipeline transmission. The convenient and flexible supply method
also makes cylinder gas business become an important business of
the Group. With the gradual strengthening of the coal-to-gas policy
in recent years and the changes in the energy consumption structure
in China, the cylinder gas business also has room for further growth
in the clean energy consumption market. Going forward, the Group
will seize market opportunities, expand market scale and increase
the market coverage of cylinder gas in a safer and more efficient
way, effectively supplementing the shortcomings of piped gas, and
accommodating to the development featuring clean environment
and low carbon. In the future, confronting the opportunities and
challenges brought by the energy reform, the Group will remain true
to its original aspiration and move forward steadily.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEERE

REVIEW AND PROSPECT OF THE
|NDUSTRY (Continued)

Gas distribution Business

In 2020, under the vigorous promotion of a series of policy measures
such as deepening the supply-side structural reform of the energy
and giving priority to the development of non-fossil energy,
China saw that its clean energy continued to develop rapidly, the
proportion of clean energy was further increased, and the energy
structure continued to be optimized. During the epidemic, we
actively promoted the resumption of work and production and
production improvement. The sizable industrial energy production
increased steadily throughout the year, which effectively guaranteed
energy supply and safety. China made greater efforts in the
environmental rectification, and the continuous promotion and
implementation of policies such as “Coal to Gas “also contributed
to expanding demand for clean energy in China. In the future, in
terms of the gas distribution business, the Group will keep up with
market demand and industry opportunities, steadily consolidate the
important links between the supply and demand of the natural gas
distribution industry, create new development opportunities, achieve
complementary advantages, thus realising win-win results and
mutual benefit, so as to elevate us to a new level.

The FMCG supply business

As affected by the epidemic, the total retail sales of social consumer
goods recorded a year-on-year decrease in the first half of the year,
which major affect to the FMCG supply business. With the greater
national efforts to control the epidemic and the implementation
of “Six Stabilities” and “Six Guarantees” related policies together
with the effects of various consumer promotion policies, the
consumer market was also recovered. The Group’'s FMCG supply
business is operated through the chain of community supermarket
and convenience stores. Based on the characteristics of different
consumer groups, it integrates the Internet to develop online and
offline services, promoting the transformation and upgrading of
physical retail.
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REVIEW AND PROSPECT OF THE
|NDUSTRY (Continued)

Food ingredients supply business

In recent years, the continuous high growth of the catering industry
in China has directly driven the strong development of the upstream
food supply chain. The consumption upgrading, the thrived logistics
industry, and the advancement of information technology have all
contributed to the development momentum of the catering supply
chain. The Group applies the latest technologies such as Internet
5G and Beidou positioning to enhance its operation efficiency,
improve and upgrade the systematic process of the fresh produce
distribution system, thus making customers feel at ease, satisfied and
comfortable. In the future, the Group will expand the development
efficiency of new business formats, and provide high-quality fresh
produce and efficient delivery processes.

Looking forward, the Group will maintain its focus on the
development in the field of people’s livelihood, make full use of
national policies, seize market opportunities, and tap the potential
of industrial and commercial customers while strengthening the
development of residential household customer connection. The
Group will fully leverage the Internet technology to optimize cylinder
gas business model, providing customers with convenient and
efficient services and enhancing market competitiveness. The Group
will gradually boost the FMCG and food ingredients supply business
through online and offline operations, utilise Internet technology to
expand the scope and increase the income of the FMCG and food
ingredients supply business, achieving diversification in the Group’s
income and creating higher benefits for shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | hereby gratefully acknowledge the staunch
support of all Shareholders and the community over the 9 Months
Reporting Period.

Dr. Mo Shikang
Chairman

Beijing, 23 April 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFWES N

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 (the “9 Months
Reporting Period”), under the leadership of the directors
(“Director(s)”) and management of the Company, all of our staff
executed the development strategies of the Group seriously, thus
successfully achieving the business goals for the 9 Months Reporting
Period.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the 9 Months Reporting Period, revenue from operations of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB1,748 million (the
Previous Year: RMB2,233 million), while profit for the 9 Months
Reporting Period was approximately RMB145 million (the Previous
Year: RMB217 million). Basic earnings per share for the 9 Months
Reporting Period was RMB1.21 cents (the Previous Year: RMB2.04
cents). The overall gross profit margin of the Group for the 9
Months Reporting Period was approximately 16.40% (the Previous
Year: 17.14%), representing a decrease of 0.74 percentage point
(“ppt”) as compared with the Previous Year. The main reason for the
decrease in gross profit margin was that the proportion of revenue
from gas distribution business with lower gross profit increased
compared with the Previous Year, while the proportion of revenue
from piped gas transmission and distribution business and cylinder
gas supply business with higher gross profit declined.

Piped gas transmission and distribution business

The piped gas transmission and distribution business mainly
relies on the gas pipeline which were built by the Group to
transport flammable gas fuels to end-users. The Group's piped gas
transmission and distribution business is categorised into piped gas
connection and piped gas sales. Currently, natural gas is the main
gas supply of the Group's piped gas transmission and distribution
business. As a clean energy, natural gas can help to improve the
environmental pollution problem and simultaneously it has the
advantages of safety, high unit heat value and low price. It has
become an important development direction of international clean
energy.

Piped gas transmission and distribution business is our main business
and our main source of income. During the 9 Months Reporting
Period, revenue of approximately RMB545 million (the Previous Year:
RMB731 million) was recorded from our piped gas transmission
and distribution business. The revenue accounted for approximately
31.19% (the Previous Year: 32.72%) of our total revenue. The
overall gross profit margin of piped gas transmission and distribution
business for the 9 Months Reporting Period was approximately
23.27% (the Previous Year: 25.45%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUS'NESS REVl EW (Continued)

Piped gas transmission and distribution business (Continued)

Piped gas connection

During the 9 Months Reporting Period, revenue from piped gas
connection was approximately RMB102 million (the Previous Year:
RMB147 million) and revenue from piped gas connection represented
approximately 18.72% (the Previous Year: 20.06%) of the total
revenue of the piped gas business. The gross profit margin of
piped gas connection fee for the 9 Months Reporting Period was
approximately 59.36% (the Previous Year: 56.01%). During the 9
Months Reporting Period, our subsidiary companies had an addition
of 34,489 units of residential household customers and 733 units
of commercial and industrial customers, respectively. At the end of
the 9 Months Reporting Period, our subsidiary companies had an
accumulated number of connected residential household customers
and commercial and industrial customers of 470,049 units and 9,965
units respectively, representing a growth of approximately 7.92%
and 7.94% over the Previous Year, respectively. The decrease in
connection revenue was caused by the slowdown in demand from
industrial and commercial users and adjustments in connection
charges for residential users. The overall connection rate of the
Group's piped gas projects continues to rise, it is expected that the
number of newly connected residential household customers will
increase steadily, bringing the Group a steady increase in piped gas
connection income.

Piped gas sales

During the 9 Months Reporting Period, revenue from piped gas
sales was approximately RMB443 million (the Previous Year:
RMB584 million) and revenue from piped gas sales accounted for
approximately 81.28% (the Previous Year: 79.94%) of the total
revenue from the piped gas business. The gross profit margin of
piped gas sales was approximately 14.95% (the Previous Year:
17.79%). During the 9 Months Reporting Period, our sales volume of
piped gas from subsidiary companies was 220.43 million m*, among
the total sales, 74.75 million m3 (the Previous Year: 112.25 million
m?3) were sold to residential household customers; 145.68 million m?3
(the Previous Year: 172.06 million m3) were sold to commercial and
industrial customers. The main reason of decrease in revenue due to
the 9 Months Reporting Period is less than a year and the impact of
the market price of gas. The piped gas sales business of the Group
is stable, the newly added piped gas connected commercial and
industry customers in the previous years keep positive effect to the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THREWRS N

BUS'NESS RE\/l EW (Continued)

Cylinder gas supply business

Cylinder gas business is another major business of the Group.
Currently, the Group’s cylinder gas business is mainly the sales of
liguefied natural gas (LNG), liquefied petroleum gas (LPG), and
liquefied dimethyl ether (DME). During the 9 Months Reporting
Period, while maintaining established customers, we actively
developed new users and expanded the sales market.

For the 9 Months Reporting Period, our subsidiary companies sold
139,737 tons of cylinder gas (the Previous Year: 167,374 tons) and
the revenue was approximately RMB576 million (the Previous Year:
RMB806 million). During the 9 Months Reporting Period, revenue
from cylinder gas business accounted for approximately 32.95%
(the Previous Year: 36.08%) of our total revenue. The gross profit
margin of cylinder gas supply business was approximately 24.60%
(the Previous Year: 22.16%). During the 9 Months Reporting Period,
the sale volume decreased due to the fact of the 9 Months Reporting
Period is less than a year. The growth trend in sale volume was
generally contributed by the newly added customers.

Gas distribution business

During the 9 Months Reporting Period, our subsidiary companies
in the gas distribution business sold a total of 193,068 tons of
gas (the Previous Year: 170,438 tons), and realized a total revenue
of approximately RMB540 million (the Previous Year: RMB552
million). During the 9 Months Reporting Period compared with the
Previous Year, gas sales volume increased by approximately 13.28%,
revenue decreased by approximately 2.17%, and gross profit
margin decreased by approximately 0.32 percentage points. During
the 9 Months Reporting Period, gas distribution business revenue
accounted for approximately 30.91% of our total revenue (the
Previous Year: 24.74%). The gross profit margin of gas distribution
business was approximately 0.77% (the Previous Year: 1.09%). As
the Group continued to develop and serve customers, sales volume
increased, but due to the impact of gas market conditions, market
prices generally fell, resulting in a decline in revenue and gross profit
margin.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUS'NESS REVl EW (Continued)

Fast Moving Consumer Goods (“FMCG") and food ingredients
supply business

The FMCG and food ingredients supply business is the new
business vigorously developed by the Group in recent years. The
food ingredients supply is mainly a one-stop service providing
to commercial consumers through the combination of online
and offline operations, supplying fruits and vegetables, fresh
produce, seasoning, dry foods and oil and other ingredients. The
supply of FMCG is mainly comprised of the chain of community
supermarket and convenience stores. The consumer group targeted
by the community supermarket is mainly the residents community
population. The community supermarket provides convenient
goods and services for the fixed community residents through the
combination of online and offline operations; the convenience stores
chain is aimed at the consumer group which is a mobile population,
and provides goods and services that are convenient for the mobile
population by selling FMCG.

For the 9 Months Reporting Period, the Group’'s FMCG and food
ingredients supply business realised revenue of approximately
RMB86.49 million (the Previous Year: RMB144.00 million),
accounting for approximately 4.95% (the Previous Year: 6.46%)
of our total revenue. We have been optimizing various sections
under FMCG and food ingredients supply business including cost
controlling, improving gross profit, the loss has been reduced
gradually.

Prior Year Adjustments

One of the equity instruments at FVTOCI (the “Investment”) of the
Group, being an investee which is principally engaged in the business
of manufacture and sales of glass bottles in the PRC, had been fully
impaired many years prior to the initial application of HKFRS 9. The
full impairment loss could not be reversed by adjusting the carrying
amount of such equity investment prior to the adoption of HKFRS 9
even though the investee's operations had improved substantially in
the years following when the full impairment loss was recognised by
the Group. As a result of it, at the time of the initial application of
HKFRS 9 and thereafter, the Investment continued to be carried in
the consolidated financial statements at nil carrying amounts, instead
of at its fair values at the respective dates.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THREWRS N

BUS'NESS RE\/l EW (Continued)

Prior Year Adjustments (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the 9 months
Reporting Period in respect of the Investment, several meetings were
held including with the members of the audit committee, the Board
has approved and the directors of the Company has carried out
and accounted for the Investment in accordance with Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors”. In addition, the Group has engaged an
independent professional valuer to carry out the valuations of the
Investment at the end of the reporting periods for the current and
prior period/years.

Accordingly, the Group has made prior year adjustments to re-
measure such fair values of the Investment. More information is set
out in the note 51 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

Impairment losses under the expected credit loss model, net of
reversal

Impairment losses under the expected credit loss model, net of
reversal, amounted to income approximately RMB5,293,000 (the
Previous Year: loss RMB2,538,000), representing an increase
approximately RMB7,831,000. The reason was mainly attributable to
increase in reversal.

Other Gains and Losses

Other gains and losses for the 9 Months Reporting Period
amounted to loss approximately RMB4,900,000 (the Previous Year:
loss RMB18,446,000), represented a decrease of approximately
RMB13,546,000. Such decrease was mainly due to the significant
decrease of impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill and
significant increase of gain on disposal of property, plant equipment
during the 9 Months Reporting Period as compared to the Previous
Year.

Other Income

Other income for the 9 Months Reporting Period amounted to
approximately RMB38,446,000 (the Previous Year: RMB26,921,000),
represented an increase of approximately RMB11,525,000. Such
increase was mainly due to the increase of sales of gas appliances
and incentive subsidies which is related to the Group’s operations by
the government authorities in PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUS'NESS REV'EW (Continued)

Finance Costs

Finance costs for the 9 Months Reporting Period amounted to
approximately RMB7,493,000 (the Previous Year: RMB11,440,000),
represented a decrease of approximately RMB3,947,000. Such
decrease was mainly due to the decrease of interest on borrowings as
a result of repayment of borrowing during the 9 Months Reporting
Period.

Selling and Distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses for the 9 Months Reporting
Period amounted to approximately RMB110,674,000 (the Previous
Year: RMB147,316,000), representing a decrease of approximately
RMB36,642,000, which was mainly attributable to the decrease in
revenue.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for the 9 Months Reporting Period
amounted to approximately RMB88,938,000 (the Previous Year:
RMB122,414,000), representing a decrease of approximately
RMB33,476,000, which was mainly due to the decrease in staff costs,
depreciation and cost of inventories.

Share of Results of Associates

Share of results of the associates for the 9 Months Reporting
Period amounted to approximately RMB16,401,000 (the Previous
Year: RMB26,336,000), represented a decrease of approximately
RMB9,935,000. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the
decrease in revenue generated by the Company’s associates.

Share of Results of Joint Ventures

Share of results of joint ventures for the 9 Months Reporting
Period amounted to approximately RMB33,993,000 (the Previous
Year: RMB108,367,000), represented a decrease of approximately
RMB74,374,000. Such decrease was mainly due to the significant
increase of impairment loss recognised in respect of trade receivables
by the Company’s joint ventures and the decline in connection
revenue as well.
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THREWRS N

BUS'NESS REVl EW (Continued)

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses for the 9 Months Reporting Period amounted to
approximately RMB24,057,000 (the Previous Year: RMB25,644,000),
represented a decrease of approximately RMB1,587,000. Such
decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue.

Increase/decrease of projects during the 9 Months Reporting
Period

Details of increased projects is set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

There was no decrease of project during the 9 Months Reporting
Period.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2020, the consolidated financial position of the
Group is as follows:

Currently, the sources of the operating and capital expenditure of
the Group are operating cash flow, internal current capital, and bank
borrowings. The Group has sufficient funds to meet future capital
expenditures and operational needs.

Borrowing structure

At 31 December 2020, the total borrowings of the Group were
approximately RMB99,416,000 (the Previous Year: RMB131,700,000),
which comprised domestic bank borrowings denominated in RMB of
the project companies in China. Bank borrowings (in which interest
is calculated by reference to the interest rate announced by the
People’s Bank of China plus certain basis points) are mainly applied
to gas pipelines construction, as general working capital and for
operating expenses. Apart from the borrowings of approximately
RMB79,325,000 (the Previous Year: RMB113,700,000) which were
secured by certain assets with carrying amount of approximately
RMB96,668,000 (the Previous Year: RMB233,175,000), others were
unsecured. Short-term borrowings amounted to approximately
RMB77,500,000 (the Previous Year: RMB66,700,000), while others
were long-term borrowings due after one year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Capital structure

The long-term capital of the Group comprised equity attributable to
owners and borrowings, which was confirmed by the sound debt-to-
capitalisation ratio.

Foreign exchange risk

As all of our operations are in China and substantially all of its
revenue and expenses are denominated in Renminbi, there was no
significant foreign exchange risk in its operation. We currently do not
have foreign currency hedging policy but monitor the market trends
of exchange rates closely, and adopt appropriate measures when
necessary.

Contingent liabilities

Details of contingent liabilities is set out in note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Save as disclosed, as at 31 December 2020, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Employees

As at 31 December 2020, we had approximately 5,100 employees
(including subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures), most of
them were resided in Mainland China. The employees’ salaries are
determined from time to time with reference to their duties and
responsibilities, business performance of the Group and profitability
and market conditions. In addition to pension funds, individual
employees may be granted discretionary bonus and share options as
rewards for their outstanding performance.

Corporate Environmental and Social Responsibility

We adhere to pursue long-term sustainable development in
the communities in which our business and operations located.
We understand the importance of the views and interests of its
stakeholders (such as shareholders, regulators, employees and the
public) when making business decisions. We will continue to advance
in corporate governance, energy conservation, remuneration of
employees, general social welfare and etc.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THREWRS N

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Social Environment Protection

As a responsible clean energy distributor, we are committed to the
promotion and the use of clean energy in order to minimise the
environmental damage caused by energy demand for economic
development. Through the construction of urban-gas distribution
network, we encourage C/I customers and residential households to
replace high polluting coal and oil with clean energy, and vigorously
promote the “Coal to Gas" project. Coal-fired boilers are replaced by
natural gas boilers to reduce pollutant emission.

Cooperate to Fight the Epidemic

At the beginning of 2020, the COVID-19 pneumonia epidemic broke
out with a grim situation of epidemic prevention and control. As
an enterprise caring people’s livelihood, the Group has proactively
responded to and coordinated with the society to fight the
epidemic since the outbreak, and therefore committed to the social
responsibility of listed companies.

In order to cooperate in the prevention and control of the epidemic,
the Group has printed and distributed documents such as the
“Notice on Doing a Good Job in the Prevention and Control for the
COVID-19 Pneumonia Epidemic”, and made timely arrangements
for the prevention and control for the epidemic with specified and
unified operational instructions. During the epidemic, we purchased
masks, disinfectant, gloves and other protective materials in a timely
manner through various channels, carefully counted and dispatched
the materials, and distributed them everyday according to the
demands of different on-the-job personnel and posts, and employees
were required to wear masks and take temperature everyday. Staff
are arranged to be on duty to sterilise the business halls, stores,
offices, canteens, gas distribution stations and other places everyday.
All of these steps shall not be skipped for everyone of them.

In spite of achieving triumphant in the battle of epidemic prevention
and control, ensuring supply is significant. Thus, the Group strives
to ensure the safe and stable operation of gas fuel. We have
strengthened emergency duty and safety inspection, so as to protect
the safety of gas fuel facilities. The dispatch centre carries out 24-
hour remote monitoring to the key gas fuel facilities through the
system, performs all-weather and full-coverage patrol inspection to
the gas supply districts, commercial customers, industrial customers
and gas pipelines, and ensures the safe and stable operation of the
gas pipeline network. On the premise of vigilantly exercising the
preventive and control measures against epidemic diseases, frontline
staff members such as emergency rescue, maintenance and business
are always on their positions everyday, aiming to provide services to
the customers.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) BT 75 B Bl ()

Cooperate to Fight the Epidemic (Continued) HEE (&)

In order to reduce the spread of virus caused by human contact BRLVAANEBEBERNFRSERE RES I
and protect the health of our employees and customers, the Group APHEE AEERNEETREHZEHEN
temporarily suspended the on-site meter reading service during the FFIPERRE ASNAEENE BAMER
epidemic prevention and control period. In the meantime, the Group RRETESEETFPBE RE BAPIFFE
intensified its promotional efforts in guiding customers to pay and g X 7B

recharge the credit through various platforms such as WeChat official

account, thus encouraging customers to make contactless recharge.

PROSPECTS AND OQUTLOOK AI=EL

Despite the ongoing COVID-19 epidemic and the political and AR EENERKE BB NARIKEH B
economic situation remaining severe and complex, but the FPRAARHERTERNEAEEENE - X
fundamentals for the sustained and stable development of China's HAXARRSEERRENEZEMHNEL -
natural gas have not changed, and the factors and conditions

that support the development of high-quality natural gas maintain

increasing.
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The “13th Five-Year Plan” period witnessed the complex and [T=h] Hf - ERBUeKBEREEMEZE ¥
changing political and economic situation in the world, and rising PN E HRELTHRBR 202008 E 2K F
deglobalization trade protectionism, which was worsened by BN BHAZBEME TE— B2 BXAR
the global outbreak of COVID-19 in 2020. However, as a global EREMA A M HEABERNERTE
commodity, natural gas remained an overall loose supply pattern. (TR R FREBBERFEBELBRAR
During the “14th Five-Year Plan” period, China will be committed BEEKARETELR — | WEEBIEZ TR
to the strategic goal of “Gradually Developing Natural Gas as one of FRHXAREFNSIERRILEM []IB] X
Major Energy Sources of China”, and be endeavor the deployment  {R|SHEEE HEHRERXAGSLE2HE &
of various decisions made by the Party Central Committee on the RZ2RE BAERORARGERERR -
natural gas industry, as well as the implementation of related policies

including “Six Stabilities” and “Six Guarantees”. It will also continue

to promote the development of high-quality natural gas, and build

a comprehensive natural gas security system with safe, stable, and

coordinated development.

However, the Group still faces competition caused by direct supply A AREEDEEG EFREAE - BRERHE
to customers by upstream gas companies and alternative energy  ERAIEP B RT - NE B T HEEMNEK
suppliers. The Group has formulates corresponding strategies to [ Bex FE S SR - FEBR T 2B A E ) R AR A B
response to business risks. While improving operational productivity AR BMRERNRETETERFEELE
and cost-effectiveness, we will also remain cautious in capital WHFBEIWEEESR UEPENRARKER
investment and maintain strong credit monitoring to minimize the BE-BAMAIEEZINMAUMALE BREL
risk of customer default. Although gas sales have been hit by the XELREEE®R BEHARESSHER.
COVID-19, business is expected to recover as the industrial output

returns to the normal level in the future.
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PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

Piped gas business

2020 marked the most extraordinary year in Chinese history. Facing
the severe and complex domestic and foreign environment, especially
the severe impact of the COVID-19 epidemic, through the joint
efforts of the whole country, China has taken the lead in controlling
the epidemic, resuming work and production, and achieving positive
economic growth. Despite the above, the COVID-19 outbreak had
a significant impact on economic and social growth and energy
development of China. The natural gas demand registered a
significant slowdown.

Throughout the year of 2020, natural gas consumption has
maintained a positive growth, industrial gas consumption has
gradually recovered from a negative growth to the same level of
the corresponding period in 2019, and urban gas consumption
has maintained a steady growth. Facing the continuous impact
of the COVID-19 epidemic, although China’s natural gas industry
confronted challenges, the basic conditions and supporting factors
that promote the coordinated and stable development of the natural
gas industry have not changed, and the overall tone of the sustained
and steady development of natural gas industry remains unchanged.
In respect of the natural gas industry, the “Three-Year Action Plan
to Win the Blue Sky Defense War"” and the new version of the
"Catalogue of Pricing by the Central Government” etc. successively
issued by the State Council and the NDRC have all brought strategic
opportunities to the natural gas industry of China. According to
the reformative thinking of “controlling the middle and easing the
two ends” for natural gas price, the reform progress of natural gas
marketisation will be immediately started and liberated the market,
which will provide more room for the development of natural gas
industry. In light of this, China’s natural gas industry still has a good
development momentum in the future. The Group will make full use
of policy advantages and the healthy development environment of
the natural gas industry, maintain existing users, develop new users,
and actively expand value-added businesses, thus steadily further
promoting the development of piped gas business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

Cylinder gas business

Cylinder gas is a clean, efficient and convenient fuel. As one of the
urban gas sources, it has played a pivotal role in optimizing the
structure of urban civil fuels, and has achieved obvious economic,
social and environmental benefits. Due to the outbreak of the
pandemic in 2020, various industries have also been affected to
varying degrees. With the resumption of work and production,
economic benefits of China are gradually on track of recovery. In
recent years, various “Coal to Gas” policies issued by the state
have greatly improved the market development environment and
prospects of cylinder gas.

In terms of the cylinder gas business, the Group has been committed
to the development concept of safety and efficiency, and seeking
steady expansion for its market scale in combination with relevant
national policies. We will continue to develop, actively explore new
development models, further enhance the scale and management
level of the cylinder gas business, and study the application of
emerging technologies in the cylinder business. While providing
customers with better services, we will actively explore new markets
to expand the Group's market share in the cylinder gas market, thus
creating greater revenue for the Group.

Gas distribution business

Recent years witness consistent national promotion of environmental
protection policies such as “Coal to Gas” for environmental
governance and increasingly wider and deeper understanding of
gas in the market, coupled with the replacement of traditional coal
with gas as fuel having been increasingly recognised and accepted
in terms of economy and cleanliness, which has led to a continuous
increase both in the supply and demand of gas market in China. As
both supply and demand are booming, the gas industry has formed
a complete industrial chain. Under such environment, the Group has
also participated in the gas distribution in the gas circulation field,
and conducted gas distribution business, forming a certain scale
of business. In the future, the Group will seize the development
opportunities of the gas industry and strive to continuously improve
the sales volume and revenue of the gas distribution business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THREWRS N

PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

FMCG and Food Ingredients Supply Business

In terms of FMCG supply, the Group will further optimize the
existing management information system for FMCG supply business,
improve operation efficiency, make full use of Internet technology,
to provide users with more convenient services and high-quality
food. Besides, the Group strictly supervise every link of FMCG supply,
to make our food safer and fresher. The further improvement of
online consumption during the pandemic has helped to define the
development trend of the FMCG supply chain. Guided by national
favorable policies, the Group will gradually expand the development
of the FMCG supply chain business for large consumer group in
China.

In addition, the food ingredients supply business of the Group mainly
includes chain community supermarket and chain convenience store.
It utilizes the efficiency and easy access of Internet to improve its
own services, and strengthens its own brand building through rich
resources of big data. Supermarkets and convenience stores integrate
consumer groups of community residents and mobile population,
fully tap market demand, enrich product supplies, improve sales
methods, and enhance service quality. Since the outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic, while responding to the government’s call to
ensure supply, quality, and price, we have actively expanded online
our business and strived to minimise the impact of the pandemic.
With the gradual stabilisation of the pandemic and the recovery
of the consumer market, the Group will gradually expand its
food ingredients supply business in the future and create a more
competitive brand.

Mr. Fan Fangyi
Managing Director and Executive Director

Beijing, 23 April 2021
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Biography of Directors
EREZBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR HITES

Dr. Mo Shikang SEELE

Chairman of the Board ESEXFE
Aged 63 6375%
Director since 30 April 2004 B2004F4A30B EHITES
Chairman since 1 August 2013 B2013F8 A1 HIER
Term of office: 4 September 2019 (re-elected) to 2022 AGM £HI: 2019F9A48 (EFE) =
022 RRIBFRE
Holds shares of our Company, details of which was disclosed in the BERMAGRGD FEEREFHR I EFTTR
Report of the Directors under this annual report EHA
£
S
Other positions held within our Group: REMEBAMETHE BN : " 5%
e chairman of Nomination Committee e ERZBE®IXR é m
e member of Remuneration Committee s ¥HMEZEEKE 2
e chairman of the board of Beijing Civigas Co., Ltd., a wholly . BMEBE2ENB AR f%.
owned subsidiary of our Group IRFERRERAAIEEREER >
e director of certain principal subsidiaries of our Group s HMEEBHFTEMBARES @
Academic background: By s
e Bachelor degree in Sciences from the Tianjin Normal o  HEIREMESAREIEEE BN
University, China
e Master degree in Economics from the Tianjin University of o HEIREMLREBLESETEM
Finance and Economics, China
e PhD degree in Economics from the Nankai University, China e HEBHRAARELESFETEM
Experiences: TE#REs:
e has substantial experiences in the development and e RABRZRKEEZERHEREBERFE
management of sales and supply chain projects in China BEEEKR
Other: Hith:

e father of Miss Mo Yunbi, an executive director of our Company e HMARMTEFEZE/|THMNRXHF
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Biography of Directors
EECZEE

Mr. Zhang Hesheng

Deputy Chairman of the Board

Aged 67
Director and Deputy Chairman since 21 March 2005
Term of office: 30 September 2020 (re-elected) to 2023 AGM

Other position held within our Group:

. member of Remuneration Committee

Academic background:

o MBA degree from the La Trobe University, the Australia

Experiences:

o joined the initial financial securities industry in China in late
1980s

o acted as senior executive in various securities companies
including Wanguo Holdings Limited, Guotai Securities
Company Limited and Guotai Junan Securities Company
Limited, engaged in the provision of services to securities and
financial investment; securities brokerages; investment banking;
financial research and analysis

o has extensive experiences in financial and capital markets
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Biography of Directors
’ ! ERECZEE

Mr. Fan Fangyi BAERERRE

Managing Director BEEHKE
Aged 44 4453,
Director and Managing Director since 1 September 2015 B201559A1HRREAEERESHLE
Term of office: 17 August 2018 (re-elected) to 2021 AGM £H3: 2018F8AH178 (L) &E
2021 ERRBFRE
Other positions held within our Group: REMEBEFETHE MBI

e adirector and the president of Beijing Civigas Co., Ltd., BMEB2EMBARIERFRARABR

a wholly owned subsidiary of our Group NAIEBFRAHR gﬁg
e director of certain principal subsidiaries of our Group s HEMEEBHFTEMBARES EN
Academic background: BiiER: <)
)
e Degree in Economics from the Renmin University of China e HEARRBLESZL 2 '§
)
o
Professional qualifications: BEEER: @
e Legal Professional Qualification* from the Ministry Justice of o  HERNERR T OAEBEER
the People’s Republic of China
e registered as a non-practising member of the Beijing Institute o dtRifiestiipeMANESE
of Certified Public Accountants
Experiences: THEKE:
e has over 10 years of experience in the management of the o  HEEEBAKEEFEEFBI0FLR  WAK
Group and is familiar with the scope of the Group's AEEEE s RBEHE
operation in all aspect
e has worked in Grant Thornton (Beijing) Certified Public e URPREEHMEBANEESTE
Accountants and was responsible for auditing
e has engaged by Wah Ying International (Holdings) Limited* . RERERER (ZER)BERAFBES
and was in charge of various investment business projects IR EE%IEE
e has experiences in investment banking sector, o MRERITER FBIAROCEMNBIEHES
auditing and merger and acquisition EEKR

* For identification purpose only
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Biography of Directors
EECZEE

Miss Mo Yunbi

Aged 31
Director since 13 January 2015

Term of office: 30 September2020 (re-elected) to 2023 AGM

Holds shares of our Company, details of which was disclosed in the
Report of the Directors under this annual report

Other position held within our Group:

o director of certain subsidiaries of our Group

Academic background:

o Bachelor degree in Business Administration with First Class
Honours from University of Bedfordshire, the United

Kingdom

o Master of Science in Agricultural Economics with Distinction
from University of Reading, the United Kingdom

o PhD degree from University of Reading, the United Kingdom

Experiences:

o engaged as an food and safety analyst in a private entity

in China

o has extensive experiences in fast-moving consumer goods and

food ingredients supply business

Other:

o daughter of Dr. Mo Shikang, our chairman of the Board and
an executive director of our Company
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Biography of Directors
EECZREE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE BYEHITESE
DIRECTOR

Dr. Liu Junmin ZEREBL

Aged 71 715%
Director since 11 April 2005 H2005F4A11HEBEHEIES
Term of office: 4 September 2019 (re-elected) to 2022 AGM £H): 20196 9H4R (EE)E
20225 RFBFRE
Other positions held within our Group: REMEEPTIEEHNE R
e member of Audit Committee s ERZLZBEE®KE
e member of Nomination Committee e RRZEENE by
e member of Remuneration Committee e HFHMEZEEKE g E
(7]

: P a
Academic background: BifER: 5 el
e Bachelor degree, Master degree and PhD degree in Economics o HFEHERAASBLEBEZZL BT RIETEN _E

from Nankai University, China ©

(=]

.2

Other current major offices: HiREFETHE: =
e Professor of the Virtual Economics and Management Research o HEIEAAREERLEEEEMFRP O

Center of Nankai University, China

e independent non-executive director of China Literature Limited . RIS B (IREMRTE - 00772) BB FEHIT
(stock code: 00772), shares of which are listed on the Main EE EROPRB T ERENE
Board of the Stock Exchange

Awards: FriE IR

e The 8th Sun Yefang Economics Prize s ZBNERAFKESE

e The 3rd China High School Humanity Social Science e ZFE-EFERRANHERE
Research Excellent Award MEEBHEK R

Past offices: BT

e lecturer of Tianjin University of Finance and Economics o  HEREMELKRBEMEHEM

TEEAAREESRETHRERIIAE

o professor and associate professor of the Faculty of Economics,
Nankai University, China

e resigned as independent director of AVIC Electromechanical o FM2018F3A26HBHEFM I EKE RGR
Systems Co., Ltd. (stock code: 002013), shares of which BER AR (RZERSE:002013) 2BILE
are listed on the Small & Medium Enterprises Board of the = HBRORIBEFR S/ ERE
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, on 26 March 2018 h&

e resigned as independent non-executive Director of China e 2020F10A29HBIIFREMEEEE
Huarong Asset Management Co., Limited (stock code: 02799), RHBERAR (REMRE:02799) BYE 7 3
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock BMITESE - ERD OB AT EIREE
Exchange, on 29 October 2020

e retired as independent non-executive director of Tianjin Faw e 202012 A9HRAERZE—ITEF B
Xiali Automobile Co., Ltd. (stock code: 000927), MAERAR (BREAHE :000927) #9787 3
shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, HMITES ERNDERININEFZ S FTEE

on 9 December 2020

FRERBRAT >3
2020F (B E2020F12A31HLAER)



Biography of Directors
EECZREE

Prof. Zhao Yanyun

Aged 64
Director since 24 July 2013
Term of office: 17 August 2018 (re-elected) to 2021 AGM

Other positions held within our Group:

° member of Audit Committee
° member of Nomination Committee
° member of Remuneration Committee

Academic background:

o professor of Faculty of Statistics, the Renmin University of
China

Other current major offices:

o doctoral tutor of Faculty of Statistics, the Renmin University of

China

. officer, professor and doctoral tutor of the China Research
Center for Competitiveness and Evaluation in the Renmin
University of China

Current offices:

o Part-time tutor in the following universities in China:
>Zhejiang Gongshang University
>Hebei University of Engineering
>Shanxi University of Finance and Economics
o Consultant of National Statistical Society of China
o Deputy chairman of Statistical Education Society of China
. Chairman of Statistical (High School) Education Society of
China*

o Member of National Science and Technology Innovation Survey

Expert Committee*
Awards:

o winner of the Government of the State Council Special
Contribution Expert Government Allowance* in China

o the century talent of Ministry of Education* in China

o national candidate of the Ministry of Personnel New Century
Hundred Thousand Talents Project* in China

o candidate of the Beijing Hundred Project* in China

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. Cheung Chi Ming

Aged 42
Director since 15 July 2020
Term of office: 30 September 2020 (elected) to 2023 AGM

Other positions held within our Group:

. chairman of Audit Committee
. chairman of Remuneration Committee
. member of Nomination Committee

Academic background:

o Bachelor degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University

o Master degree in Corporate Governance from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University

Professional qualification:

. fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants

o member of Chartered Secretary
. member of The Chartered Governance Professional

Other current major offices:

o the Financial Controller of OVM International Development
Co. Ltd. ("OVM Int’l"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of a State-
owned enterprise from 1 Oct 2018 onwards. OVM Int'l is

principally engaged in international trading and investment
holding.

Experiences:

o has over sixteen years' experience in finance, accounting and
business management functions
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Biography of Directors
ERECZEE

Past offices:

o the Financial Controller and Assistant General Manager of
Hong Kong OVM Engineering Company Limited (“OVM
Engineering”), a company engaged in civil construction
business and is jointly owned by a State-owned enterprise and
a Hong Kong listed company for the period from June 2014 to
September 2018

o Assistant Financial Controller of Wuling Motors Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange
(Stock code: 305) for period from October 2008 to June 2014

o Worked in an international accounting firm for four years

o Independent non-executive director of Mingyuan Medicare
Development Company Limited (“Mingyuan Medicare”),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock code: 233) for the period from 10 July 2017 to 22
January 2020. The listing of Mingyuan Medicare's shares were
cancelled on 23 January 2020

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of 3 years and Miss
Mo Yunbi, an executive Director, has entered into a service contract
with the Company for no specific year, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation from the Board and then re-election in the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Corporate Governance Report

ERELRS

The Company has committed to perform a high standard of
corporate governance practices in enhancing the confidence of
shareholders, investors, employees, creditors and business partners
and also the growth of its business. The Company's corporate
governance practices are based on the principles and the code
provisions (the "Code Provisions”) as set out in the “Corporate
Governance Code” and “Corporate Governance Report”, amended
from time to time, contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). As far as the
Code Provisions is concerned, during nine months period ended 31
December 2020 (the "9 Months Reporting Period”) the and up to
the date of this annual report, the Company complies with all aspect
of the Code Provisions.

The directors of the Company (the "Director(s)”) acknowledge their
responsibilities for preparing the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the 9 Months Reporting Period that give a true
and fair view of the Group's financial position as a going concern
basis in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements required by the Listing Rules and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amended from time to time.
This responsibilities include designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control systems relevant to the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
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Corporate Governance Report

NN
GRELIHRSE
(a) Directors’ securities transactions

Adoption of Model Code

The board of Directors (the "Board”) has adopted the “Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers”
(the "Model Code”), amended from time to time, as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors.

Confirmation on Compliance

Specific respectively enquiry has been made to all the Directors
regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code during
the 9 Months Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report, they all confirmed in writing that they have fully
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the 9 Months Reporting Period and up to the date of
this annual report.

Written Guideline for Relevant Employees

In addition, the Company has also adopted provisions of the
Model Code as written guidelines for relevant employees, who
are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information
of the Company. Such relevant employees did and would abide
by the provisions of the Model Code. Besides, the Company has
adopted internal control policy in relation to the disclosure of
inside information of the Company (the “Inside Information
Policy”).

No incident of non-compliance of the Model Code and/or the
Inside Information Policy by such relevant employees was noted
by the Company.
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(b)

Corporate Governance Report

The Board
Composition

The nomination committee of the Company (“NC”) is
responsible for reviewing the Board composition and diversity
of the Board, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of the Directors,
monitoring the re-appointment and succession planning of the
Directors and assessing the independence of each independent
non-executive Director.

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and
experiences appropriate to the requirements of the businesses
and the development of the Company and to the exercising of
independent. Other than Dr. Mo Shikang is the father of Miss
Mo Yunbi, the Board members have no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships with each other.

The Directors who held office during the 9 Months Reporting
Period and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Mo Shikang (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Hesheng (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Fan Fangyi (Managing Director)

Miss Mo Yunbi

Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus (Deputy Chairman)’

Independent non-executive Directors:
Dr. Liu Junmin

Prof. Zhao Yanyun

Mr. Cheung Chi Ming?

Mr. Sin Ka Man?

Notes:
1. resigned on 1 October 2020.

2. retired on 30 September 2020, the date of annual general
meeting of the Company.

3. appointed by the Board on 15 July 2020 and then re-elected by
the Shareholders on 30 September 2020.
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Corporate Governance Report

GRELIHRSE
(b) The Board (Continued)

Composition (Continued)

The composition, experiences, balance of skills, qualifications
and diversity on the Board are regularly reviewed by the NC
to ensure that the Board retains a core of members with
longstanding and deep knowledge of the Group alongside new
Directors who bring fresh perspectives and diverse experiences
to the Board.

The Board complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules
relating to (i) the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise; (i) independent non-executive
Director representing at least one-third of the Board; and (iii)
the audit committee of the Company (“AC”) should comprise
only independent non-executive Directors.

The biographical details of all the current Directors are set out
on pages 19 to 26 of this annual report.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in this annual
report and all corporate communications issued by the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time. The Company
also maintains on its website (www.681hk.com) and on the Stock
Exchange’s website (www.hkexnews.hk) an updated list of its
Directors (by category) identifying the role and function.

Appointment, Re-election and Resignation of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and
transparent procedures and criteria for the appointment, re-
election, resignation, re-designation, rotation, retirement and/
or removal of the Director(s) in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws, the Listing Rules and all applicable laws.

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws and/or the Code Provisions
of the Listing Rules, (1) at each annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM") not less than one-third of the Directors
for the time being shall retire from the Board by rotation; (2)
each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years at the conclusion of the AGM after
he/she was last re-elected as Director by shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholder(s)”) at the general meeting of
the Company and (3) each Director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional Director by the Board should retire
from the Board at the conclusion of the first general meeting
of the Company to be held but they, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election as the Director by the Shareholders at
the same meeting.
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The Board (Continued)

Appointment,
(Continued)

Re-election and Resignation of Directors

During the 9 Months Reporting Period, Mr. Zhang Hesheng,
Miss Mo Yunbi and Mr. Cheung Chi Ming retired from the
Board by rotation at the conclusion of the AGM held on 30
September 2020 (the “2020 AGM") and were then re-elected
as the Directors by the Shareholders with separate resolutions
passed in the 2020 AGM in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company and pursuant
to paragraph A4.2 of the Code Provisions, Mr. Fan Fangyi Dr.
Liu Junmin (“"Dr. Liu") and Prof. Zhao Yanyun (“Prof. Zhao")
shall retire from the Board by rotation at the conclusion of
forthcoming AGM (”“2021 AGM") but, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the 2021 AGM.

Dr. Liu and Prof. Zhao have served as an independent non-
executive Director over 9 years in their further re-election
as Directors at the 2021 AGM. During their tenure, Dr. Liu
and Prof. Zhao have demonstrated their ability to provide
independent view to the Company’s matters. Notwithstanding
during their years of service as independent non-executive
Directors, the Board and the Nomination Committee are of
the view that Dr. Liu and Prof. Zhao are able to continue to
fulfill their role as required and thus recommended them for
re-election at the 2021 AGM in accordance with the Listing
Rules, their further appointments will be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by the Shareholders and the papers
to the Shareholders accompanying that resolutions will include
the reasons the Board believes they are still independent and
should be re-elected. Dr. Liu and Prof. Zhao each has made a
written annual confirmation of independence for the 9 Months
Reporting Period pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board and the NC have also recommended the re-election
of all the abovementioned retiring Directors standing for re-
election at the 2021 AGM.

Detailed biographical information of all the abovementioned
retiring Directors standing for re-election at the 2021 AGM will
be dispatched to Shareholders with this annual report.
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GRELIHRSE
(b) The Board (Continued)

Service Contracts with the Company

Each of the independent non-executive Director has entered
and/or will enter into a service contract with the Company for
specific term of three (3) years after he/she be re-elected as
Director at the AGM and Miss Mo Yunbi, an executive Director,
has entered into a service contract with the Company for
no specific years. Save as disclosed above, the Company did
not enter into any service contract with other Directors. All
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

Number of Meetings Held and Attendance

The Board normally has at least four (4) scheduled meetings a
year to review financial information, internal control systems,
risk management systems, corporate strategy, operating
performance and the progress of the various on-going projects
of the Group, if any, and meets at other times as and when
required. The Board requires Directors to devote sufficient time
and attention to discharge their duties and responsibilities.
During the 9 Months Reporting Period, a total number of
twelve (12) Board meetings, six (6) AC meetings, three (3) NC
meeting two (2) Remuneration Committee (“RC") meeting
were held. Minutes of these meetings are currently kept by
the Company Secretary of the Company and are open for
inspection by the Directors and Board committees’ members.

In consideration of the Code Provisions on Directors’ time
commitments, the chairman of the Board held a private
meeting with independent non-executive Directors (without
the presence of the managing Director and executive Directors)
in 2021 to review the contribution required from a Director to
perform his responsibilities to the Company, and whether he is
spending sufficient time in performing them.
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LEEREE
(b) The Board (Continued) by EE=E(H)
Number of Meetings Held and Attendance (Continued) BEAHURHEE(F)
During the 9 Months Reporting Period, the Board has AREIEAHE == EHRdES
regularly reviewed the contributions from the Directors and HARNRMNENER  THERESRAR
confirmed that they have spent sufficient time performing ANERTERE -AREEAHBHE &
their responsibilities. The individual attendance records of each EFEREFARAESS BEREET-
Director, on a named basis, at the meetings of the Board, AC, REZESRFWEZEEERURRKRERXR
NC and RC as well as the Shareholders’ meeting(s) (AGM and g(RREBFARGEREFENRE ([BRR
special general meeting (“SGM"), if any), during the 9 Months BRXE]) (ME) 2Rtk (BKEHEED
Reporting Period are set out below: 5 EHFMAT
SGM AGM Board AC NC RC
Name of Directors EEf? REBAAE HRREEAS Ezg ENZEE REZEE FHzEE
Number of Meetings k16 1 1 12 6 3 2
Executive Directors HrES
Dr. Mo Shikang RitRAL i i 12112 3 0
Mr. Zhang Hesheng RMEEE 101 11 12112 m
Mr. Fan Fangyi BhERE 17 11 12112 "
Miss Mo Yunbi RE2ME i i 12112 g_ﬁ‘;
Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus' KERRE 17 111 9/10 g ;u?:
Q
Independent Non-executive ~ BIFHTEES §i‘5
Directors s
Dr. Liu Junmin BREL i 1 12112 6/6 £l 3
Prof. Zhao Yanyun EEEYR N N 1212 6/6 33 M Z,
Mr. Cheung Chi Ming? REH? 101 5/5 5/5 11 g
Mr. Sin Ka Man® REGRE i 1 10110 4/4 3 I S
|9
1 Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus resigned as an executive Director and 1 M20205F10 A1 B RIEA T EBHERITE
deputy chairman on 1 October 2020. ERBIERE-
2 Mr. Cheung Chi Ming has been appointed as independent non- 2 202067 RSB REFABEZEABE L IE
executive director on 15 July 2020 and elected by Shareholders HITEBRN2020RRAFAEHRRE
as an independent non-executive Director at 2020 AGM. ERBILIFNITES -
3 Mr. Sin Ka Man retired as an independent non-executive Director 3 ERGSTAEE 20200 R IAF KRG L RE
by rotation at the conclusion of the 2020 AGM. WEREEIERITES-
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GRELIHRSE
(b) The Board (Continued)

Number of Meetings Held and Attendance (Continued)

The high attendance record at the Board and its committee
meetings during the 9 Months Reporting Period, which was
reviewed by the NC and RC in March 2021, demonstrated the
Directors’ strong commitment to the Company.

Regarding disclosure of the number and nature of offices held
by the Directors in public companies or organisations and other
significant commitments as well as their identities and the time
involved (the “Commitments”) to the Company, all Directors
have agreed to disclose their Commitments to the Company
and the changes, if any, in a timely manner and then confirm
their other directorships, major appointments and interests in
the Company (if any) twice a year.

Responsibility of the Board

The Company has a division of functions reserved to the
Board and delegated to the senior management. The Board
currently provides leadership and approves strategic polices
and plans with a view to enhance Shareholders’ interests while
the day-to-day operations of the Company and the Group
are delegated to the senior management. The Board has full
support of the managing Director and the senior management
to discharge its responsibilities.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Group, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
systems, risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, change of Directors, ad hoc projects and other
significant financial and operational matters.

Responsibility of the Directors

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to managing and executive Directors
and the senior management. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into
by the above mentioned officers.

Each executive Director is delegated individual responsibility
to oversee and monitor the operations of the specific business
unit and/or corporate merge and acquisition and to implement
the strategies and polices set by the Board. Each Director
may seek for independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expenses, upon making
request to the Board. All members of the Board are provided
with monthly updates to enable them to discharge their duties.
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The Board (Continued)

Responsibility of and Annual Confirmation from Independent
Non-Executive Directors

Through active participation in meetings of the Board, Board
committees and general meetings of the Company, the
independent non-executive Directors currently bring a wide
range of business and financial expertise, experiences, skills
and independent judgment on the issues of strategy, policy,
performance accountability, resources, key appointments,
connected transactions and standards of conduct to the
Board. Independent non-executive Directors have taken and/
or shall take lead when potential conflicts of interest arise.
Independent Board committee, comprising all independent non-
executive Directors, has formed and/or will form to advise the
independent Shareholders on those connected transactions
to be approved by the independent Shareholders at the SGM.
All independent non-executive Directors have made various
contributions to the effective direction and performance of
the Company. One of the independent non-executive Directors
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received, from each independent non-
executive Directors for the 9 Months Reporting Period, a
written annual confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board and the NC
considered all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent in accordance with the independent guidelines set
out in the Listing Rules.

Insurance of the Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’
liability insurance including company securities, employment
practices, regulatory crisis event, investigation, litigation, tax
liabilities and public relation, etc, for the Directors and senior
officers of the Group, which is reviewed by the Board on a
regular basis. The Company undertakes an annual review of
the Company’s Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance policy
in light of recent trends in the insurance market and other
relevant factors. The review benchmarks the amount of cover
against other similar companies and considers whether separate
cover be required for members of the Board.
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The Board (Continued)

Conflict of Interest

All Directors are required to comply with their duties to act in
the best interest of the Company and have particular regard to
the interest of the Shareholders as a whole. Amongst others,
all Directors are required to declare the nature and extent of
their interests, if any, in any transaction, arrangement, contract
or other proposal to be considered by the Board at meetings.
Unless specifically permitted by the Bye-laws of the Company,
a Director cannot cast a vote on any contract, transaction,
arrangement or any other proposal in which he/she has or any
of his/her close associates is materially interested.

Supply of and Access to Information

The Board and Board committees members are supplied with
comprehensive meeting papers and relevant materials within a
reasonable period of time in advance of the intended meeting
date (in any event no less than three (3) days before the date of
the meeting). All Directors and the Board committees members
are given opportunities to include matters in the agenda for
regular Board and Board committees meetings and/or their
meetings, if required. To facilitate the decision-making process,
the Directors and the Board committees members are free to
have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain
further information, when required.

All Directors and the Board committees members have
unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, who ensures that the Board and Board committees
receive appropriate and timely information for its decision-
making and the Board and Board committees procedures,
and all applicable rules and regulations, are being followed.
The Directors and the Board committees members can obtain
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses.
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The Board (Continued)

Supply of and Access to Information (Continued)

The Board receives from the management monthly
management accounts, explanation and analysis of the
operation performance of the Group and relevant information
which enable the Board to make an informed assessment for
approving the financial statements. Other regular and ad hoc
reports are also prepared for the Board and Board committees,
to ensure that the Directors and member of the Board
committees are supplied with all the requested information in a
timely and appropriate manner.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Role of Chairman

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility
between the chairman of the Board and the Managing Director,
who perform similar role as chief executive officer, to ensure a
balance of power and authority. The respective responsibilities
of the chairman of the Board and the Managing Director are
clearly defined. The chairman of the Board provides leadership
and is responsible for the effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance practice. With the
support of the management, the chairman of the Board is also
responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate
information and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board
meetings. The position of the chairman of the Board is currently
held by Dr. Mo Shikang.

The chairman of the Board ensures that the Board works
effectively and performs its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
manner. He also ensures all Directors are properly briefed on
issues to be discussed at Board meetings. The chairman of the
Board encourages Directors with different views to voice their
concerns, allows sufficient time for discussion of issues and
ensures that Board decisions fairly reflect Board consensus. He
pushes all Directors to make a full and active contributions to
the Board’s affairs and takes the lead to ensure that the Board
acts in the best interest of the Company and the Shareholders
as whole.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (Continued)

Role of Chief Executive Officer

The Managing Director focuses on implementing objectives, policies
and strategies approved and delegated by the Board. He is in
charge of the Company’s day-to-day management and operations.
The Managing Director is also responsible for developing strategic
plans and formulating the organisational structure, internal control
system, risk management system control systems and internal
procedures and processes for the Board’s approval. The position of
the Managing Director is currently held by Mr. Fan Fangyi.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment,
so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the
Group structure, Board and Board committees meetings procedures,
business, management and operations of the Company, etc. and
that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements in
Bermuda and Hong Kong.

An induction programme covering the roles of a Director from
the strategic, planning and management perspective, the
Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures Ordinance, as well as
the essence of corporate governance and the trends in these
areas, be therefore arranged for newly appointed Directors(s), if
any, after he/she joined the Board.

An induction programme covering the abovementioned
matters was therefore arranged for Mr. Cheung Chi Ming, an
independent executive Director, when he jointed the Board in
July 2020, that helped him fully aware of his responsibilities
and the obligations in the Company under the Listing Rules.

The Board acknowledges that continuous professional
development and training of Directors is an ongoing process
to ensure the continued enhancement of their skills and
knowledge.
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EEELHRE
(d) Training for Directors (Continued) (dy EEzFEI(E)
Besides, the Company keeps circulating information and materials PRt 2o R AR TR BAEHSBEMNR
to develop and refresh Directors’ knowledge and skills from time ME - IBENMENESN NI L -FTE
to time. All the information and materials are relevant to the BASMEIEAREE 2 355 KB %
Group's business, the economy, corporate governance, rules and ER BB &5 MR E XL
requlations, accounting, financial or professional skills and/or M/ REENHBENETER - LT
directors’ duties and responsibilities. There are also arrangements MEEFRBEHRRBEEI - ARE R
in place for providing continuing briefing and professional EABE EFNEIRHEAABHTIN
development to each Director. During the 9 Months Reporting ™
Period, the record of the trainings of the Directors, on named basis,
is set out in the table below:
Receiving
briefings from
Reading financial
journals, officers,
written Attending company
training webcast secretary
materials and/ training and/  and/or other
or updates or forums executives
231 QS
AR AT |
BIEMIT BE sm@PE  WER R |00
ZHMRR,  EBEIRS HttSE® §3ﬁ
Directors BE= HEH o w18 IGE: <
>
)
Executive Directors HITES g
Dr. Mo Shikang EEELT v/ v/ v ©
Mr. Zhang Hesheng R A v v/ v g
Mr. Fan Fangyi BAEEE v/ v/ v S
Miss Mo Yunbi BEE2/)E v v v
Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus' RIERFE v/ v/ v
Independent Non-executive Directors B FHITESE
Dr. Liu Junmin AEREL v/ v/ v
Prof. Zhao Yanyun HEEHE v/ v/ v
Mr. Cheung Chi Ming? o 75 A 5 A2 v/ v/ v
Mr. Sin Ka Man? N e v v v
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at AR EBESTHREAAEIRE B
the Company’s expenses. The company secretary is responsible to AHARRIAE AAWEAERTSES
keep records of training taken by each Director. The NC reviewed BEXNENEE - REE B gN20219F3A4
the training records of each Director in March 2021. EEESEE 2 EIIRE
Notes: BT
1. resigned on 1 October 2020. 1. H2020F10R1HEHT -
2. appointed on 15 July 2020. 2. H2020F7A1SHEZEE-
3. retired on 30 September 2020. 3. F20209F9H30HEE-
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(f)

Company Secretary

The company secretary, being an employee of the Company,
has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs and
reports to the Board. She keeps close contact with all Directors
and ensures that the operation of the Board and all Board
committees are in compliance with the procedures as set forth
in the Company'’s Bye-laws and the Listing Rules. Additionally,
the company secretary is responsible for compiling and
regularly submitting draft minutes of Board meetings and Board
Committee meetings to the Directors and committee members
for their comment, and final version of minutes for their
records, within a reasonable time after the relevant meetings.
Each Director may obtain advice from and the assistance of
the company secretary to ensure that the meeting of Board
and Board committees procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations, are followed. To ensure the possession of up-to-
date knowledge and market information to perform her duties,
the company secretary attended sufficient professional training
during the 9 Months Reporting Period.

Corporate Governance

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties, which includes developing and reviewing the Company’s
policy and practices on corporate governance, assessing and
monitoring the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management. During the 9 Months
Reporting Period, the Board reviewed, monitored and assessed
the policy and practices on corporate governance, training and
continuous professional development to Directors and senior
management, policies and practice on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirement and the compliance with the Model Code
under the Listing Rule and disclosure requirements in this Corporate
Governance Report. The Board kept under review in light of the
changing legal and regulatory requirements.
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Corporate Governance Report

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
AC, NC and RC. All Board committees of the Company have
been established with defined written terms of reference,
which are disclosed in the corporate website of the Company
(www.681hk.com) and the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
and are available to Shareholders upon request.

The members of the AC at present are all independent non-
executive Directors whereas, the majority of NC and the RC
comprise independent non-executive Directors. The list of the
chairman and members of each Board committee is set out
under “Corporate Information” in this annual report.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at Company's expenses.

Audit Committee

The written terms of reference (amended from time to time)
has been suggested under the Code Provisions. The AC
currently comprises independent non-executive Directors,
among them one independent non-executive Director possesses
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. None of the members
of the AC is a former partner of the Company's existing
external auditor. The AC currently comprises the following
three members:

(i)  Mr. Cheung Chi Ming, chairman
(i) Dr. Liu Junmin

(iii)  Prof. Zhao Yanyun
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Corporate Governance Report

LCEEREE
(g) Board Committees (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The main duties of the AC include the followings:

(1)

To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
responsible staff of accounting and financial report
function, compliance officer (if any), internal auditor or
external auditor before submission to the Board;

To review the relationship with the external auditor and
its independence by reference to the work performed and
services provided by the external auditor, their fees, their
firm’s standards and practices and terms of engagement,
and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and/or removal of external
auditor;

To review the continuing connected transactions as
disclosed in the annual report, if any, and confirm that
those transactions entered into by the Group were (i) in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii)
according to the respective agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interest
of the Shareholders as a whole; and

To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures.
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Corporate Governance Report

Board Committees (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The AC held six (6) meetings during the 9 Months Reporting
Period and up to the date of this annual report to, inter alia,

(1)

(8)

review and approve the draft audited and unaudited
consolidated financial statement together with and the
respective draft result announcements, including changes
in accounting policies and practices; major judgmental
areas; significant adjustments resulting from the audit
(if any); going concern assumption; compliance with
accounting and auditing standards and compliance with
the Listing Rules and legal requirements in relation to
financial reporting to the Board for consideration and
approval,

review the results of the external audit and discuss with
the external auditor on any significant findings and audit
issues;

assess the independence of the external auditor of the
Company and the effectiveness of audit process;

review the relationship with the external auditor and then
recommend the retirement of the former external auditor
of the Company at the 2020 AGM and then appointment
of the new external auditor (who is the current external
auditor) of the Company at the same meeting, i.e. 2020
AGM and recommended its remuneration;

evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
systems of internal control and risk management
which covered all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance together with the associated
procedures;

review and approve the internal audit programme, review
the internal audit reports and discuss any significant
issues with the management;

review the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staffs of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function and their training
programmes and budget; and

review the current continuing connected transactions.

The attendance record of the meetings of AC during the 9
Months Reporting Period is set out on page 33 of this report.
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Corporate Governance Report

ERELIERSE
(g) Board Committees (Continued) (9)

Audit Committee (Continued)
Auditor’s Remuneration

During the 9 Months Reporting Period, the fee paid/payable
to auditor in respect of audit service and non-audit services
provided by the auditor to the Group were as follows:

3

BEAREIEABE stizBEmALE
R 2 RBURS FIER BRI I A &
Nz B&REIMT :

2020

RMB’000

Nature of services R 7% 14 & AR®F T

Audit for the 9 Months Reporting Period WEIME A AR % 1,200

Others EAh -

1,200

Nomination Committee EEZE®

The written terms of reference has been suggested (amended REZEBEGRRTAKRXNERIAZE
from time to time) under the Code Provisions. The NC currently BiEHE (CTHER])  BBELZECR K

comprises the following four members, major of them are
independent non-executive Directors:

(i)  Dr. Mo Shikang*, chairman

(i)~ Dr. Liu Junmin®

(iii)  Prof. Zhao Yanyun”

(iv)  Mr. Cheung Chi Ming

# executive Director

* independent non-executive Director

The main duties of the NC include the followings:

(1) review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at
least annually and make recommendations any proposed

changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;
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Corporate Governance Report

Board Committees (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

(2) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships;

(3) review the Board diversity with reference to the Board
Diversity Policy (defined below);

(4) assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

(5)  make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors in particular the chairman and the chief
executive.

Nomination Policy

The NC has been delegated by the Board to review the size,
structure and composition of the Board on an annual basis.

The Company has adopted below the policy for nomination of
Directors (including the nomination procedures and criteria for
selection and recommendation of candidates for directorship) in
accordance with the Code Provisions.

Objective of the policy

NC shall nominate suitable candidates to the Board for it to
consider and make recommendations to the Shareholders
for election as Director(s) at general meetings or appoint as
Director(s) to fill casual vacancies.

NC may, as it considers appropriate, nominate a number
of candidates more than the number of the Directors to be
appointed or re-appointed at a general meeting, or the number
of casual vacancies to be filled.
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Corporate Governance Report
LREARE

(g) Board Committees (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the NC
in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate:

° reputation for integrity;

o accomplishment, experiences and/or knowledge in the
principal business of our group, from time to time;

° commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest; and

o diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The NC has the discretion to nominate
any person, as it considers appropriate.

Nomination Procedures

1. The secretary of the NC shall call a meeting of the
NC, and invite nominations of candidates from Board
members, if any, for consideration by the NC prior to its
meeting. The NC may also put forward candidates who
are not nominated by Board members.

2. For filling a casual vacancy, the NC shall make
recommendations for the Board’'s consideration and
approval. For proposing candidates to stand for election
at a general meeting, the NC shall make nominations to
the Board for its consideration and recommendation.

3. Until the issue of the circular to Shareholders, the
nominated persons shall not assume that they have been
proposed by the Board to stand for election at the general
meeting.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”) and has posted it on the Company’s website
(www.681hk.com), which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board, the summary of which are set out
below:

(a)

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at
the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development.

In designing the Board’s composition, the diversity of
Board members has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

The NC held three (3) meetings during the 9 Months Reporting
Period and up to the date of this report to, inter alia,

(1

assess the structure, size and composition of the Board
and analysis the diversity of the Board with reference with
the Board Diversity Policy adopted by the Board;

evaluate the performance of the Board with reference to
the Board performance report;

study the independence of each independent non-
executive Director in accordance with the Listing Rules;
in particular, Dr. Liu and Prof. Zhao, who have served the
Company for move than nine years at their re-election as
the Director at the 2021 AGM.

identify those Directors to be retired from the Board by
rotation in the AGM and then be re-elected as Director in
the same meeting in accordance with the Company’s Bye-
laws and the Listing Rules;
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ERELIHE

(g) Board Committees (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

(5) propose the maximum number of Directors of the Board
in the AGM;

(6) review the service contract(s) to be entered with the
independent non-executive Director(s), if any; and

(7)  approve and recommend the appointment of Mr. Cheung
Chi Ming as an independent non-executive Director,
retirement of Mr. Sin Ka Ming as independent non-
executive Director and the resignation of Mr. Chu Kin
Wang, Peleus as executive Director.

The attendance records of the meeting of the NC during the 9
Months Reporting Period is set on page 33 of this report.

Analysis of the diversity of the Board by NC is shown by the
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following charts: Z AL D AT
Executive Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
WITES BIEITES

Fi# R

1 Director 1 Director 1 Directors 1 Directors
12EE 15EE 18EE 12EE

Directorship with

the Company

EZF/A\EJE?fF% 1 Directors 3 Director
12EE 3RE=E
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LCEEREE
(g) Board Committees (Continued)

Remuneration Committee

The written terms of reference (amended from time to time)
of RC has been suggested under the Code Provisions. The RC
currently comprises the following five members:

(i)  Mr. Cheung Chi Ming", chairman
(i) Dr. Mo Shikang*

(iii)  Mr. Zhang Hesheng?*

(iv)  Dr. Liu Junmin®

(v)  Prof. Zhao Yanyun”

* independent non-executive Director

# executive Director

The RC meets at least once a year to determine the remuneration
policy for the Directors and senior management. The RC
has primary responsibility for making recommendations on
and approving the remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and senior
management to the Board after consultation with the Chairman
and Deputy Chairmen, assessed performance of the executive
Directors and accessed to professional advice, at the Company’s
expenses, when necessary. The RC is also responsible for
establishing a formal and transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director
or any of his/her associates be participated in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration be determined by reference to
the duties and responsibilities of Directors in the Group, business
performance, profitability and market conditions.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The RC held two (2) meeting during the 9 Months Reporting
Period and up to the date of this report to, inter alia,

(1)

review the summary of remuneration package paid to
each Directors and senior management of the Company
for the 9 Months Reporting Period;

study the current remuneration package, policy and
structure of all Directors (including appointment(s),
resignation(s) and retirement(s) during the 9 Months
Reporting Period, if any);

propose remuneration packages in the coming year with
reference to the duties and responsibilities of Directors,
business performance and profitability of the Group
and market conditions, the corporate objective and goal
set by the Board with reference to salaries paid by the
comparable companies to Directors;

consider the service contract(s) to be entered with
independent non-executive Director(s) and/or Director(s),
if any;

review the procedures of remuneration policy, procedures
and structure for fixing the remuneration packages; and

approve and recommend the remuneration package
of Mr. Cheung Chi Ming as independent Director, the
chairman of AC and RC as well as a member of NC.

The attendance records of the meeting of the RC during the 9
Months Reporting Period is set out on page 33 of this report.
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ERELIRSE
(h) Internal Control and Risk Management System

The Board has overall responsibility for the systems of internal
control and risk management of the Group and for reviewing
its effectiveness. The Board is committed to implementing an
effective and sound internal control and risk management
systems to safeguard the interest of Shareholders and the
assets of the Group. During the 9 Months Reporting Period
and up to the date of this annual report, the Board, through
the AC, reviewed the implementation of the systems of
internal control and risk management and reviewing of all
relevant financial, operational, compliance controls and risk
management functions system. A review be conducted at least
annually on the effectiveness of the systems of internal control
and risk management. During the 9 Months Reporting Period
and up to the date of this annual report, review arrangement
of corporate image and safety was made reviewing and
monitoring effectiveness of our major subsidiaries in relation
to the progress of completion on operational targets, market
development, customer service, production and operations
management, safety management system, finance, construction
works, ad hoc projects or overall performance.

The Group has maintained a tailored governance structure
with defined lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation
of responsibility and authority to the management. The
internal control and risk management systems of the Group
are designed to identify and evaluate the significant risks and
to minimise the risks to which the Group is exposed, and are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risks of failure
to achieve business objective, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatements or
losses.

The Group which currently engages in the businesses of
the sales and distribution of fuel gas including piped gas
transmission and distribution, cylinder gas supply, distribution
gas and FMCG and food ingredients supply in China, has
established internal control and risk management systems
which are designed and structured in accordance with its
specific business and operation functions.

52 Chinese People Holdings Company Limited

2020 Annual Report (For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020)

REREE K E ke B R4

EEeUAREARNERRS AR EE
HEBBBETRARSEKRB -EFEEN
NETAERETE Z WA Rt K= B2
BENE URERRMNER AN EBEE-
BEARSIEANBLASFREE EF
CLERERZEERIAMEZRRR
R ER S E 2 BT Rinst A BRI -
2E AHREENERERENERR -ER
SEFELOHANERRS R ERE R
JE 2 BRBETT — IR R - R E AR EME A
HEMAFRAMANET T EERRE
MZ2RE R TEIEMBAREELE
LBRETKER MHERE TPRE &

EEE TEREN M TRER FRT
TESRER BT Z R o

AEBEEFIERECERRE BEAEE
- YHEEHRTFTERBASRERES K
SEANEELERERVEZRAEE
5l BTl E AR K 7R 5 H A E E R R
BMERE ARER (M) K RE R
VAERK TG B H - WERT M E AR
BlEEHAEMIFBYRE -

AEERBERPEREMRRBEERDHE
EREEMRBL BERRHEE MR H
MRV HEMESEY I ERAIPEZER
R ERGE I EHEKBEEFIEL R
LIEBAE T AR B



Corporate Governance Report

Internal Control and Risk Management System (Continued)

The main features of the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group comprise primarily: (i) the setting
of objectives, budgets and targets, subject to the close
monitoring and periodic update and evaluation by the
responsible departments, management and the Directors; (ii)
the establishment of regular reporting of financial information
supplemented by other regular and ad hoc reports for review
and appraisal by the management and the Directors on a timely
manner to ensure the management and Directors are supplied
with all the requested information to assess the business
performances of the Group in arriving at appropriate plans
and actions; (iii) the delegation of authority and establishment
of clear lines of accountability to ensure an effective day-to-
day management, administration and operation of the Group;
and (iv) the periodic review and evaluation of the systems
and control procedures to ensure their appropriateness to the
changing business and operation environment as well as to
identify any areas of material risks and weaknesses for the
purpose of proper mitigation and improvement.

The Board monitors the Group’s business risk, operating
risk management and internal controls. An internal audit
department is maintained to carry out internal audit functions
to ensure proper compliance with the internal control and
risk management systems to identify the potential risks
which may arise in the operation and financial aspects of the
Group's business for implementation of appropriate measures
and policies on a continuing basis. The scope of review and
the audit plan of the internal audit department for the 9
Months Reporting Period, which are formulated based on a
risk assessment approach and focuses on areas with relatively
higher perceived risks, are reviewed and approved by the
AC in conjunction with the management. The internal audit
department executes its functions based on a yearly plan
and prepares reports for its assignments. These reports are
submitted to the management, the Board and the AC for
review on a regular basis.

During the 9 Months Reporting Period, the Board, through
the AC, has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
internal control and risk management systems and the internal
audit functions of Group. The review covers all material
controls, including financial reporting system, operational and
compliance controls and risk management system as well as the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experiences of staffs
of the Company's accounting and financial reporting system,
and their training programmes and budget. The Board and the
AC confirmed that during the 9 Months Reporting Period, there
were no significant control failings or weaknesses identified
which might have a material impact on the Company's financial
performance or condition and the required procedures and
human resources are in place to ensure adequate internal
controls within the Group.
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ERELIRSE
(h) Internal Control and Risk Management System (Continued)

An external audit has also been conducted to carry out the
internal audit functions to ensure proper compliance with
the internal control system and risk management system to
identify the potential risks which may arise in the operation
and financial of the Group's business for implementation
of appropriate measures and policies on a continuing basis.
The scope of review and the audit programme of external
audit firm, which are formulated based on a risk assessment
approach and focuses on areas with relatively higher perceived
risks, are approved by the AC at the end of the preceding
financial year in conjunction with the management. The
external audit firm executes their functions based on a yearly
plan and prepares reports for their assignments. These reports
are submitted to the management, the Board and the AC for
review on a regular basis. Such reports are also circulated to the
external auditor on an annual basis.

Procedures and Internal Controls for Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

The Board has approved and adopted an Inside Information
Policy for the Company since 2013 for monitoring inside
information to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules and the
Securities and Futures Ordinance. The procedures and internal
controls for handling and dissemination of inside information as
set out in the Inside Information Policy are summarised below:

Handling of Inside Information

(@ Inside information shall be announced as soon as
reasonably practicable after it becomes known to the
Board and/or is the subject of a decision by the Board
in accordance with the Listing Rules. In cases where a
decision by the Board is pending or in cases of incomplete
negotiations, the Group shall implement the procedures
set out in the Inside Information Policy to maintain the
confidentiality of information. Until an announcement is
made, the Directors and the management should ensure
that such information is kept strictly confidential. If the
confidentiality cannot be maintained, an announcement
shall be made as soon as practicable.

(b) Each department shall keep inside information on
transactions confidential. If there is a leakage of inside
information, they shall inform the Directors and/or the
company secretary, immediately so that remedial actions,
including making an inside information announcement,
can be taken at the earliest opportunity.
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Internal Control and Risk Management System (Continued)

(c)  The Group's finance department shall keep track of the
Group's threshold levels for disclosure pursuant to the
percentage ratios as defined in the Listing Rules, so that
an announcement can be made as soon as practicable
should a notifiable transaction arise.

Dissemination of Inside Information

Inside information is announced promptly through the websites
of the Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(www.681hk.com). The electronic publication system of the
Stock Exchange is the first channel of dissemination of the
Group's information before any other channels.

Investor Relation

The Company has committed to maintain an open and
effective investor relation policy and to update investors on
relevant information/developments in a timely manner, subject
to relevant regulatory requirements. Briefings and meetings
with institutional investors and analysts are conducted from
time to time. The Company also replied the enquiries from
Shareholders timely. The Directors host the AGM each year to
meet the Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Company's website at www.681hk.com contains important
corporate information, biographical details of current Directors,
organisation structure, annual and interim reports with
comprehensive and user-friendly information about the Group,
as well as announcements and circulars issued by the Company
in order to enable the Shareholders and the investor community
to have timely access to updated information about the
Company and the Group.

Shareholders’ Rights

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company may deposit a requisition to convene
a SGM and state the purpose therefor at the Company’s
registered office in Bermuda at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda.

Dividend Policy

The Directors propose the dividend, if any, in accordance with
the dividend policy of the Company (“Dividend Policy”) which
essential features are summarised below:
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LREARE

Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

Purpose

The Dividend Policy sets out the principles and guidelines of
the Company in relation to the distribution of dividend to the
Shareholders.

The objective of the Dividend Policy is to reward the
Shareholders by sharing a portion of profits/earning, while also
ensuring that enough funds are retained for the future growth
and prospects of the Company.

Factors when considering the distribution of dividend

The distribution of any dividend by the Company is subject to
the discretion of the Board, which normally did/will take into
account of the following factors:

e The financial results of the Company and the Group;

e Interests of the Shareholders;

e General business conditions and strategies;

e The capital requirements of the Group;

e  Contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by
the Company to the Shareholders or by the subsidiaries to
the Company, if any;

e  Taxation considerations;

®  Possible effects on our creditworthiness;

e  Statutory and regulatory restrictions; and

®  Any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

There is no assurance that any particular dividend amount, or
any dividend at all, will be declared and paid in the future.

Provisions with regard to distribution of dividend

Any distribution of dividend for a financial year shall be subject
to the approval by the Shareholders. Shareholders at a general
meeting of the Company can approve any distribution of final
dividend, which may not exceed the amount recommended by
the Board.

All of the Shareholders have equal rights to dividend.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)
Dividend Policy (Continued)

Provisions with regard to distribution of dividend (Continued)

Dividend may be distributed in the form of cash and/in specie
of Shares. Any distribution of Shares, however, must be
approved by the Shareholders.

The Board may from time to time to declare the special,
quarterly and/or interim dividends as appear to the Board to be
justified.

Communication Policy

The Company has adopted communications policy with
Shareholders and investors that provide ready, equal and timely
access to understandable information about the Company, the
policy is posted on the Company’s website (www.681hk.com).
The Board is welcome to Shareholders for their comments and/
or enquiries about the Company. Shareholders may send their
comments and/or enquiries to the Board by addressing them
to the company secretary who ensures these enquires and/or
comments to be properly directed to the Board. Shareholders
who wish to put forward proposal for the Company’'s
consideration at the general meetings can send their proposal
to the company secretary.

Pursuant to Bye-laws of the Company, if a Shareholder wish to
propose a person other than a retiring Director for election as a
Director at a general meeting of the Company, the Shareholder
should deposit a written notice of nomination which shall be
given to the head office of the Company within the 7-day
period commencing the day after the despatch of the notice of
the meeting (or such other period as may be determined and
announced by the Directors from time to time). The relevant
procedures are posted on the Company’s website (www.681hk.
com).

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong branch registrar
and transfer office, namely, Tricor Tengis Limited, whose
contact details are stated in the section headed “Corporate
Information” of this annual report.
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LREARE

Communications with Shareholders and Investors

The Company’s AGM is one of the principal channels of
communication with its Shareholders. The Board and the
management are committed to the constructive use of AGM as
a forum to meet with Shareholders and to hear their views and
answer their enquiries about the Group and its business.

Dr. Mo Shikang, the chairman of the Board, did and would
use his endeavours to attend all Shareholders’ meetings.
The chairman of the Board did and would arrange for the
chairmen of RC, NC and AC or their alternates be available to
answer enquiries at each AGM of the Company. A member
of the independent Board committee of the Company also
be available to answer enquiries at any general meeting
of the Company, if any, to approve connected transactions
or any other transactions that are subject to independent
Shareholders’ approval.

The Board did and would arrange auditor to attend every AGM
of the Company to answer questions about the conduct of the
audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor’s independence.

Most resolutions would be passed by way of poll at each
of the general meeting of the Company. Shareholders who
are unable to attend general meetings of the Company can
appoint proxies to attend and vote at general meetings of the
Company. The chairman of general meetings of the Company
would provide explanation of the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll and then would answer enquiries (if any)
from the Shareholders regarding voting by way of poll. The
Company would send notice of the AGM of the Company to
the Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before each
AGM of the Company and at least 10 clear business days
before all other general meetings of the Company.

The Company’s website (www.681hk.com) is maintained
for the dissemination of the Company’s announcements,
press releases and other relevant financial and non-financial
information on a timely basis.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Executive Director maintains
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep
them abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries from
investors are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.
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Report of the Directors

EFERE

The directors of the Company (the "Director(s)”) are pleased to
present this report and the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the nine months ended 31 December 2020 (the “9 Months
Reporting Period”).

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END
DATE

Reference is made to an announcement of the Company on 30
September 2020, the financial year end date of the Company was
changed from 31 March to 31 December.

Taking into consideration that the principal businesses of the
Group are carried out mainly through its subsidiaries, which were
incorporated and are operating in PRC with the financial year end
date on 31 December in accordance with the statutory requirements,
the Board considers that the change of financial year end date of
the Company from 31 March to 31 December will make consistent
with that of its principal subsidiaries and will enable the Group
to streamline the financial reporting process in relation to the
preparation of annual financial statements of its principal subsidiaries
and its consolidated financial statements and for the benefit of the
overall management of the Group's financial reporting works.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the sales and distribution of fuel gas including
the piped gas transmission and distribution, cylinder gas supply,
distribution gas and fast moving consumer goods (“FMCG") and food
ingredients supply in the People's Republic of China (the "PRC"” or
“China"). Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required
by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and an indication of likely future development in the Group's business,
can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement” and the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 2 to 18 of this annual
report. All these sections form part of this “Report of the Directors”.
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Report of the Directors
EFEHRE

SUBSIDIARIES

The activities of its principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 are set
out in note 49 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the 9 Months Reporting Period are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 82 to 83 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the 9 Months Reporting Period ended (the Previous Year: nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

FOR ATTENDANCE OF 2021 AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 10 June 2021 to Wednesday, 16 June 2021 (both dates
inclusive), for the purpose of determining the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) eligibility to attend and vote
at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Wednesday, 16 June 2021 (the “2021 AGM") and during which
period no transfer of the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) will
be effected. In order to qualify for attendance of the 2021 AGM,
all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates of the Company must be lodged with the Company's
branch share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited (address: Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Rood East, Hong Kong) not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 9 June 2021.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years is set out on page 272 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group in this annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the 9 Months Reporting
Period are set out in notes 16 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE-BASED
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Further details of the movement in the share capital and Share Options
of the Company, if any, during the 9 Months Reporting Period are set
out in notes 35 and 41 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report respectively.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed under the section of “SHARE CAPITAL AND
SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS” above, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into during the 9 Months Reporting Period.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the 9 Months Reporting Period are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 86 to 87 and
note 48 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company did not have any
distributable reserve (31 March 2020: nil).

PARTICULARS OF BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2020
is set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the 9 Months Reporting Period, the aggregate sales attributable
to the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers taken
together accounted for 4.30% and 13.95% of the Group's total
revenue for the 9 Months Reporting Period, respectively.

For the 9 Months Reporting Period, the aggregate purchase
attributable to the Group's largest supplier and the five largest
suppliers taken together accounted for 31.10% and 49.47% of
the Group’s total purchase for the 9 Months Reporting Period,
respectively.

None of the Directors, their respective associates or, so far as the
Directors are aware, any Shareholder who owns more than 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company has any interest in any of
the said top five customers and suppliers of the Group for the 9
Months Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the 9 Months Reporting Period
and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Mo Shikang (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Hesheng (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Fan Fangyi (Managing Director)
Miss Mo Yunbi

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Dr. Liu Junmin
Prof. Zhao Yanyun
Mr. Cheung Chi Ming (appointed on 15 July 2020)

Past Executive Director:
Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus (Deputy Chairman)
(resigned on 1 October 2020)
Past Independent Non-Executive Director:
Mr. Sin Ka Man (retired on 30 September 2020)
Mr. Cheung Chi Ming has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director by the Board on 15 July 2020 and then was re-

elected by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 30 September 2020 (“2020 AGM").
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DlRECTORS (Continued)

Past Independent Non-Executive Director: (Continued)

Mr. Sin Ka Man (“Mr. Sin"”), an independent non-executive Director,
retired as an independent non-executive Director by rotation at the
conclusion of the AGM 2020 pursuant to the Bye-law 99 and did
not offer himself for re-election at the same meeting. Mr. Sin also
resigned as the chairman of audit committee and remuneration
committee as well as a member of nomination committee of the
Company on 30 September 2020, respectively.

Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus has resigned as an executive Director and
a deputy chairman of the Company, all with effect from 1 October
2020 due to his other business engagements which require more of
his dedication.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE
DIRECTORS

The biographical details of all the current Directors are set out on
pages 19 to 26 of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Directors shall be
indemnified against all losses and liabilities which they may incur in
connection with their duties. The Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors
and officers of the Company.

DIRECTORS® SERVICE CONTRACT AND
ROTATION

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of 3 years and Miss Mo
Yunbi (“Miss Mo"), an executive Director, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for no specific year, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation from the Board and then re-election
in the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the Company’s Bye-laws and the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT AND
ROTAT'ON (Continued)

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company and pursuant to
paragraph A4.2 of the Code on Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report annexed as Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, Mr. Fan Fangyi, being executive Director, and Dr. Liu Junmin
and Prof. Zhao Yanyun, being independent non-executive Directors,
shall retire from the Board by rotation at the conclusion of 2021
AGM but they, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
2021 AGM.

There is no service contract, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation), in respect of any Director proposed for
re-election at the 2021 AGM.

DIRECTORS" AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS EMOLUMENT

Details of Directors’ emoluments on a named basis and five highest
paid individuals (four of them are Directors) are set out in note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION FROM
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company had received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Dr. Liu Junmin, Prof.
Zhao Yanyun and Mr. Cheung Chi Ming, of their independence for
the 9 Months Reporting Period pursuant to the rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and both the Board and the Nomination Committee
considered all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests of the Directors in the shares,
underlying shares and/or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) (the “Associated
Corporations”) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the “Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the
“"Model Code"”) were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, EERKRM MBERSD KR
UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES fE&xH 2% @

(Continued)

Long position in the shares of the Company
RKABARGDP2HFR

Approximate
percentage of

the issued
Number of ordinary Shares held ordinary
RAEBRAHUA share capital*
Personal Family Corporate FriEe
interests' interests interests Total BRTEZBERH
Names of Director EEHE BARS RikER NEEE @y BABAH
Dr. Mo Shikang (“Dr. Mo") Rt i+ 2,497,782,762 - 1,135,000,000*  3,632,782,762 40.66
([Efft))
Miss Mo Yunbi (“Miss Mo") RER/E - - 1,135,000,0002  1,135,000,000 12.70
([E/hE])
Mr. Zhang Hesheng RRMAERE 338,271,282 - - 338,271,282 3.79
Mr. Fan Fangyi BRREE 22,000,000 - - 22,000,000 0.25
Dr. Liu Junmin ABREL 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 0.06
Prof. Zhao Yanyun BEEYK 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 0.06 %
N 4
Notes: B EE i
el

1. This represents interests held by the relevant Directors as beneficial 1. REOEHEESIERERAB AFENER
owner.
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2. This represents interests legally and beneficially held by Ping Da 2. UWRRBTEZERBRAA([REDEERE
Development Limited (“Ping Da”), a company was legally and AR AENER TEARREBLRENMAZTEER
beneficially owned 50% by Dr. Mo and 50% by Miss Mo. B A50%E 5

* The percentage has been adjusted, if any, based on the total number of * BB LIRIEARRRMN2020F12 A31H B #1T
ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2020 (i.e. LB AR 4 2 (BD8,934,561,203/% Ik 15 ) 1EH 3
8,934,561,203 Shares). E(nAE) -

Save as disclosed above and under section headed “DIRECTORS' MRALBEERTXEEEERDRESF2#
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND DEBENTURES” below, as at 31 M — & PT#EER & S R20205F12A31H - B #E
December 2020, none of the Directors nor their associates had any BENEEIEDOIEISUEARARIETEE ZER
other interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and/ R FTaCe% - IR IEIZESF RIZE M S AR &) MRS
or debentures of the Company or any of its Associated Corporations B BiEE B HE S AN AR RIS E (18
which had been entered in the register kept by the Company FEEZRD ABERD R RESPES TAE
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the IR E o

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS" MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS” in this report, no transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or
its holding companies was a party and in which a Director or any
entities connected with a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December 2020 or at any
time during the 9 Months Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS® RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At no time during the 9 Months Reporting Period was the Company,
its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, their spouse and
children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Board adopted the Model Code, amended from time to time. All
Directors have confirmed their compliance with the required standard
set out in the Model Code during the 9 Months Reporting Period.
Employees, who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information of the Company, have been requested to comply with
provisions of Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, the interests of those persons (other
than the Directors) in the shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE

Report of the Directors
EFEHRE

ADTRAD > B

CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (continued) (%)

Approximate
percentage (%) of
the issued
ordinary
Number of share capital*
Nature of ordinary FriEe
Name of Shareholder Capacity interest Shares held BOTEBER®D
RRE® 5% BEME HELZEROHE BRE D (%)
Ping Da (ot Beneficial owner Corporate 1,135,000,000 12.70

T ERfEAA Nl (N

(L) = long position & &

Note: This represents the Shares held by Ping Da, a company legally and
beneficially owned 50% by Dr. Mo and Miss Mo.

* The percentage has been adjusted (if any) based on the total number of
Shares in issue as at 31 December 2020 (i.e. 8,934,561,203 Shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Company had
not been notified of any interests and short positions in the shares
and/or underlying shares of the Company any of its Associated
Corporations, which had been recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICTS

During the 9 Months Reporting Period, none of the Directors or
substantial Shareholders or any of their respective close associates
has engaged in any business that competes or may compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group or has any other
conflict of interests with the Group.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company,
during the 9 Months Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report and within the knowledge of the Directors, there was
sufficiency of public float of the Company’s securities as required
under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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50% MmN ) A 2t e
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Report of the Directors

EEERE

SHARE OPTION

Shareholders approved a resolution of adoption of a new share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) in the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 9 September 2016.

During the 9 Months Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report, nil share option was outstanding, granted, exercised,
lapsed and/or cancelled under the Share Option Scheme.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share

Option Scheme:

Purpose

Participants

Price of Shares

Provide incentives to the eligible persons
to contribute to the Group, to enable
the Group to recruit and retain quality
employees to serve the Group on a
long-term basis and to attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group.

Eligible person include any executive,
employee (whether full-time or part-
time), Director (including independent
non-executive Director), consultant,
adviser, partner, joint-venture partner,
service provider, customer and/or agent
of the Company or any of its subsidiary
or any person, who in the absolute
discretion of the Board, has contributed
or may contribute to the Group at the
time when an option is granted to such
person.

Determined by the Board and shall at
least be the highest of:

(a) the nominal value of the Share;

(b) the closing price of the Share as
stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date
of offer, which must be a trading
day; and

(0) the average closing price of the
Share as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations
sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date
of offer.
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SHARE OPT'ON (Continued)

Total number of Shares

BRE @

RAEHRBPAM 694,495 4130 X1 » 1§ &

694,495,413 Shares, being approximately

available for issue 7.77% of the issued share capital of the BOZROBEE RARBEEITRANTITII% -
and the percentage ~ Company. REMDBHTR
of the issued share EEDHE
capital that it
represents as at the
date of this annual
report
Maximum entitlement  Not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue in BR2HEHETER NEM2EARNSHEAR

of each participant any 12-month period. K5z LR BT 21% ©
Period within which Subject to the discretion by the Board. REBREZBE hAEsepEET-
the securities must be H 2 HiR
taken up under the
option
Minimum period for Not applicable. TEBRENERS ~EA-
which an option must BzEEHR
be held before it can
be exercised
Amount payable on No amount is payable on acceptance of BABENC2SE ERNEREHFESNES®E-
acceptance an offer.
gﬂﬂ
Period within which Not applicable. BUkEE EEE TER- *8' ﬁ
calls/loans must be M2 HBR 3
made/repaid 2 el
=
Remaining life of the The scheme will be valid and effective SRR ER METEIE 220269 A8H A4 g
scheme until 8 September 2026, after which no MR ER ZREEIER o
further options will be granted, but in HEEON Z BERRAE - st i B

all other respects the provisions of this
scheme shall remain in full force and
effect in respect of any option granted
prior to the termination of this scheme
and any such option shall continue to
be exercisable in accordance with their
terms of issue.

PENSION SCHEMES

The pension schemes of the Group are primary in form of
contributions to Hong Kong’s Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
the PRC statutory public welfare fund respectively. Details of which
are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements of this

annual report.

RIKEETE

R IEAER T 2 E A&
RS LLET BIFT A H AR 1%
XENEEEREER M
ZEBPES A IRIERER
H 2 R T IATTAE

AEBZERARSFHEETZHAFADRETER
PR EIRFBEAE A S HkGT 8l - 5
BERANF &R M B RKRM T2 -

FREBRBRAF g9

2020F (B E2020F12A31HLAER)




Report of the Directors
EFEHRE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing connected transactions

1.

On 18 December 2019, Xi'an Civigas Co., Ltd. (“Xi'an
Civigas”) entered into a natural gas supply agreement (“2020-
2022 Natural Gas Supply Agreement”) with Shaanxi
Provincial Natural Gas Co., Ltd. (“Shaanxi Natural Gas") to
renew the current continuing connected transactions, pursuant
to which Shaanxi Natural Gas has agreed to supply and Xi‘an
Civigas has agreed to purchase nature gas for a term of three
years commencing for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022. The annual caps
amount for the transactions under the 2020-2022 Natural Gas
Supply Agreement for each of the three years ended/ending 31
December 2020, 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022
be RMB187,470,000, RMB206,230,000 and RMB226,870,000
respectively. Through the purchase of natural gas from Shaanxi
Natural Gas, it can stable the supply in the region Xi‘an Civigas
serve. For the year from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020,
the aggregate transactions amount was within the annual caps
amount as stated in the announcement of the Company dated
19 December 2019, details of which may refer to the respective
announcements of Company dated 15 December 2016 and 19
December 2019.

On 12 December 2018, Xi‘an Civigas Haihui New Energy
Co., Ltd. (“Xi'an Civigas Haihui”, an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary) entered into a liquefied natural gas ("LNG")
master supply agreement (“2018-2021 LNG Master Supply
Agreement”) with Xianyang Haihui New Energy Co., Ltd
(“Xianyang Haihui”), pursuant to which Xianyang Haihui
has agreed to supply and Xi'an Civigas Haihui has agreed to
purchase LNG commencing for the period from 1 October
2018 and ended 31 March 2021. The annual cap amounts
for the transactions under the 2018-2021 LNG Master Supply
Agreement for each of the three years ended 31 March 2019,
31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021 are RMB11,200,000,
RMB55,000,000 and RMB67,000,000, respectively. For the
year from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021, the aggregate
transactions amount was within the annual caps amount
as stated in the announcement of the Company dated
12 December 2018. The 2018-2021 LNG Master Supply
Agreement can provide a stable and available source of LNG
to Xi'an Civigas Haihui, details of which may refer to the
announcement of Company dated 12 December 2018.
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CONNECTED TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

Continuing connected transactions (Continued)

3.

On 31 October 2019, Xi'an Civigas Haihui entered into a LNG
Master Sales Agreement (“2019-2022 LNG Master Sales
Agreement”) with Xianyang Haihui, pursuant to which Xi‘an
Civigas Haihui has agreed to supply and Xianyang Haihui has
agreed to purchase the LNG commencing for the period of
three years from 1 November 2019 and ending 31 October
2022 (both dates inclusive). The annual cap amounts for
the transactions under the 2019-2022 LNG Master Sales
Agreement for each of the three years ended/ending 31
October 2020, 31 October 2021 and 31 October 2022 are
RMB65,200,000, RMB66,504,000 and RMB67,834,000,
respectively. For the year from 1 November 2019 to 31 October
2020, the aggregate transactions amount was within the
annual caps amount as stated in the announcement of the
Company dated 31 October 2019. The 2019-2022 LNG Master
Sales Agreement can expand and increase revenue stream of
Xi'an Civigas Haihui as well as benefit from the economics of
sales for the bulk purchase of LNG from Shaanxi Yanchang
Petroleum (Group) Co., Ltd. ("Yanchang Petroleum”), which
is one of the four domestic enterprises with oil and natural
gas exploration qualifications in the PRC and is also the main
supplier of LNG in Shaanxi Province. Xi‘an Civigas Haihui can
now purchase LNG directly from Yanchang Petroleum and thus
the demand of LNG from Xianyang Haihui has been reduced,
details of which may refer to the announcement of Company
dated 31 October 2019.

Shaanxi Natural Gas is a shareholder of Xi'an Civigas (being a 51%
owned subsidiary of the Group) holding 40% equity interests in

Xi'an Civigas, by virtue of its interests in Xi‘an Civigas, is regarded

as a connected person of the Company pursuant to chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules. Shaanxi Natural Gas is principally engaged in the

distribution and pipeline transportation of natural gas, the sale of city
gas, as well as the operation of gasification projects. It is one of the
leading natural gas providers in Shaanxi Province, China.

Report of the Directors
EFEHRE

BEERX S @

SEEERS (&)

3.

2019108318 AL H RIGIEHEF 5
YIERT S BRAL KA R FE E a5 ([2019-
2022\ RAREEEHZE]) Bt AL
PRIGEREHEMRBGEERSRER
{ERAR BH3FE2019F11 A1 BRGE
2022F10A3 1A LB (BIEEEMAB) -
RI5E2019-2022F RIb KR B AL E = 15575
#H Z£202010A31H8 2021108318 &
2022F10A3MALE=AFESFERSHH
FELRE%H A A ARKE5,200,0007T
A R #66,504,0007T & A K #67,834,000
JC° B2019411 A1H & £20205610A31
HIEFEMNRZBEERRANR2019F
10A3MBRAHRNEEFELERESE AN
2019-2022)R b RA R IE X ek ATA L+
R IE 38K K 38 N E U A SR A R (e R PR RE
ERm(EB)EREARA ([ERAM])
HERBRERARAEBIELE B
ERAMBB AR AMMNKAREEH
BEENEORDEZ — NARAEERNR
{ERAREHIER - ALh RIGER E#
MERAHRBRIERAR AR AR
BEERERERAAR FBEERNAQT A
HI A20195 10 AT H AMAEE -

PREAXARSALTR (AREFAEES i)
B — I RRER - #5 A HA0% M A BRERAR
ARAZRRzEEMRE ETRANE14ATEIR
WESARBZHABEAL RARARIENSE
DHEREBBEARAR WHRRHEEMLER
LEB - RATERAE —HAEEMLZ XA
R RER o

PRERBRQF

2020F 3R (HE2020F12A31HIENEAR)

41
o
¢
i
L]

w
S
[°]
-
9]
Q
=
(=)
Q
<=
=
Y=
o
t
o
(<%
[
4




Report of the Directors
EFEHRE

CONNECTED TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

Continuing connected transactions (Continued)

Xianyang Haihui is the other shareholder of Xi‘an Civigas Haihui
(being a 51% owned subsidiary of the Group) holding 49% equity
interests in Xi'an Civigas Haihui, by virtue of its interests in Xi'an
Civigas Haihui, is regarded as a connected person of the Company
pursuant to chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Xianyang Haihui is
a company established in the PRC with limited liability and is a
comprehensive natural gas operator which focuses on natural gas
utilisation and integrates investment in and development of LNG and
compressed natural gas (CNG) refilling stations, industrial utilisation
of natural gas (Coal to Gas, Oil to Gas) projects, LNG trading and
road transportation.

In view of the highest applicable percentage ratio of the respective
transactions under the 2020-2022 Natural Gas Supply Agreement;
the 2018-2021 LNG Master Supply Agreement and the 2019-2022
LNG Master Sales Agreement (collectively as “CCT Agreements”)
and their respective annual cap amounts under the CCT Agreements
be more than 5% as set out under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
the respective transactions under the respective CCT Agreements
were:

(i)  between the Group and a connected person at the subsidiary
level,

(i) on normal commercial terms or better, and

(iii) approved by the Board and confirmed by the independent non-
executive Directors,

that are therefore exempted from the circular (including independent
financial advice) and Shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule
14A.101(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules, but are subject to annual
review and all disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Pursuant to rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the
auditor of the Company to perform certain agreed upon procedures
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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CONN ECTED TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

Continuing connected transactions (Continued)

The auditor of the Company has issued an unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions under the CCT Agreements as disclosed by
the Group in the annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions under the CCT Agreements and confirmed that these
transactions entered into by the Group were:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the respective agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company’s shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed herein, there were no transactions which need
to be disclosed as connected transaction in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the normal
course of business are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report. In relation to those related party
transactions that also constituted connected transactions under the
Listing Rules, they are in compliance with applicable requirements
under the Listing Rules and are reported in this Annual Report in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole and any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the 9 Months Reporting Period.
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Report of the Directors
EFEHRE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Throughout the 9 Months Reporting Period and up to the date of
this report, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold, or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

CHANGES IN THE INFORMATION OF
DIRECTOR

Pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in the
information of Director since the date of Company’s 2020 interim
report is as follows:

Dr. Liu Junmin, being an independent non-executive Director,
resigned as independent non-executive director of China Huarong
Asset Management Co., Limited (stock code: 02799), shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, on 29 October
2020 and retired as independent non-executive director of Tianjin
Faw Xiali Automobile Co., Ltd. (stock code: 000927), shares of which
are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, on 9 December 2020

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have
significant impact on the Group. The Board reviews and monitors
the Group's policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements in a regular basis. Any changes in the
applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention of
relevant employees and relevant operation units from time to time.

During the 9 Months Reporting Period, to the best of the Company’s
knowledge, the Company has complied with the requirements
under memorandum of association and Bye-laws of the Company,
the Listing Rules, the SFO, the Companies Act 1981 Bermuda and
other laws applicable to the Company. Details of the Company’s
compliance with the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report contained in
the Listing Rules are provided in the Corporate Governance Report
from pages 27 to 58 of this annual report.
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AUDITOR

The Board and the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) consider that it is good corporate governance
practice to review the audit arrangement from time to time in
order to enhance the independence of the Company's auditor.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) has been holding office as
the Company’s auditor for over six years since October 2013. With
the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Shareholders
approved the appointment of Fan, Chan & Co., Limited (“Fan, Chan
& Co.") as auditor of the Company in the 2020 AGM, following the
retirement of Deloitte at the conclusion of the 2020 AGM.

Fan, Chan & Co., being the auditor of the Company, will retire and
being eligible, offers itself for re-appointment in the 2021 AGM. A
resolution for the re-appointment of Fan, Chan & Co. as auditor of

the Company will be proposed at the 2021 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Fan Fangyi
Managing and Executive Director

Beijing, 23 April 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B3 % BB 3R

6 R A st AT TR A
Fan, Chan & Co. Limited

To the Shareholders of
Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chinese
People Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages
82 to 269, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the nine-month period then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the nine-month period then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
3% 3L 4% BB 3R

EAEETSE
WREH SRR RER PN E LN RAKA
BEAHBRENEN BAEBHEE- B S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were  BERAEKRFIBABRBEAVHHELRLEERK
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial ETEEN BT SHELFHERHEBNE
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we Bo

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANETNAHRARENETRETRE

Impairment assessment of goodwill of Group’s subsidiaries

B E BB 2 7] A 6 B A

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s
impairment assessment of goodwill of Group’'s
subsidiaries included:

BN EBEEBHAEE B AR 2B ETREN G
FEi R e

We identified annual impairment assessment of goodwill
of Group’s subsidiaries as a key audit matter due to the
involvement of significant judgements and assumptions in
determining the recoverable amounts of cash generating
units (“CGUs") to which goodwill have been allocated, which
are derived from value in use calculations using discounted

cash flow models.

HMRAE BESBEMNBARCEHEFEREBENGA —BER
B FE AREBEE O ENENHeEAEN ([ReE
EEBA]) 2 AT B RERS R E AN A R B EE AR
RERERFEERAEB-

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s goodwill are allocated
to respective CGU relating to cylinder gas supply operation
in the Peoples’ Republic of China (the “PRC") amounting to
approximately RMB9,221,000. Details are disclosed in notes 4
and 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
R20205F12A318 EBREZHECHIEEEERTEA
RAME ([HE])BEERREREE XS ReELENL €
BMAORARKE,221,0007T - FIFNAERE M BB MR E4K%19
WEE -

Understanding the Group's impairment
assessment process, including the impairment
model, basis of allocation of goodwill to CGUs,
the preparation of the cash flow projections
("Cashflow Forecasts”) and key management
assumptions adopted in these Cashflow Forecasts
through enquiries with the management;
FRABABTEE B SRERETHBER
BRERBERE BB ETREEABM IEE.
mEnensBA([(RERBEA]) KRNZE
RemnsRAKA s BRERRR:

Challenging the appropriateness of the key
assumptions adopted by the management in
the Cashflow Forecasts, such as the budgeted
gross margin, discount rates and forecast growth
rates applied and comparing them with available
market data and our knowledge of the current
market development in the PRC;
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B3 % BB 3R

KEY AUDlT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

MEEITEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill of Group’s subsidiaries

BEEENE 2 5] B R R B

Management'’s assessment of goodwill impairment is highly e
judgmental and is dependent on certain significant inputs
including the growth rates, budgeted gross margin and
discount rates applied, all of which vary based on the relevant e
industry growth and management’s expectation for the
market development of cylinder gas supply operation in the
PRC. .
EIEH R ERE A BIRY R E ARG - Wz EEUR
RETERBARE BREEAMNERR BEENER
AR A2 EHFURNBRTRER R EEEY T E
BEMRAFEERBOTISFMETRDR -

As disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, impairment loss of approximately RMB7,064,000
has been recognised against the goodwill allocated to
cylinder gas supply operation for the nine months ended 31
December 2020.

HINAR S BTSRRI TR 19FT B ER - MELE20205F12 8318 1k
NEA ERsREEERRHEREE 2 BERBRERE
#) AR ¥7,064,0007T ©

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANFTNAHRARETERETRE

Comparing the historical cash flows forecast
against the performance of CGUs to test the
accuracy of management’s projections; and
RBENRSRERANERSELBMHRIRE
TR AREEERERL &

Reviewing the Cashflow Forecasts by stress testing
key assumptions, assessing the impact on the
sensitivity analysis, and understanding the degree
to which assumptions would need to move before
impairment would be triggered.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B3 % BB R

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Fan, Chan & Co. Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Leung Kwong Kin
Practising Certificate Number: P03702

Hong Kong, 23 April 2021

e BT e I iREK
ERENET @

e Bt EEEARERAXBIDINUBEHR
ERER EENENRE LWHERAWH
BRERBA-BRMAAERE ZENH
17 BERENEFIE - RAARKMNE
AEARAERAEE

BREMmEIRN RMEIRIEEER T EME
HE KREZHE EXEAFERSER SEKM
FEZRET R 38 Bl H A BB 22 Il 1 £ 7] = K IBRPA

BATFREERRER  FARMECTAEH
BYMHERERBERER  WRMFIERER
EEAEMRR RS ERMBULIENE BEM
HEE UREERBRT HEREERRE
TR A BRI TTE

R EERBNEIRT B EMLERY
AMGEMBRRNBARASER  AMEKEH
REF R - HMEXBENREP R ELER
BRIDERZER I A AFARBELEFSTE  ER
WERNBAT EEEEBEEHRERMRETE
EXREEMERNBARRBESBEBEEENR
[z BB T EELBER T ERS P EEZ
ek

SEREFETERLE
HEEATED

RS
HMEFZERS : P03702

&8 20214 H23H

TRERERAT g1

2020F 3R (B E2020F12A31HLEAER)

=
Io
v
<
15
=
('S

Big




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

maiR

B Bl 2 U &2 3R

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020512H31H 9@ A

Nine months

ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
HZ2020% B E2020%F
128318 1 3A3181E
98 A FE
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
B sE AR%ETR AREFTT
(Restated)
(2%)
Revenue WA 5 1,747,553 2,232,600
Cost of sales and services SHE MBRIEAL A (1,460,923) (1,849,905)
Gross profit EH 286,630 382,695
Impairment losses under the expected ~ TEEIEEEE ([BHEEEER])E
credit loss (“ECL"”) model, net of A T2 REBE &L
reversal 7 5,293 (2,538)
Other gains and losses Hfth Y 25 % &5 48 8 (4,900) (18,446)
Other income H AU A 9 38,446 26,921
Finance costs B B AR 12 (7,493) (11,440)
Selling and distribution expenses HEMDHEAY (110,674) (147,316)
Administrative expenses THAX (88,938) (122,414)
Share of results of associates =N E S 16,401 26,336
Share of results of joint ventures BIEAELEXER 33,993 108,367
Profit before tax 754 A1l 7l 168,758 242,165
Income tax expense FTSHiFA S 13 (24,057) (25,644)
Profit for the period year AERF 25 A 10 144,701 216,521
Other comprehensive income (expense) AHifE,/ FEHME2ERA (1)
for the period/year
Items that will not be reclassified HE B reEms 2B
subsequently to profit or loss: A :
Fair value change on equity BAREFAEMEERS ([
instruments at fair value through DNAESARMEERE]) 2
other comprehensive income BaIlAsAnBEES (KRE
("FVTOCI") net of tax FE) 29,561 (3,136)
Fair value change upon W BERE 1%5’\5% aR
reclassification of property, plant RENMER L AR EE
and equipment to investment
properties - 25
Other comprehensive income (expense) ANHIf, /FEEME2EEA (ZH)
for the period/year 29,561 (3,111)
Total comprehensive income for the AERE,/ FEEERALE
period/year 174,262 213,410
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HERZRRAt2ERRER

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #Z%E2020512H831H9@A

Nine months
ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
%2020 B E2020%F
128318 1t 3A3181E
98 A FE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBTT
(Restated)
(2%)
Profit for the period/year attributable to: T3l fE{G AR EARS /& Z % 7l :
Owners of the Company ZAN/NCIE RN 107,906 182,629
Non-controlling interests TR E R 36,795 33,892
144,701 216,521
Total comprehensive income THIEG 2 2 ER A B -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZN/NGIEZZEDN 138,548 180,227
Non-controlling interests FEIERR 2 35,714 33,183
174,262 213,410
Earnings per share FRRAH RMB AR RMB AR
— basic —ER 1.21 cents 5 2.04 cents
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MK &R

At 31 December 2020 #2020F12H831H

At At At
31 December 31 March 1 April
2020 2020 2019
720205 20204 20194
128318 3A31H 4818
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
B 5 ARBT T AREETF T AREEF T
(Restated) (Restated)
(&) (&%)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB Mk 16 869,075 820,866 799,060
Right-of-use assets HERESE 17 103,172 91,884 85,141
Investment properties "EYE 18 11,100 16,780 16,190
Goodwill GES 19 9,221 7,064 20,658
Intangible assets mILAE 20 22,040 23,138 24,367
Interests in associates R & A )2 21 121,810 126,726 117,650
Interests in joint ventures REBERE L Ex 22 1,289,250 1,269,685 1,166,112
Deferred tax assets R IAE E 34 4,605 4,274 4,030
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BRARES AEME
HlmzERT A 23 167,780 132,946 136,216
Long-term deposits EHfi%e 24 33,042 26,952 20,648
2,631,095 2,520,315 2,390,072
Current assets REBEE
Inventories GE 25 51,587 44,390 46,031
Trade, bills and other Z5- Tﬁ%&ﬁ’rﬁlfgqﬁ
receivables and prepayments SRIB A R FEAT 26 223,649 175,555 212,421
Contract assets BHEE 31 15,403 21,007 13,579
Amount due from a joint B —EEERER
venture | 27 - 15,310 14,498
Financial assets at fair value BAREAERE
through profit or loss ([1&AD feEzt A B
(“FVTPL") w2 eRMEE 28 - 201,942 =
Bank balances and cash RITHEHBERE 29 614,866 276,796 441,360
905,505 735,000 727,889
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 Ik H A FE T 5RIR 30 269,907 201,426 191,061
Contract liabilities AEHEE 31 237,850 165,293 173,141
Tax liabilities HBEAE 45,750 41,266 39,826
Lease liabilities HEAE 32 5,596 6,347 4,602
Amount due to an associate JEH il ESl/NETE
27 46 1,589 131
Amount due to a joint venture fﬁ MaB&rEER
18 - = 189
Bank borrowings — due within WITEE——FA
one year EI| HA 33 77,500 66,700 128,490
636,649 482,621 537,440
Net current assets RBEEFE 268,856 252,379 190,449
Total assets less current liabilities 2 EERAB ARG 2,899,951 2,772,694 2,580,521
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEMERAEE

At 31 December 2020 20205 12H31H

At At At
31 December 31 March 1 April
2020 2020 2019
720204 20204 20194
12A31H 3A31H 4H1H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®ET AREETIT AREFIT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E731)) (Z5)
Capital and reserves MR AR 1% 15
Share capital % A< 35 564,507 564,507 564,507
Reserves fb 1 2,025,692 1,888,104 1,707,877
Equity attributable to owners AT #EE AEGER
of the Company 2,590,199 2,452,611 2,272,384
Non-controlling interests FERE R 50 236,087 207,781 217,595
Total equity 48 R 2 2,826,286 2,660,392 2,489,979
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Bank borrowings — due after BRITEE——F%
one year 2| 8 33 21,916 65,000 43,750
Lease liabilities HEAR 32 19,135 21,556 20,075
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIABE 34 32,614 25,746 26,717
73,665 112,302 90,542
2,899,951 2,772,694 2,580,521

The consolidated financial statements on page 82 to 269 were  HNF82ZE269H XA MKHRERCDEEST SR
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 2021 F4R23E L ERRETE  WHIATREK
April 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: #=E:
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Dr. Mo Shikang Mr. Fan Fangyi

Director Director
BEttEEt BHELE
Ea 4
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
CREKEDXR

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #, £20205F12H831H 1L91E A

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRREAARGRS
Surplus Investment Property Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Contributed Teserve Deemed Capital  revaluation  valuation Other Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve surplus fund  contribution ~ contribution reserve reserve reserve  eamings Total interests Total

RE  NRGE
BA  Bf#ER  RAGE  MABR BHARE  BEER IARE EGER BF  RtEE  REE it FERER it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARKTT ARMTT ARETR ARETI ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR

(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Restated) (Note d) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(Wita)  (Wib) (M) (E51) (Hfitd) (&5)) (&5) (&51)
At 1 April 2019 ®201954A18
As previously reported FE 564,507 1,003,995 2,086 92,665 121,652 26,628 71 19,308 = 6,657 347,194 2192413 217,595 2,410,008
Prior year adjustments (Note 51) BEEEEE (M) - - - - - - - 74440 - - 5531 79971 - 79971
As restated REES 564,507 1,003,995 2,086 92,665 121,652 26,628 11 93,748 - 6,657 352,725 2,272,384 217,595 2,489,979
Profit for the year TEFER - o o = = = = = = = 182,629 182,629 33892 216,521
Fair value change on equity instruments at A B AL 2 EME
FVTOC (Restated) LRRIEZDAERY
(&51) = - - - - - - 3011 - - - 3om) (048) (3,959)
Income tax relating to fair value change £ 2 izt A K fh 2
on equity instruments at FVTOCI JERIEIDABEDE
(Restated) B2eH (&5)) = - - - - - - 589 - - - 589 34 83
Fair value change upon recassification ~ #1%+ R RABREHHE
of property, plant and equipment to  ERENER 204 EED
investment properties - - - - - - - - 20 - - 20 5 25
Total comprehensive income for the year A%/ 2 Mz E
(Restated) (&51) = = = = = = = 2422 20 - 182,629 180,227 33,183 213410
Appropriations L] - - - - 19,298 - - - - - (19,298) - - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 40) W -EMELF (:140) - - - - - - - - - - - - 1012 1,012
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 1 F3E# Rz 2 B8
of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - - (44,069) (44,069)
At31 March 2020 (Restated) and R202053A318 (231 R
at 1 April 2020 202054818 564,507 1,003,995 2,086 92,665 140,950 26,628 11 91,326 20 6,657 516,05 2452611 207,781 2,660,392
Profit for the period it byl - - - - - - - - - - 107,906 107,906 36,795 144,701
Fair value change on equity instruments at 24 Exf ARt 2 B2
0] BHETAZRAEED - - - - - - - 35883 - - - 35,843 (1.442) 34,401
Income tax relating to fair value change £ 2 3 A K fh 2
on equity instruments at FVTOCI JERIEIDABEDE
BZRER - - - - - - - (5,201) - - - (5,201) 361 (4,840)
Tota comprefensiveincome for the period 73478 2 4% - - = - = = - 0 - - 07906 13858 B4 174282
Appropriations % - - - - 2328 - - - - - (22,328) - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 40) WK EAR (K0 - - - - - - - - - - - - 26,156 26,156
Acquisition of additional interestina W —TMB L ABIMERS
subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - (960) (960) (481) (1,441)
Dividends paid to non-controllng interests ¥ fi B 2 F3E MR 2
of subsidaries e - - - - - - - - - - - - (33,083) (33,083)
At 31 December 2020 R2020512A318 564,507 1,003,995 2,086 92,665 163,278 26,628 111 121,968 20 6,657 600674 2,590,199 236,087 2,826,286
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Notes:

Consolidated Statement Of Changes In Equity

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

Capital reserve was recognised as a result of acquisition of additional
interest in an associate which became a subsidiary.

Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal value
of the Company's share capital issued as consideration in exchange for the
nominal value of the issued share capital of the subsidiaries acquired at the
time of the Company's listing in 1997.

The articles of association of the Company's subsidiaries incorporated in
the People's Republic of China (the “PRC" OR "China”) state that they
should make an appropriation of 10% of their profit for the period/year
(prepared under generally accepted accounting principles in the PRC) each
year to the surplus reserve fund until the balance reaches 50% of the paid-
in capital. The surplus reserve fund shall only be used for making good
losses, capitalisation into paid-in capital and expansion of their production
and operation.

The other reserve of the Group represents the effect arising from the
change in the Group's equity interest on existing subsidiary without losing
control.

g

(a)

(o)

U R — B 2 R R ERSMER (EK A — K
BT MERNE R -

B\ B 54T RN B PR 1997 4 1 T B A DA 1 USRS B
BARMRERTETZAQRRONKRAEE
HZENBARE BT ZRAMER R Z58 -

ARRABRAPEARKNE ([FE])EMEL 2
MEBARZEAESRARINR BEASSEF
Bz EEaM (RETE-—RARSTRABE)
ZI0%ERERBRNES EERBEINMAE
K2Z50% - BHABESETARBEESE BN
CEEFANERANRBEREEEREE -

REEz EtFEEASBRREME DR 2K
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #EHZ2020F12H31H1L9{@A

Nine months
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ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
B8 Z2020%F HZ2020%
12A31H 1t 3A3181E
9fE A FE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReETH
Profit before tax i A1 i 7 168,758 242,165
Adjustments for: B TRFIIBE EH AR
Share of results of joint ventures BEEELERER (33,993) (108,367)
Share of results of associates JEHBE R R EE (16,401) (26,336)
Bank interest income RATHBWA (2,919) (2,665)
Interest income from loan to a joint venture RE—BEELEZERFERA (665) (665)
Interest income from financial assets at FVTPL RAREFABR SREE 2 FSHBA (6,415) (5,400)
Fair value change of financial assets at FVTPL BARE A BB eREEZ AR EE 1,164 (1,122)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz W - (151)
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BEREEz (W) BiE
equipment (9,534) 411
Fair value loss of investment properties BREMERNREER 5,680 -
Gain on re-measurement of pre-existing interest in =~ EFFIERN—HAELER
a joint venture and an associate —[HEE R A RE BN (1,111) =
Bargain purchase gain on acquisition of a subsidiary Ut — RIPH B A A1 (8 W BB e 25 (1,513)
Amortisation of intangible assets BHEEVEE 1,098 1,229
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - -BERRERTE 39,774 54,084
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 7,382 8,044
Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill  BEEER 2 REERE 7,064 13,594
Premium charged for the NEEQ status arising on R RGeS EE 2
acquisition Wi EE A - 6,460
(Reversal of) impairment losses in respect of trade & 5 & H fth e Ye 5778 ~ R E B 18
and other receivables (#E) (5,293) 2,538
Finance costs B FE B AR 7,493 11,440
Operating cash flows before movements in BEESEYN o KE
working capital RemE 160,569 195,259
(Increase) decrease in inventories TE (m)md (3,969) 6,461
(Increase) decrease in trade, bills and other 25 EEREMBKRIEAR
receivables and prepayments B FRIE (380) % (3,042) 36,970
Increase in amount due from a joint venture e — A & 1 3 FRIAEIE hN - (1,008)
Decrease (increase) in contract assets BHEERD (M) 5,604 (7,428)
Increase in amounts due from non-controlling JRE M BfT /B8  B) FEFR AR i 2 2 FRIAIE N
interests of subsidiaries (3,774) -
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities AHEBEMCRD) 71,717 (7,848)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 K E S ZRIE IS N 36,775 12,446
Increase (decrease) in amount due to a non- B —FNB AR TR ER 2
controlling interest of a subsidiary IR OB D) 256 (630)
Decrease in amount due to an associate JE A — I & A BRI (43) (73)
Cash generated from operations REXBELERS 264,093 234,149
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid ERFREREMGR (18,548) (24,596)
Net cash generated from operating activities REEXBELRLFHE 245,545 209,553




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FeRBeNER

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

Nine months

ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
HZ2020F H 22020
12A31H 1t 3A3181E
9f& A FE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARBETIT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B E Y% « BiE K& H (62,450) (81,831)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WM BEREER
plant and equipment and right-of-use CREEEZENES
assets (24,486) (12,197)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, including WEHMBAR BEIZKA
transaction costs 18,079 (5,802)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AT - 1,657
Purchase of equity instruments at FVTOCI BERAABEFAEMEEKE 2
aTH (433) (689)
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BERQAEFAERZEREE (669,682) (1,084,000)
Redemption of financial assets at FVTPL BEOEAAEFAEBRZEREE 870,460 883,180
Addition of right-of-use assets EIEREEE (9,244) (276)
Dividend received from associates L& ENET) 95N 19,338 17,260
Dividend received from joint ventures BREERERE - 4,794
Advance to non-controlling interests RIEE IR B 2 B K - (2,652)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and H&E¥ % BE KR EFTEHE
equipment 21,549 3,818
Interest received from a non-controlling Bl — BB AR FEERER 2 F 2
interest of a subsidiary - 38
Interest received on financial assets at FVTPL  BUIE AR ETABR SRIEEZFIE 6,415 5,400
Interest received from banks BEWIRITH B 2,919 2,665
Interest received from a joint venture BR—BEELENE 665 665
Net cash generated from (used in) investing & EBES (FTA) 2H & F58
activities 173,130 (267,970)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Proceed from disposal of partial interest FFHE W EREIEGE KB
in a subsidiary without losing control in NEE D HE = 2 T 3R
previous year - 1,449
New bank borrowings raised FTESHIBTIEE 71,591 86,700
Repayment of bank borrowings BEETEE (103,875) (127,240)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests of {5 {8 A Al JEiR i 428 2 ik &
subsidiaries (33,083) (44,969)
Repayment to non-controlling interests RTS8 K (53) (4,570)
Acquisition of additional interest in a Y g — R MY B A ) 2 B SRS
subsidiary (1,441) _
(Repayment to) advance from an associate A —EH& A 7] (BR) B (1,500) 1,500
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEAE (4,751) (7,577)
Interest paid EAFE (7,493) (11,440)
Net cash used in financing activities BEFDMAZRASFE (80,605) (106,147)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEeEBaRER

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

Nine months
ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
HZ2020F B=2020%
12A31H 1 3A318 1
918 A FE
NOTE RMB'000 RMB’000
i AR¥T R ARBF T
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash ReFR&SEEBEMN ORD)
equivalents it 338,070 (164,564)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 8],/ ¥R & KE L SEEE
the period/year 276,796 441,360
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the B/ FXHeRBALEEEE
period/year, represented by bank balances ~ MBTESH RIS 27
and cash 29 614,866 276,796
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in 8 M B | R

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #EZ2020512H31H 9@ A

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 1. —fBER

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”)
is an exempted company with limited liability incorporated
in Bermuda on 13 November 1996. On 24 April 1997, the
Company'’s shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
address of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate
Information” of the Company’s annual report.

The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company is
Ping Da Development Limited, which is jointly owned by Dr. Mo
Shikang and Miss Mo Yunbi, who are the executive directors of
the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) piped gas transmission
and distribution including provision of piped gas, construction
of gas pipelines and the operation of city gas pipeline network;
(ii) the cylinder gas supply; (iii) distribution of gas and (iv)
fast moving consumer goods (“FMCG"”) and food ingredients
supply business including the operation of chain stores
including supermarkets and convenience stores in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC"). The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 49.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”).

Change of financial year end date

During the current financial period, the financial year end date
of the Company was changed from 31 March to 31 December
to align with the financial year end date of the Company's
principal operating subsidiaries established in PRC for which
their accounts are statutorily required to be prepared with
a financial year end date of 31 December. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements for the current period covers
the nine months period ended 31 December 2020 (the "9
Months Reporting Period”). The corresponding comparative
figures shown for the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity, consolidated statement of cash flows and
related notes cover a twelve-month period from 1 April 2019
to 31 March 2020 (the “Previous Year”) and therefore may
not be comparable with amounts shown for the 9 Months
Reporting Period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current period

The Group has applied the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Definition of Material
HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform

The application of the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current period has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current period and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (lIHKFRSS”> (Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19 Related Rent
Concessions

The Group has early applied the Amendment to HKFRS 16,
COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions.

For rent concessions relating to lease contracts that occurred
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic, the
Group has elected to apply the practical expedient not to
assess whether the change is a lease modification if all of the
following conditions are met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

° any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same way
it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 “Leases”
if the changes were not a lease modification. Forgiveness or
waiver of lease payments are accounted for as variable lease
payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the
amounts forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment
recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which the
event occurs. The Group has early adopted the amendment in
the current accounting period. The application has no impact
to the opening retained earnings at 1 April 2020. The Group
recognised changes in lease payments that resulted from rent
concessions of approximately RMB1,208,000 in the profit or
loss for the 9 Months Reporting Period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FMEMBERRME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (lIHKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the
Related Amendments?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4  Reform — Phase 2!
and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
Related Amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)°

Property, Plant and Equipment-
Proceeds before Intended
Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020?

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (”HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

b Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

The directors anticipate that the application of the above new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
and investment properties that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange of goods and services.
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristic of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 "Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

For investment properties which are transferred at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be
used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition the results
of the valuation technique equals the transaction price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #Z2020%F12H31HLL9EA

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

PO LlC | ES (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The significant accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the
Company:

° has the power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

3 has the ability to use its power affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the period/year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's relevant components
of equity including reserves and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant reserves
between the Group and the non-controlling interests according
to the Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities attributable to
the owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e., reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income
Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment” at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets
held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are measured
in accordance with that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as defined
in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new leases
at the acquisition date, except for leases for which (a)
the lease term ends within 12 months of the acquisition
date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low value. Right-
of-use assets are recognised and measured at the same
amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect
favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease when
compared with market terms.
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Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specified in another HKFRS.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date, and the resulting gain or loss,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have been recognised
in other comprehensive income and measured under HKFRS
9 would be accounted for on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had disposed directly of the previously
held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.
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When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to the
financial assets and financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the
basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase
gain.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
associate and joint venture is described below.

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures used
for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of
the associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or
a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate
or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.
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An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition
of the investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess
of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of
assets), profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests
in the associate or joint venture that are not related to the
Group.

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TESFTBER )
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) EEEHWA (&)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over W& NHE A — IR - P R R S
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction B mBRAS2ZETHIEERAE FRE
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following JE BE Ry A FE R -

criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the e RASBRAR BFREISILE
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the AARSBERELOMEHF
Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset s AFAEBEWBAEERME -—BHEE:
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or MZBAEERASERAORAHAEFIE

il 5 5k

e the Group's performance does not create an asset with e AEBEMNBAHYAREEAHAEEA
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an ERAEMEE BASEHESE
enforceable right to payment for performance completed SERK B #9805 AL ) 98 I T R
to date. Ao

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the BRI WASEREFESTESNEmIR

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service. O HI R E R — R B R o

Performance obligations for contracts with customers EERAMELE T

The Group recognises revenue from the following sources: REBERBE N THRIRAHHBA :

1) Piped gas transmission and distribution 1) EERRBR
The Group sells natural gas to customers through REBFREBERNTFHERAR "
pipelines, including both residential households and PEIEERANIBERF-EBE g%
commercial and industrial customers. Revenue is AARBEERTP UREFPFEMR®E - [
recognised when the piped natural gas is transferred to AlgBRRA BEEMRERTER Ns
and consumed by customers of which the volume of gas KPR AT E -

sold is measured by gas meters installed at customer sites.
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Construction and installation

The Group provides construction and installation service
under construction contracts with its customers. Such
contracts are entered into for customers to gain access to
the Group’s gas pipelines. Revenue is recognised over time
based on the completion status of respective construction.
The construction period is typically less than one year.
The management considers that this input method is an
appropriate measure of the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation.

Cylinder gas supply

The Group also sell liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG") to
customers by tank containers, including both residential
households and commercial and industrial customers.
Revenue is recognised when control of LPG has
transferred, being when the LPG has been bulk delivered
to the customers’ specific location.

Gas distribution

The Group also sell liquefied natural gas (“LNG") and
compressed natural gas (“CNG") to commercial and
industrial customers. Revenue is recognised when control
of CNG/LNG has transferred, being when CNG/LNG has
been delivered to the customers.

FMCG and food ingredients supply

The Group also sell merchandise to customers through
supermarket and convenience stores. Revenue is
recognised when control of the merchandise has
transferred, being when the goods has been passed to
the customers.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers
(Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on input method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs
to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the
total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

Existence of significant financing component

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer
of the associated goods or services is less than one year, the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
transaction price for any significant financing component.

Lease

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16
at inception or modification date. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMEBERERME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Lease (Continued)

The Group as a lessee

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted for on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial
statements would not differ materially from individual leases
within the portfolio.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of various offices, warehouses, equipment and
vehicles that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; and

3 any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Lease (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under HKFRS
9 “Financial Instruments” and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date.

The lease payments include fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever the lease term has changed.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for a
lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FMEMBERRME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Lease (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications (Continued)

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for a
lease modification as a separate lease if: (Continued)

° the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Lease for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Lease (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)
Classification and measurement of leases (Continued)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purpose (other than construction in progress
as described below) are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost or fair value as deemed cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMEBERERME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Properties, pipelines and other assets in the course of
construction for production, supply or administrative purposes
are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs
include professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or deemed
cost of assets other than construction in progress less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the assets. Any gain or loss
arising on disposal and retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Buildings under development for future owner-occupied
purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the amount of
prepaid lease payments released during the construction period
is included as part of costs of buildings under construction.
Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are
in the location and condition necessary for them to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management).

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-
of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of financial
position. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest
in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties are
initially measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties
are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

If an investment property becomes an item of property, plant
and equipment because its use has changed as evidenced by
commencement of owner-occupation, the property's deemed
cost for subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use.
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An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss rising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment of property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
(other than goodwill) below).

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where they
satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their fair values
can be measured reliably. The cost of such intangible assets is
their fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent to initial
recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TESFTBER )
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Inventories =7E

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable FEZKA R EEFECREET R 77
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out B AREREASL T AEE - ] B35 FEIE
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling FEZEFTEERMMA T T IRA K
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and THHEMPVEAZKA -

costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use ME - BERIZE CRAREEREBLEE
assets and intangible assets (other than goodwill) (BEERIN) RE

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the NEBRESHR  AEERASEBEEERF
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with REVET RELEENREE  NEEES
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication ENRBRZEEEDHERERSE - WF
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such AR SR - Bl EH AR R & 2 89 AT Y )
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset B NETREBEENREE (0F) -

is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment

loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, ME HELRE CREEERETLEE
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated BRI [l S R E B A o B EE B A E
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable ENFKEE5E  AIREB S M ZEEM
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable BReESEMA KD SE -

amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that N REESHEEENRBRAREE

corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, Al RE BB BT M EB AR

corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating EASHAE SO REEZBRAT  AF

units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can EENESEEENREeEEEMN DI

be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest ZA A BEFE I REEAENR/NESE

group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and A B4R - 28

consistent allocation basis can be identified. g &=
f=

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs TRELEARABEREERARERE B

to disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the BEFRHREE T HFEAEER BT REK

estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present ReRFARMERMSHEEKEER

value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market REE (KBReEEBM) 2 FERRTE

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to BB AR IR R ERIRE - st KRB

the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of TR AR B o

future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMEBERERME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then
to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised as expense immediately in profit
or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, such that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= & B %5 30 R 0 o

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income ("OCI") if that equity investment is neither held
for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset (which comprises the
gross carrying amount less any impairment allowance) from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no longer
credit impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in OCI and accumulated
in the investment revaluation reserve; and are not subject
to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will
not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will continue to be held in the investment
revaluation reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income” line item in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMEBERERME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains and losses”
line item.

Impairment of financial assets (and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9)

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
on financial assets (including trade and bills receivables,
other receivables, amount due from a joint venture, and
bank balances) and other items (contract assets and financial
guarantee contracts) which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime
ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group always recognise lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and contract assets from initial recognition until derecognition.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for the credit
impaired balances and based on provision matrix for the
remaining balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #Z2020%F12H31HLL9EA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EEESFTBER @
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (and other items subject to 2HEERE (RIBIEEEBHBHEERE
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9) (Continued) 9 A FREFEZEMELR) (&)
For all other financial assets at amortised cost, the Group R EHEMRBHEK AT EZCREEM
measures the loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless T ASEFEBERFERSN2E A TER
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since FEEEE RIEEFEERR B VIRERAR
initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime BEEN EREATASEERERTELNE
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be HEEEE =R ERRAZNHEREEE
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or BT AT ER B VIR R A REAEEL
risk of a default occurring since initial recognition. Z T BE I ok R B B FEEE I N o
(i) Significant increase in credit risk () (EERRKREZEM
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased FEEERBBRERARE R E
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares EENE - AEEeReR T ARR
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument SHEBRLEZANERESRE T AR
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default IRERE A EARNNRBREITL
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of RoEETEBANER AEEeEER
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group AGEBEUENEEMEEER 21
considers both quantitative and qualitative information BT LR R BANH AN ER A
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical BN ESRIRIEEER -

experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into HEgms -
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased 2 n %@%)ﬁJ«ATﬁﬂ-
significantly:
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e an actual or expected significant deterioration in SR TEINE (E)HABE
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or BEFSNERKEREESL:
internal credit rating;

e  significant deterioration in external market . EERBENIINI TS EERER
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in e - 1§|J ZID BHEANEEREZ &
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for BENEHERBE LA
the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business, o  MEFE @B HIRIE
financial or economic conditions that are expected SENEHAERENBE TR
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability K IR B TR HEA N R &1L

to meet its debt obligations;
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9) (Continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; or

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

(i)  Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

122 Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
2020 Annual Report (For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020)

Es

ZEFTBRG

pill

EHREERE (RREZEHNHHREERE
I A FHREFEZREMEER) (&)

(i)

(ii)

SEEREZEN(E)

s EBAREXGEERNBHEE
CY R

s EBAMEE QEBEARMRE
BERKBHNEZETHEE
EREHAEERENBE T F-

Eiwm LA E R AEER
RGN AREB0R - AEER
[\ B B AR FERR A SRR E R N - BR IE
AELEARER RS R b b R =R
mey BRI SEER RIVER

AEEEHERIREEERRED
BERNAABEEZRR YR EE
BRETBBRE NERELEHR
FEBRAEREERBRBEZEM-

BHER

PRABEERREREMS AEER
A BOFEHEABFEXLERB IR
R E) B R RN B H5 A KA BE AR B
FEGEEA (BEAKE)ER R
RASE AR EAERRR) BEE-

Tim bt AEERR  BHONERE
EBMEE0RRZLE  RIEANEE
BREAEEMBTREINFERNED
SEERRE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9) (Continued)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9) (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

o Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's
trade and other receivables are each assessed as a
separate group. Loans to related parties are assessed
for ECL on an individual basis);

o Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9) (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset
(which is the gross carrying amount less any impairment
allowance).

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade and
other receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’'s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, amounts
due to an associate and a joint venture, bank borrowings) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of
a debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group is initially
measured at its fair value and if not designated as at FVTPL,
are subsequently measured at the higher of: (i) the amount of
the loss allowance determined in accordance with HKFRS 9;
and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation. Amount initially recognised is
amortised over the duration of the guarantee using the
straight-line method.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, when it transfers
the financial assets and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets to another entity. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
period/year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates and joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amounts of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising
from investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the directors of the Company have reviewed
the Group’s investment properties portfolios and concluded
that the Group’s investment properties are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on investment
properties, the directors of the Company have determined
that the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted. Accordingly, deferred taxation
in relation to the Group’s investment properties has been
measured based on the tax consequences of recovering the
carrying amounts entirely through use.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 "Income Taxes” requirements to the leasing transaction
as a whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess
of depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement and on the
retranslation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMEBERERME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) and the retirement funds scheme managed by local
social security bureau in accordance with the government
regulations of the PRC are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another
HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POL'C'ES (Continued)

Equity settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees and directors

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
directors are measured at the fair value of share options
granted at the date of grant and is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share-based compensation reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share-based compensation
reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based compensation reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share-based
compensation reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report, the directors of the Company are required to
make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on the historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNC ERTA'NT'ES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainties

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainties at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

(@) Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible
assets

Determining whether goodwill and intangible assets are
impaired requires estimation of the recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less cost of disposal and value in use. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash generating
unit (“CGU") and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. The discount rate represents
the rate that reflects the current market assessment of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the future cash flow estimates have not been
adjusted. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As
at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of goodwill
and intangible assets are approximately RMB9,221,000
(31 March 2020: RMB7,064,000) and approximately
RMB22,040,000 (31 March 2020: RMB23,138,000)
respectively. Impairment loss of approximately
RMB7,064,000 (the Previous Year: RMB 13,594,000) was
recognised for goodwill during the 9 Months Reporting
Period with details set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNC ERTA'NT'ES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Assessment of economic useful lives of property,
plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over
their economic useful lives. The assessment of estimated
useful life of an item of property, plant and equipment
is a matter of judgment based on the experience of the
Group, taking into account factors such as technological
progress, changes in market demand, expected usage
and physical wear and tear. Useful lives are periodically
reviewed for continued appropriateness. Due to long lives
of these assets, changes to the estimates used can result
in variations in their carrying amounts and depreciation
charges recognised in respect of the assets. As at 31
December 2020, the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment is approximately RMB869,075,000 (31
March 2020: RMB820,866,000).

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise
judgment and make estimation, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the recovery of the asset's carrying
value; (2) whether the carrying amount of an asset can
be supported by the recoverable amount, and in the
case of value in use, whether the net present value of
future cash flows are estimated based upon the net cash
inflows expected to be generated from continued use
of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in estimating the recoverable amounts
including estimation of future cash flow projections and
an appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset
(including right-of-use assets), the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the assets
belongs. Changing the assumptions and estimates,
including the discount rates or the growth rate in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test. As at 31
December 2020, the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets are approximately
RMB869,075,000 (31 March 2020: RMB820,866,000)
and approximately RMB103,172,000 (31 March 2020:
RMB91,884,000) respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FMEMBERRME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNC ERTA'NT'ES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Provision of ECL for financial assets measured at
amortised cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost with
significant balances or which are credit-impaired are
assessed for ECL. In addition, the Group uses provision
matrix to calculate ECL for the trade receivables. The
provision matrix is based on the Group’s historical
default rates taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable and
available without undue costs or effort. At the end of
each reporting period, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. The provision of ECL is
sensitive to the changes in estimates. The information
about the ECL and the Group’s trade and other
receivables are disclosed in notes 37(b) and 26 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report
respectively.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's unquoted
equity instruments amounting to approximately
RMB167,780,000 (31 March 2020: RMB132,946,000) are
measured at fair value with fair value being determined
based on significant unobservable inputs using valuation
techniques. Judgement and estimation are required in
establishing the relevant valuation techniques and the
relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions relating
to these factors could result in material adjustments to
the fair value of these instruments. See note 37(c) to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report for
further disclosures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

5. REVENUE 5. It A
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (i) BEFEHNHNBADN
customers

Nine months

ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
H%20205F H=2020%F
128318 1t 3A31H 1k
9offl A FE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARETIT
(Restated)
Edl

Types of goods or services MR ER
Sales of piped gas EEMRREE 442,859 583,993
Piped gas connection EEMRER 102,049 146,524
Cylinder gas supply I 2 A SR A 575,831 805,537
Gas distribution R 88 540,329 552,322
FMCG and food ingredients supply R HEMNES 86,485 144,224
1,747,553 2,232,600

Timing of revenue recognition WA TR R

At point in time H B 1,645,504 2,086,076
Over time R 102,049 146,524
1,747,553 2,232,600
PRERERA R

20205 $R(FZE2020F12A31H L A@EA)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FMEMBERRME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

5. RE\/ENUE(Continued) 5. LI&A(Z“‘%%)

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (i) BEFEXNBADH (&)
customers (Continued)
Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from EFPAANKA LD BER T HEED
contracts with customers with the segment revenue A CREAOEERETI T

amounts disclosed in the segment information.

Nine months

ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
Segment Segment
revenue revenue
EZ20205 EE2020%F
1283181k 3A318 1k
9fl A FE
2RI A o EBUA
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBT ARET T
(Restated)
(&E3)
Piped gas transmission and distribution & & A & A2
Sales of piped gas HEEBMRR 442,859 583,993
Piped gas connection EEMRER 102,049 146,524
544,908 730,517
Cylinder gas supply S R SR 575,831 805,537
Gas distribution MRS 8 540,329 552,322
FMCG and food ingredients supply RMHETE S
Retail and wholesales of merchandise TENMBEE R 86,485 144,224
1,747,553 2,232,600
All the revenue from contracts with customers are derived BEEFAANFBRAEYREFRE-

from the PRC.
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fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

5. RE\/EN U E (Continued)

(i)

Performance obligations for contract with customers

The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources:

(a)

Sales of gas and merchandise

For the sales of cylinder gas, a receivable is
recognised by the Group when the goods are
delivered to the customers as this represents the
point in time at which the right to consideration
becomes unconditional, as only the passage of
time is required before payment is due. The Group
allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days to
its customers and extending to 180 days for major
customers for the invoices issued.

For the sales of natural gas, the Group would
require advance payment before the delivery of
gas for certain customers, any shortage against the
periodically actual delivery of the natural gas will be
billed by the Group accordingly. The Group allows
an average credit period of 30 days to its customers
for the invoices issued.

The Group sells merchandise directly to retail
customers within supermarket and convenience
stores. Revenue from sales of goods to retail
customers is recognised when the product is
transferred to the customers upon sales. Payment
of the transaction price is due immediately when
the customers purchases the goods. The payment is
usually settled in cash or using credit cards.

The Group also sell merchandise to wholesalers.
Revenue from sales of merchandise to wholesalers
is recognised when the control of the merchandises
has transferred, being when the merchandises
are delivered to the wholesalers and there is
no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
wholesaler’s acceptance of the products. Payments
received in advance that are related to the sales
of merchandises not yet delivered to customers
are deferred and recognised as contract liabilities.
Revenue are recognised when goods are delivered
to customers.
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Sales of gas and merchandise (Continued)

For the sales of piped gas, the Group would require
advance payment before the usage of the natural
gas for certain customers, any shortage against
the periodically actual usage of natural gas will be
billed by the Group accordingly. The Group allows
an average credit period of 30 to 90 days to its
customers and extending to 180 days for major
customers for the invoices issued. These customers
are required to top up the advance payment for
future usage of natural gas supplied by the Group.

In addition, the Group requires advance payment
before the usage of the natural gas through prepaid
card for certain household users. The charge of the
actual usage of natural gas will be deducted directly
to the balance of the prepaid card. These customers
can only consume the natural gas up to the balance
of the prepaid card.

Construction

The Group provides gas pipeline construction
services under construction contracts with its
customers. Such contracts are entered into before
construction of the gas pipeline begins. The Group’s
performance creates and enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs. Revenue
from construction of gas pipeline is recognised
over time on an input method, i.e. based on the
proportion of contract costs incurred for work
performed to date relative to the estimated total
contract costs. The directors consider that this input
method is an appropriate measure of the progress
towards complete satisfaction of these performance
obligations under HKFRS 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

5. REVEN U E (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contract with customers
(Continued)

(b)

Construction (continued)

The Group requires certain customers to provide
upfront deposits before the commencement of
the construction which will give rise to contract
liabilities until the revenue recognised on the
relevant contracts exceed the amount of the
deposits. The Group is entitled to invoice customers
for gas pipeline construction upon completion
of construction works. The Group recognises
contract asset for any work performed in excess of
payment from customer for the same contract. Any
amount previously recognised as a contract asset is
reclassified to trade receivables upon completion of
construction works. The Group allows an average
credit period of 30 to 90 days to its customers and
extending to 180 days for major customers.

(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers

All the contracts for sales of gas and merchandise,
and gas pipeline construction are for original expected
duration of one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS
15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group's chief operating
decision maker (“CODM"), being the managing director of
the Company, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods
sold or services rendered which is also consistent with the basis
of organisation of the Group.
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During the 9 Months Reporting Period, the Group has
reorganised its operating segments. The Group currently
organises its operations into four operating divisions, which
also represent the operating segments of the Group for
financial reporting purposes, namely (i) piped gas transmission
and distribution; (ii) cylinder gas supply; (iii) gas distribution
and (iv) FMCG and food ingredients supply. They represent four
major lines of business engaged by the Group. The principal
activities of the operating and reportable segments are as
follows:

(1) Piped gas transmission and distribution (previously
“provision of piped gas” segment) — sales of piped gas
and construction of gas pipeline networks under gas
connection contracts;

(2)  Cylinder gas supply (previously “sales and distribution
of cylinder gas” segment) — sales and distribution of gas
using tank containers to end-user households, industrial
and commercial customers;

(3) Gas distribution — sales of natural gas to industrial and
commercial customers, which was included in provision of
piped gas segment in the Previous Year; and

(4) FMCG and food ingredients supply — wholesales and
retail of merchandise (including but not limited to rice;
meat; fresh food; FMCG) through supermarkets and
convenience stores.

No operating segments have been aggregated to derive the
reportable segments for segment information presentation.

In prior years, the Group organised its operations into three
operating divisions, which also represented the three operating
and reportable segments of the Group for financial reporting
purposes, namely provision of piped gas, sales and distribution
of cylinder gas and FMCG and food ingredients supply. The
comparative figures in the segment information note have been
restated due to the segment reorganisation.
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #Z%E2020512H831H9@A

I\ [ &2 AR N
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEPE R )
Segment revenues and results DEMBAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results NTARAEAEEREZRREED LD E K
by reportable and operating segment. ADHT o
For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 B £2020F12831H 1L9@ B
Piped gas FMCG and
transmission food
and  Cylinder gas Gas ingredients
distribution supply  distribution supply Total
i 3 R’
BEERRBE PR M IE RELHE  HENES G
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥Tn AR®TR AR¥Trn AR%TR AR®Tx
Segment revenue from external RESMEPE P H 7 EUA
customers 544,908 575,831 540,329 86,485 1,747,553
Segment profit (loss) PEEM (B8) 92,613 33,899 1,998 (5,080) 123,430
Unallocated income AOBEBA 10,002
Central administration costs R RITH X (7,575)
Share of results of associates ~ JE{ & AR5 16,401
Share of results of joint ventures E{E & & P E£4E 33,993
Finance costs IERA (7,493)
Profit before tax 75 A A 168,758
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FMEMBERRME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #Z2020%F12H31H 9@ A

N

%

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. TEPER @)

Segment revenues and results (Continued) DEBAREE (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B ZE2020F3A31HIEFE

FMCG and

Piped gas food

transmission Cylinder gas Gas ingredients
and distribution supply distribution supply Total

43 R
EEMRER IR e MRDHE  HENES aat
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&251) (&51) (251)

Segment revenue from external 2R BN F R 2 A

customers 730,517 805,537 552,322 144,224 2,232,600
Segment profit (loss) PERA (E1E) 105,107 45,130 1,700 (22,774) 129,163
Unallocated income NN 8,746
Central administration costs ~ FRTE I (19,007)
Share of results of associates ~ FE{REE & R A1 £ 45 26,336
Share of results of joint ventures JEfE A B ¥ ¥4 108,367
Finance costs IERA (11,440)

Profit before tax HAT& FI

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in
both period/year.

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies
described in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report. Segment result represents the profit (loss)
earned by (incurred by) each segment without allocation of
share of results of associates, share of results of joint ventures,
central administration costs, finance costs and certain other
income. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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REMBERERME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

S
0. ﬁﬁBE*’l’\ZE’)
PEHEERAE
UNTAREBREREEEDBOEZE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

by reportable and operating segments.

ERBBEDIMN-

At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
2020F12A31H 202093 H31H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®ET ARETIT
(Restated)
(&%)
Segment assets PWEE
Piped gas transmission and distribution BB MR A 838,337 819,441
Cylinder gas supply R R E 358,246 291,668
Gas distribution AR5 88 33,270 27,247
FMCG and food ingredients supply RMHENES 57,445 67,976
Total segment assets DEHEELE 1,287,298 1,206,332
Investment properties REME 11,100 16,780
Interests in associates AN 121,810 126,726
Interests in joint ventures REBLE R 1,289,250 1,269,685
Equity instruments at FVTOCL BRARBEs AHMEE W2
T A 167,780 132,946
Deferred tax assets EIERI IR E B 4,605 4,274
Financial assets at FVTPL BEARBEFABRZZEREE - 201,942
Bank balances and cash IRITHERR AR S 614,866 276,796
Other unallocated assets EMADBEEE 39,891 19,834
. . 2%
Consolidated assets REEE 3,536,600 3,255,315  [EES)
Segment liabilities P EEME =
Piped gas transmission and distribution BB MR A 331,218 240,187
Cylinder gas supply TSR E 113,393 78,367
Gas distribution KRR 5 88 9,340 8,868
FMCG and food ingredients supply RMHENES 54,570 62,648
Total segment liabilities DEAERE 508,521 390,070
Bank borrowings RITEE 99,416 131,700
Tax liabilities MIBEE 45,750 41,266
Deferred tax liabilities REHIBAE 32,614 25,746
Other unallocated liabilities HEfARDBEAE 24,013 6,141
Consolidated liabilities LEARE 710,314 594,923
FRERERAF

2020 3R (B ZE2020F12H31H L hfER)
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
investment properties, interests in associates, interests
in joint ventures, equity instruments at FVTOCI, deferred
tax assets, financial assets at FVTPL, bank balances and
cash, certain property, plant and equipment and other
receivables; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than bank borrowings, tax liabilities, deferred tax liabilities
and certain other payables.

6.

FRIREYE REERE s NE
BhXzEm RAREFARME
E a2 Em TR CRERIBEE &
ARBEFABGEZEREE RITHE
BERE ETUE BELRRBAR
H WA FEEEHDE DR

TEEEDE &

FRIRITIEE - BARE - BEEHBARE
NETEHMENKEN AERES
ENBETEELEDH-

Other segment information Hitp HEHR
Piped gas FMCG and
transmission and Cylinder Gas food ingredients
distribution gas supply distribution supply Unallocated  Consolidated
EEMRRE  ERMARHE REse  RMEERESR ES At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
For the nine months ended 31~ E(220205128318 L9 A
December 2020
Amounts included in measure  HEZ BERDEER S HE
of segment profitorlossor ~ EBiRZ &%
segment assets:
Depreciation of property, plant and  #1% - B Rk BiTE
equipment 25,740 11,419 765 1,462 388 39,774
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  FFIEEENE 700 2533 2% 3,786 337 738
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HE%%  BEREELZ
plant and equipment (W) 5% (6,585) (3,001) - 5 - (9,534)
Amortisation of intangible assets ~ BEERAE 1,098 - - - - 1,098
Impairment loss recognised in -~~~ EEREHEZREEE
respect of goodwil - 7,064 - - - 7,064
Net allowance made (reversal of ~ $t& 5 RE (R FIE 25t
alowances) inrespect of trade ~ 1RH(E (REER) 78
and other receivables (748) (4,608) 41 57 (35) (5,293)
Additions in right-of-use assets ~ REFFIELE 4,554 4,690 - - - 9,24
Capital expenditure in respect of ~ EEWE BERFEZER
property, plant and equipment A% 49,969 26,233 41 5,756 319 82,318
Amounts regularly provided to  EHETEEERKERER
the CODM but not included in ~ RitESHENIHESS
the measure of segment profit HEEFLAIR2EH:
or loss or segment assets:
Interests in associates NG T - 121,810 = = = 121,810
Interests in joint ventures Regbs s 1,289,250 - - - - 1,289,250
Share of results of associates EEBRERRFE = (16,401) = = = (16,401)
Share of results of joint ventures ~ EEAEAEE4 (34,185) 192 = = = (33,993)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

Piped gas FMCG and
transmission Cylinder gas Gas food ingredients
and distribution supply distribution supply Unallocated ~ Consolidated
EERRBE  BRRRULE HRE5 RIEERES ) &it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
(Restated) (Restated)
) (E51)
For the year ended 31 March 2020 EZ2020638318 115
Amounts included in measure  #ESBERNTFERIP &
of segment profitorlossor ~ EBiRZ&E
segment assets:
Depreciation of property, plant and  #1% - B Rk B1TE
equipment 32,459 17,297 561 2,673 1,094 54,084
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  FFEEENE 1399 2,085 16 4116 48 8,044
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HENE - FERikE L BiE
plant and equipment (Yzs) 294 (75) - 192 - 41
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  HEMBAFZME = (151) = - = (151)
Amortisation of intangible assets ~ BEEREE 1,229 - = - = 1,229
Impairment loss recognised in -~~~ SEERAZAEEE
respect of goodwil - - - 13,594 - 13,504
Net allowance made (reversal of ~ $1E B REERFE 25t
allowances) in respect of trade 2Bt (BRERE) FE
and other receivables (874) 1,636 19 319 1438 2,538
Additions in right-of-use assets ~ AEEREEE 11,382 939 = 2,416 - 14,787
Capital expenditure in respect of ~ BB BERZEZER
property, plant and equipment B 54,986 15,700 %2 4298 3017 78,963
Amounts reqularly provided to EHHTELERKER2E
the CODM but not included in ~ Rt EAPEANAFERS
the measure of segment profit HEERLZIR2EH:
or loss or segment assets:
Interests in associates REBE R R - 126,726 = - = 126,726
Interests in joint ventures RAEDE 2R 1,255,065 14,620 - - - 1,269,685
Share of results of associates BN #E - (26,336) = - = (26,336)
Share of results of joint ventures ~ EEAEAEEE (105,766) (2,601) = - = (108,367)
Geographical information it EE R

All of the Group's revenue was generated in the PRC (place of
domicile of the group entities that derive revenue) and over
90% of the Group’s non-current assets were also located in
the PRC (place of domicile of the group entities that hold such
assets). Accordingly, no geographical information is presented.

Information about major customers

No individual customer of the Group had contributed sales of
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for the 9 Months

Reporting Period and the Previous Year.

AEEARBRATIRTE (FEERELR
AZ TR ) BE A R A K BB B90%H) I
RBEENMNTE (REEBREZRFE
EZ ML) - At SIE25REF -

FHRIEEFZEHR
BEARRSIEAMELBEFE HER

EECEEFEMEEEBALAEEL
WA HI10% °

PREBRERAR
2020F 3R (B E2020F12A31HLEAER)

=
Io
v
<
15
=
('S

145

Big




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= & B %5 30 R 0 o

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

7. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER THE
ECL MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL

7. AHREEERRNT 2
B - HIBRE

Nine months

ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
#Z2020F B Z20205F
12A31H 1t 3A31H Ik
9@ A FE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREBFT
Impairment loss, net of reversal WA EE - MR D
Trade receivables from contract REREP &R BYIA
with customers 838 (445)
Other receivables H e R IE 4,455 (2,093)
5,293 (2,538)
8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. Hitlim K E1E
Nine months
ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
220205 B %£2020%F
12A318 Lt 3A318 Ik
9@ A FE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R AR¥ETT
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, plant HEME  BEREE 2 WE
and equipment (Note) (E51E) (PiFsE) 9,534 (411)
Fair value changes of financial assets BRARBEABR I eMEE
at FVTPL ZRREERE (1,164) 1,122
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 39)  H &M B A 7z Yz (KIFE39) - 151
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain X (BE) K F58 (3,150) 746
Fair value loss of investment properties KEWERNREER (5,680) -
Gain on re-measurement of pre-existing EFFTER —HEERER
interest in a joint venture and an associate — & & A 7] R A s 2 W
(note 40) (KM¥3F40) 1,111 -
Bargain purchase gain on acquisition of Wi B Pt /BB 1 ) 5 1B W W e
subsidiaries (note 40) (K¥5E40) 1,513 =
Impairment loss recognised in respect of BRI EMER Z FEEE
goodwill (7,064) (13,594)
Premium charged for the National Equities ZBF/NEROEZRGERET
Exchange and Quotations Co., Ltd ~aEl ((RERE]) KR ESE
(“NEEQ") status arising on acquisition W REB A (M7E40)
(note 40) - (6,460)
(4,900) (18,446)
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES (continuesy 8. HK RN EE #)

Note: Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment for the B 5 RBEVEABEEEDE  BE K&
9 Months Reporting Period included gains of approximately 2 W B ERE L AR 10,386,000
RMB10,386,000, which arose from the removal of the T(EEEBBRAEE 2 EBRMAR
Group's pipelines and gas facilities whereby third parties paid MBI E =R R AASE S
compensation sums of approximately RMB17,132,000 in total EemmHEFHARK17,132,0007T) °
to the Group for the removal. The gain is determined as the WHEERDKRILERYE KE R&
difference between the carrying values of property, plant and BrEEERAE = FIRRZ B/HES
equipment being derecognised and amount of compensation R ZERE-

sums received from third parties.

9. OTHER INCOME 9. HfUk A

Nine months

ended Year ended

31 December 31 March
2020 2020
%2020 EH=2020%F
1283181t 3A31H 1k
9@ A FE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETTT

Bank interest income RITH B A 2,919 2,665
Interest income from financial assets BEARBEfABEZZEREE
at FVTPL Z M BHA 6,415 5,400
Interest income from loan to a joint venture 2RE —M& Bt E 2 EFHF B WA 665 665
Rental income, net HE WA HE 3,740 4,730
Covid-19-related rent concessions FEmSREHREESESR 1,208 =
Repair and maintenance services income HERERBIA 1,265 3,860
Sales of gas appliances, net HEMRSEFHE 9,239 5,318
Incentive subsidies (Note) BN B (B EE) 7,870 1,104
Others Hitb 5,125 3,179 EES
.E E
©
38,446 26,921 | =
Note: The amount mainly represents incentives related to the Group's Mz ZeBEERTPRBERER TAEES
operations by the government authorities in the PRC. BEHE ZE-
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

10.PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR 1048 FERA
Profit for the period/year has been arrived at after charging: AERE, FERMEHNRTIIEE:

Nine months

ended Year ended

31 December 31 March

2020 2020

220205 B Z£20204F

12A31H 1t 3A31H1E

9fE A FE

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®BTR ARETTT

Directors’ emoluments (note 11) ZEEME (BsE11) 4,448 7,301
Other staff costs (excluding directors) EMETITHRA(TREES)

— Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind —# & 2B R E W HR 102,878 127,561

— Retirement benefits scheme — iR RAEFET B R

contributions 3,864 14,435

Total staff costs M8 T A 111,190 149,297
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses &R AR X 2 fF &K A 1,422,249 1,788,045
Auditor’s remuneration 1% ELAD B 1,262 2,940
Depreciation and amortisation & K 5

— Property, plant and equipment —¥E WEKFK 39,774 54,084

— Right-of-use assets —REEE 7,382 8,044

— Intangible assets —EmEE 1,098 1,229
Contract cost recognised as expense HRBAZ ZMREREESON

in respect of gas connection BRI (FEAHERKA)

construction contracts

(included in cost of sales) 38,674 61,860
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #Z%E2020512H831H9@A

11.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND NESZHMERANVES
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES HMET
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EECEE
The emoluments paid or payable to each of 9 (the B EMNIE GRATFE 8R)ESF
Previous Year: 8) directors were as follows: ZB& T
Performance
related
Directors’ Salaries, incentive  Retirement
fees allowances  payments benefits Total
U
EExne Ho 2 L3RR BREF &t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETRT ARBTR AR®TR ARET:x

(Note (a))
(&)
For the nine months ended & Z£2020%F12831H
31 December 2020 1E9f8 B
Executive directors: HITEE:
Dr. Mo Shikang RttREL - 1,118 190 - 1,308
Mr. Zhang Hesheng RAELE - 933 123 - 1,056
Mr. Fan Fangyi BHEEE - 518 - 18 536
Miss Mo Yunbi RER/E - 508 47 34 589
Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus REREE (K b))
(Note (b)) - 538 - 8 546
Independent non-executive BUERTES:
directors:
Dr. Liu Junmin ABEREL 126 - - - 126
Prof. Zhao Yanyun HEEHRK 126 - . N 126
Mr. Cheung Chi Ming KA L AE (k)
(Note (c)) 76 - - - 76 L
Mr. Sin Ka Man (Note (d)) EREEE (HF(d) 85 - - - 85 g =
(]
c
413 3,615 360 60 4,448 i
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

11.DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS AND

NMNEEZEZHMERENES

-+ [—|
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES FE T
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) () EEzM< (B)
Performance
related
Directors’ Salaries, incentive Retirement
fees  allowances payments benefits Total
\ FEIEH
EZHe  Feo oEH RET R RIRE A A&t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETE ARETE ARETR
(Note (a))
(i3 @))
For the year ended H Z2020%3A31H
31 March 2020 EEE

Executive directors: HITES:

Dr. Mo Shikang RttREL = 1,567 277 = 1,844
Mr. Zhang Hesheng R A S A - 1,308 264 = 1,572
Mr. Fan Fangyi BHEEE - 723 122 40 885
Miss Mo Yunbi EEZE - 706 85 56 847
Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus REE%E (K b))

(Note (b)) - 1,069 548 16 1,633

Independent non-executive BUERTES:

directors:

Dr. Liu Junmin ABREL 178 = = - 178

Prof. Zhao Yanyun HEEHR 164 - - - 164

Mr. Sin Ka Man (Note (d)) HERGEE (Fid) 178 - - - 178
520 5,373 1,296 112 7,301

Note: ML -

(@) The performance related incentive payments are (a) REBEBEBNRI2ZEEE A
determined by reference to the individual performance ARBEE  WKEHFMWEESSHE -
of the directors and approved by the remuneration
committee.

(b)  Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus has resigned as an executive b)) KREEZELECBHITARATEE B
director with effect from 1 October 2020. 202010 A1 BB AER -

(¢)  Mr. Cheung Chi Ming has been appointed as independent (a] REBLEEDEZERBLIENT
non-executive director with effect from 15 July 2020. EE H2020F7R15B A

(d)  Mr. Sin Ka Man retired as an independent non-executive (d)  EREEENR2020F9 30 R A&

director by rotation at the conclusion of the annual general
meeting on 30 September 2020.
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

11.DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during both period/year.

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (the Previous Year: four) are directors of the
Company whose emoluments are included in the above
disclosures. The emolument of the remaining one (the
Previous Year: one) individual is disclosed as follows:

MNEEZHMERENES
FENE T »

(a)

(b)

ExcMe (8)

EXFATRATEEME N EBREE
BARRRAEEER 2 IRF -

EXFARBIFNTEEME AR
BREERARAERTZ R -

WEBENEERTHRARNEXRAE
WEEEAREFE AR 2 28k -

EUBEHEMAL

AEERANESHFMALHEMU (B
EFE O /SARBES HME
EREXEE T CGEBEFE:
—fI)ALTZHESRELT

Nine months

ended Year ended

31 December 31 March

2020 2020

HZ=20205 HE20204F

12A318 Lt 3A31H1E

ofEl A FE

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®ET T AR®T T

Salaries, allowances, and benefits in kind ¥ 28 R EWHIZ 421 617
Discretionary bonuses BIETEAL 169 238
Retirement benefits RIRAEF 11 16
601 871

RREZERERAF
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

12.FINANCE COSTS

12. Bt 7% AR 2N

Nine months

ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
B Z=2020% HE2020%F
128318 1t 3A318 1k
ofEl A FE
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT T
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEF S 6,494 10,050
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEMNE 999 1,390
7,493 11,440
/B 1M
13.INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. BB X

Nine months
ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
B 220205 HZE2020%F
12A31H 1k 3A31H 1t
9fE A FE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBET T AREEF T

PRC Enterprise Income Tax ("EIT"): RREPEMEE ([REMRERH])

— Current tax — BN EAREIE 22,029 28,504
— Under (over) provision in prior years - BAEFERETR (BFE) 331 (2,468)
Deferred taxation (note 34) IEIERTE (MI7E34) 1,697 (392)
24,057 25,644

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in
the consolidated financial statements as the Group had no
assessable profit derived in Hong Kong for both period/year.

The EIT rates applicable for the Group’s PRC subsidiaries ranged
from 15% to 25% (the Previous Year: 15% to 25%).

Following the Catalogue of Encouraged Industries in Western
Region which was promulgated by the National Development
and Reform Commission of the PRC in 2014, certain
subsidiaries which are operating in the Western China region
are granted a concessionary tax rate of 15% by the local tax
bureau.
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

13.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 13. 8RB X
The charge for the period/year can be reconciled to the profit NEHE/ AEFERYHGEBEREME
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and T W 25 ¥R 2% T 51 8 R B AT i A B BR A T

other comprehensive income as follows:

Nine months

ended Year ended

31 December 31 March
2020 2020
HZ2020% B Z=2020%F
12A31H 1t 3318 It
9fE A FE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR AR¥ETTT

Profit before tax 5 A s A 168,758 242,165

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% & Bl A TS5 &K 25%

(the Previous Year: 25%) CGBAFE:25% )t E 2 BiE 42,190 60,541
Tax effect of share of results of BREELEREBE NG E

joint ventures (8,498) (27,092)
Tax effect of share of results of associates ~ FE(RHEE N A EE 2 HIETE (4,100) (6,584)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for ~ A MFH T H ZFHEFE

tax purpose 6,684 11,211
Tax effect of profit which are under MR RIE N Rflz g2

tax concessions (14,107) (8,069)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RARTHERVIBEBECHBETE 1,557 (1,895)
Under (over) provision in prior years BEFERETTE (BEEE) 331 (2,468)
Income tax expense for the period/year RNEARFEREHAX 24,057 25,644

z%
Note: The tax rate of 25% (the Previous Year: 25%) represents EIT M CEMERRE%EARAEREE Nl
which is applicable to most of the Group's operations in the PRC AREVAAPRMA PRz KD EH B
for the 9 Months Reporting Period. (BEFE:25%) ° =
14.DIVIDEND 14. 1% B

No dividend was paid or proposed during the 9 Months REZ AW EE A BRI & T ek iEz
Reporting Period (the Previous Year: nil), nor has any dividend XAHRE GREFE &) - BIEHRAR
has been proposed since the end of the 9 Months Reporting MEEZEZ N EMRE -
Period.
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

15.EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to
the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Basic earnings per share for the 9 Months Reporting Period
and the Previous Year are calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to the owners of the Company by the weighted

15.8REF

TR

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the period/

ARBEBANEIEERERRN TIRE A

BEARSIOEANBLEEFE 2 BRE
ABH - T AR R HE AR TR AR
F/ FREBTEBRZ NETHEHE -

year.
Nine months
ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
HZ2020% B Z£20204F
12A31H 1t 3H31H 1t
9fE A FE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AR¥ETT
Earnings B
Profit for the period/year attributable to the ZAA E#EH A FE(G AR F E % F
owners of the Company and for the MR EEREREF
purposes of basic earnings per share 107,906 182,629
Nine months
Ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
HZ2020% B Z£20204F
128318 1t 3A318 1k
9fE A FE
Number of shares R4 E
Weighted average number of ordinary REFTESREARRBF 2 nkEF9
shares for the purpose of basic T@EREE

earnings per share

No diluted earnings per share was presented for the 9 Months
Reporting Period and the Previous Year as there was no

potential ordinary shares in issue.
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REMBERERME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16.M % -BENHZE

Furniture,
fixtures Plant,
Leasehold  and office  machinery Transportation Construction
Buildings improvements  equipment  and pipeline vehicles in progress Total
i BH-RXE B HS

87  NRKE RMLERAK kEE  BHEA  ERIR aif
RMBO0O  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBO0D  RMBOOO  RMB'O00
ARBTT  ARMTL ARETR ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

cosT A

At 1 April 2019 R2019F4R1H 180,493 8,602 22,025 738,619 64,159 80,747 1,094,645

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 40)  REMBAA (Hi340) - - 1,893 - - = 1893

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) ~ HEMBAE (K539) - - - = (523) (145) (668)

Additions NE 6,730 1,106 3,694 15,623 4,467 47,348 78,968

Transfer b 1,633 = = 65,963 = (67,59%) =

Transfer to investment properties ~ BEERENZ (580) = = = - - (580)

Disposals/written off e /s 23) - (716) (3.979) (1,916) - (6,634)

At 31 March 2020 R2020%3A318 188,253 9,708 26,8% 816,226 66,187 60,354 1,167,624

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 40)  REMEAA (Hi340) 9,286 - 28 7,294 818 = 17,680

Additions AE 16,121 183 8,682 11,029 3,256 13,047 82,318

Transfer ag 1,601 3481 - 53,790 - (881 -

Disposalsfwritten off HE/H5 (3} (423) (3.936) (14,840) (1,300 = (20,507)

At 31 December 2020 R2020812A318 215,253 12,949 31,924 873,499 68,961 44.529 1,247,115

DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT 4 & R A

At 1 April 2019 R2019%451H 35,063 5,043 11,787 209,844 33,848 - 295,585

Provided for the year AEERE 9437 1,484 3,151 3,708 7,304 - 54,084

Eliminated on disposals/written off [ ER43E /i34 (19 - (464) (602) (1320 = (2,405)

Tiansfer to investment properties ~ EEEREN% (10) - = = = = (10)

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39)  [HEMBAR (Hf539) = = - - (496) - (496)

At 31 March 2020 R2020%3A31R 44,47 6,527 14,474 241,950 39,336 - 346,758 _T; g

Provided for the period AEHEE 4633 549 4263 15917 4412 - 39,774 g

Eliminated on disposalsiwritten off ~ (HEBHH /i 2) (169) (2413) (4,686) (1222) = (849
[

At 31 December 2020 R2020£128318 49,102 6,907 16,324 263,181 42,526 - 378,040

CARRYING VALUES FEE

At 31 December 2020 R2020%12A318 166,151 6,042 15,600 610,318 26,435 44.529 869,075

At 31 March 2020 R2020%3A31R 143,782 3,181 12,422 574,276 26,851 60,354 820,866
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

16

17.

.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment other than

construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis

at the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of 40 years or
the remaining terms of leases

Over the shorter of 5 years or
the remaining terms of the
leases

20%

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and office
equipment

Plant, machinery and pipeline 3.3% - 20%

Transportation vehicles 12.5% — 20%

The buildings are situated in the PRC, and are for own use
under medium-term lease.

The Group has pledged certain property, plant and equipment
with carrying value of approximately RMB87,661,000 (31
March 2020: RMB209,166,000), comprising buildings
of approximately RMB36,889,000 (31 March 2020:
RMB43,918,000) and plant, machinery and pipeline
of approximately RMB50,772,000 (31 March 2020:
RMB165,248,000) to secure certain bank borrowings granted
to the Group as disclosed in note 46 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

16.Y% - HEKZME =

Hit¥zE - E RREEE (FERTERIN)
TIABE R T FRFTE

BF A0F SRR EFH
(AEEEAE)

HEmEEE S54F of | o4 0 & F B
(AEEE AE)

R EKER 20%

PN E RN
R HEREE 3.3%-20%
12 ) B 4 12.5% — 20%

BFURTE DRETHBEORKEFES
e

AEEBEEKFREEELY ARES?,661,000
7C (202043 A31H : AR #¥209,166,000
L) (EEF4 AR 36,889,000t (2020
F£3H310 : AR#43,918,0007T) KEE
HEEFE | AR #50,772,0007T (20204
3H31H : AR#165,248,0007T) 2 & T
¥ BERBEUMEAR TAEE R TIRIT
1%1%)2?%{% (BBERANFIRERE B TS HRK T
5F46) °

= | ;m
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17ERAREEE
Leasehold Transportation
lands  Properties  Equipment vehicles Total
HELH LES R ENEH Ch
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR ARBTT ARBTRT ARET:T
At 1 April 2019 20194818 58,885 25,754 502 - 85,141
Additions NE 3,992 9,806 = 989 14,787
Depreciation e (1,572) (6,078) (301) (93) (8,044)
At 31 March 2020 72020634311 61,305 29,482 201 896 91,884
Acquired on acquisition of YRR B 2\ )
subsidiaries (note 40) (Pt 7E40) 4,959 4,467 - - 9,426
Additions NE 9,244 = = - 9,244
Depreciation nE (1,147) (6,095) (53) (93) (7,382)
At 31 December 2020 20205124318 74,367 27,854 148 803 103,172
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

17R|GHT‘OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

17EHEEE @

Nine months

ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
HZ2020% HZ=2020F
128318 1t 3A31H 1
9@ A £E
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREF T
Expenses relating to short-term leases and £ %2 HA 8 & K 78 HA 7 #71K & A
other leases with lease terms ended BEVBmEERE1690E Bie
within 12 months of the date of initial NREAAKIEZHEMEESHE 2
application of HKFRS 16 > 5,872 7,943
Total cash outflow for leases MER SR B 11,622 17,195

The Group leases various offices, warehouses, equipment and
transportation vehicles for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 1 month to 15 years. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term
and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.

Leasehold lands are upfront payments for leasehold lands under
medium-term leases in the PRC for own use properties.

The Group entered into several short-term leases for various
offices, warehouses, equipment and transportation vehicles.
As at 31 December 2020, the total outstanding lease
commitments is approximately RMB1,277,000 (31 March 2020:
RMB689,000).

AEEHERBRAE BE RELEH
ERAREZ HEANREETHMEAE
15 ETS - BT IR (B I R LR - WHA
B TE A 9 R S Mk A - OB FE AH H I P A
TR BEHRER  AEERAAHN
EERWEEA LR RHBTOHME-

HE LR /EE T MATARNK  HRHh
MR REE T EEBYE-

AEEREERAZE AE REREHE
I AETREHEE -R2020612A318 ' K
EEHERERE AN ARK1,277,0007T
(2020438318 : AR#689,0007T) °

PREBRERAR
2020F 3R (B E2020F12A31HLEAER)
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18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. 1k EY

RMB’000
AR T T
FAIR VALUE nRE
At 1 April 2019 M2019F4 718 16,190
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EEEME BERKB 590
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss RERBERZAREE =
At 31 March 2020 720203 A31H 16,780
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss RIBEERZ AR EEE (5,680)
At 31 December 2020

72020512 H31H 11,100

The above investment properties are situated in the PRC, and
are held under medium-term leases.

The investment properties are under Level 3 fair value
measurements. At the end of each reporting period, the senior
management works closely with the independent qualified
professional valuer to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs. Discussion of valuation
process and results are held between senior management and
the directors of the Company at least twice a year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31
December 2020 and 31 March 2020 have been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out on the respective dates by
Censere Group Limited and Asset Appraisal Limited respectively.
Both valuers hold recognised and relevant professional
qualification and have recent experience in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations.
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18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2020 were determined based on the income
capitalisation approach by capitalising the market rentals of
all lettable units of the properties by reference to the rentals
achieved in the lettable units as well as other lettings of
similar properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate
adopted is made by reference to the yield rates observed by the
valuer for the similar properties in similar locality and adjusted
based on the valuer’s knowledge of the factors specific to the
respective properties. In the absence of observable market
transactions for comparable properties at 31 December 2020,
income approach is adopted.

The fair values of Group’s investment properties at 31 March
2020 were determined based on direct comparison method
and making references to comparable market observable
transactions of similar properties in the nearby locations as
available in the relevant market.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

18.1REWZE o)

R2020F12 8318 REBREWMEN A
A EERERKRAERNLET  BWEFFT
ERRHEEMMNESENL 2ZTEME
fER] B BN KA A E A B A AT
HabXa oz - BRI RAHEMS2ERMU
b & S AR EPTEIER B - W ARR (B A
ZEDEBEREZRMETABRSEXRE
HRE - (HEME S EDESETEREXN T 7
TR - MN20205F12H318 R AR
BARMAERMERSHIBERT  FAK
Ak o

R2020F3 8318 REBZREMEZ R
AERBEEEZERBEIETCT A2EHBM
SBo Az MR ERAth 2 2 B EZ AT
EMSZAERIZEE - EXFMERZIGE
Rl I g 2 L o

AEEMAFAARRESKAKIEER
RERGZNEEDETARABREAE
YD PERREMEAR-
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The Group leases out retail stores under operating leases with
rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial

period of 1 to 5 years.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in
the respective functional currencies of group entities. The lease
contracts do not contain any residual value guarantees or

lessee’s options to purchase the property.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information

about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2020 and 31
March 2020, are as follows:

Fair value
Commercial properties in the PRC hierarchy Valuation techniques
REEZERNE MERR fERE
31 December 2020 31 March 2020
00E128318 2020434318
RMB11,100,000 RMB16,780,000 Level 3 31 December 2020
AE% ARE £=4 Income capitalisation approach
11,100,000 16,780,0007C

The key inputs are:
(1) Capitalisation rate
(2)  Market rent per square meter

2020E12A318
WABRLLE

IRBATEA:
(1) BAfE
@ s¥hxmslz

31 March 2020

Direct comparison method based on
market observable transactions of
similar properties

The key inputs are:
(1) Price per square meter
() Level adjustment

2020£3R318
ERUE RERENZH
METRERS

IZEATEA:
(1) SFIAEHR
() EfEE

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the
period/year.

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s investment properties
amounting to approximately RMB6,200,000 (31 March 2020:
RMB11,300,000) were pledged to secure the Group's certain
bank borrowings, as disclosed in note 46 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

$%Eﬁﬁw“ﬂéﬁﬁ EiEw HeA
AN —BS B =R
HRMAEEENEEER 2 HREEE

SHE - 7 o2 [ 30 4 PR R 2 Bk 1 1 51 M
[« HE S KW B 55 E A ER B R R AE Bk

AAABERRNEZEZE

AREBER2020F12A318 %2020%3 A31

BZREMEFBR

SR

Significant unobservable inputs

EATTERBARE

31 December 2020

Capitalisation rate, taking into account the
capitalisation of the net income potential, nature
of the property, prevailing market condition, of
2.5% t0 4.5%

Market rent, taking into account direct market
comparables within the properties ranging from
RMB14 to RMA48 per square meter per month.

2020§12831R \
LEPN-CN AR ON RS R Tb
ER{LH R A 5%E45% °

W ADERZ ERTEULENE 5l
NFSRETRAARBIUTEAREMST

31 March 2020

Price per square metre, based on gross floor
area using market comparables ranging from
RMB4,400 to RMB10,500 and taking into account
of location and level adjustment in individual floor
of the property

2020538318
ERBERETRU AL ENENERARRE Uitk
HERINLENEE, 58 SEFKERNT
ARB4400E AR 10,5007

AV

BRERZERH

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

TIRRRABBRANEL
B

31 December 2020
The higher the capitalization
rate, the lower the fair value.

The higher the market rent, the
higher the fair value.

20205124318
BRI RES MERE:

mEEeHR AAEER

31 March 2020

The higher the price per square
metre, the higher the fair
value

2000634318

SYIKBRER DAEER

AERE/ FARESARBLEE=H7-

R2020F12A31H  AEB 2R EMEL
A R #6,200,0007T (20205F3 A31H : AR
#11,300,0007T) B FHEMERK T AKE
ETRITEEZER (BERAFERGEEY

5K M EE46) o
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

19.GOODWILL 9.2
RMB’000
ARBTT
cosT A
At 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 R2019%F4 718 &20206F3AH31H 32,981
Additions relating to acquisition of business EHEEBWKEZRE (HFE40)
(note 40) 9,221
At 31 December 2020 72020512 H31H 42,202
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSS RItREREE
At 1 April 2019 72019F4 A 1H 12,323
Impairment loss recognised B R EER 13,594
At 31 March 2020 7202093 A31H 25,917
Impairment loss recognised BB REEE 7,064
At 31 December 2020 12020 12H31H 32,981
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2020 7202012 A31H 9,221
At 31 March 2020 720203 A31H 7,064
The Group tests for impairment of goodwill annually and in the AEBSFRA LR KE M ERERF
financial period/year in which the acquisition takes place, or ERIH R RE - A REREE A B
more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be ERE - BIE SER TR
impaired.
For the purposes of impairment testing, the carrying value of RETRENS  LimE s REES 2R TSE
the goodwill set out above has been allocated to the respective ERLCBERARERRMHENESS B
CGUs which operate in the cylinder gas supply segment. B FIREEAEEN - £
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
2020%12H31H 20204F3H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETTT

Carrying amount of goodwill allocated REeEABM 2B THERAEE:
to CGUs in:
Cylinder gas supply segment e 25 A SR A E ) D 9,221 7,064

PRERERAE 161
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As at 31 December 2020, goodwill of approximately
RMB9,221,000 (31 March 2020: RMB7,064,000) is allocated
to the different CGUs within the cylinder gas supply operation.
The recoverable amounts of the individual CGUs within
this operation have been determined based on the value in
use calculations of each of the CGUs using the following
assumptions for the 9 Months Reporting Period and the
Previous Year:

Period of cash flow projections 5 years (the Previous Year: 5 years)

Growth rate within 5-year period in ~ 0%-3% (the Previous Year: 2%)
the financial budgets approved by
the management

Growth rate beyond 5-year 0% (the Previous Year: 0%)
period extrapolated in the
financial budgets approved by

the management

Discount rate 12.5%-15.6% (the Previous Year:
15.4%)

This growth rate within the 5-year projection period of 0%-
3% (31 March 2020: 2%) is based on the relevant industry
growth forecast and does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant industry. Another key assumption
for the value in use calculation is the budgeted gross margin,
which is determined based on the respective CGU’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
no material impairment loss is identified for the goodwill
related to the cylinder gas supply operation acquired during
the 9 Months Reporting Period. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the carrying amount of the group of CGUs regarding
cylinder gas supply to exceed the recoverable amount as at 31
December 2020.

During the 9 Months Reporting Period, impairment loss of
goodwill of approximately RMB7,064,000 (the Previous Year:
nil). related to one CGU acquired in prior years was recognised
due to the lower recoverable amount resulting in the directors’
reassessment that the estimated future business performance
of that CGU might not achieve the expectation of management
taking the budgeted gross margin and estimated growth rate
of the sales into consideration. The impairment loss has been
included in profit or loss in the other gains and losses line item.
No other write-down of the assets is considered necessary.

72020512 A31H ' i 49 A R #9,221,000
7T (20203 A31H : AR #7,064,0007T)
DEFRERF[BEERDEEBATRZR
SEABM HEBARANREELESEU L
A ESBEERESERSEEEM 2 FH
BEAEET ANREEAHH A BEF
EFFERZBRMT :

HeneRASE -F (BEFE :5F)

EREENHY  0%3% GBEERE 2%)
BERFHRA
pEES

RERESHEE 0% (BEEE:0%)
S AR
R RE

BRIR = 125%-15.6% (BEEE : 154%)

FEORISEF AR K R0%E3% (202043 A
318 :2% ) JhAMBRATTEE BRI AEER
TEBEEETEZFTHRPERER-FH
BEFEFZZ2E—EHITERIAEEE
AR HENRERSELEN 2 BARBER
EHEBUHMBER2EETFE -ARAES
Z5 202012 A31 8 1EofE B AU B R
EMAHEXER AR ERRYEEME
ABEEBEE EEEREZERIZEHNE
BRI s8R E@RENRTHE
ZREEEEMMAE ZEEEBBMN2020
F12A318 2 B &5 -

RAREE A BB AR FEWRE—@E
REeESXEMNERAEREBBROARE
7,064,000 (BEFE &) REAATUY
EleRERLERESRERBEEZTENE
PR EAHEREBERENT G ZREE
EBEN 2 AT AR IR EF I A e T2 EE
EEEESR - REBED S ALMRERE
BETZWESNEE - BEARZSEEESN
E A JOR
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1 9GOODW|LL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill allocated to the FMCG
and food ingredients supply business

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying value of goodwill allocated
to the FMCG and food ingredients supply business operation
before impairment loss recognised for the year then ended was
approximately RMB13,594,000. In view of the operating loss
in certain subsidiaries operating in FMCG and food ingredients
supply business segment during the Previous Year, management
reviewed each CGU's recoverable amount for comparison with
the carrying amount of the respective CGUs. The directors of
the Company have consequently determined impairment of
goodwill directly related to the FMCG and food ingredients
supply business operation amounting to approximately
RMB13,594,000 for the Previous Year. The impairment loss has
been included in profit or loss in the other gains and losses
line item. As a result, goodwill related to the FMCG and food
ingredients supply business operation has been fully impaired as
at 31 March 2020. The recoverable amount of the CGUs within
this operation has been determined based on the value in use
calculation using the following assumptions as at 31 March
2020:

Period of cash flow projections 5 years
Growth rate within 5-year period in - 0%-1.6%

the financial budgets approved by
the management

Growth rate beyond 5-year period 0%
extrapolated in the financial
budgets approved by the
management

Discount rate 12.10%

The growth rate of 0% is based on the relevant industry
growth forecast and does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant industry. Another key assumption
for the value in use calculation is the budgeted gross margin,
which is determined based on the respective CGU’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development.

19. 82 (o)

PEFEMUENESEE 2EHERER
S

MR2020F3A31H  HEERLEFEERR
e FRMEEMEISERS 2 HE (CRFTRE
BEE) 2REAEAKN ARK13,594,0007T °
REEZBEFE &é—:ﬁﬁfﬁﬁfuaiﬁ%‘k
DEHETHB AR 2 & EEEMmS -
EEEMSREcELES uZT%@ﬁﬁ
NEEIBSEEEN Z REEETLR K
NEEEGRETEZREFEHERM M
ﬂﬁﬂé%%ﬁ‘*é%*ﬁ?ﬂZﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬂw\E
#13,594,0007T < BEEEE T ABRAN
Mzuﬁz s R ESIEIEE - At - ﬁé2020¢3)ﬂ31
HEMHENBESEBE@E L HECE
%ﬁzma ISR & BE A BN 2 AR E &
HEREEAEEEETE  72020F3 A
31TEFEAZEEET

BenETRBEARE S5F

EEEEMMBE
BhFHRARNCERE

0%-1.6%

B EEMEESF B 0%
MBREMERE 2B R=X

Bh3R = 12.10%
BEERO% HARBITEERBENAEER
TEBaREITEZ FHREERE -FH
BEMESZAZZ—BITERILAEES
AR -ENEEReELEVZBERRL
EREYHMISERCBEEE -
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Construction

permission
BEHX
RMB'000
ARETFT
Cost BRA
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 72019F4A1H
and 31 December 2020 2020F3A318 %
2020F12A31R 187,314
Accumulated amortisation and Bt RAEFE
impairment loss
At 1 April 2019 M2019F4 718 187,314
Charge for the year KEEMR -
At 31 March 2020 202063 A31H 187,314
Charge for the period R -
At 31 December 2020 720205124318 187,314
Carrying values BHE
At 31 December 2020 $2020612A31H =
At 31 March 2020 202053 H318 =

The exclusive rights of purchase were acquired separately
for the exclusive right of purchasing natural gas, while the
construction permission, water drawing permit and exclusive
rights of operation of piped gas were acquired from third
parties in business combinations. The above intangible assets
have finite useful live. Such intangible assets are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the following periods:

Construction permission 20 years

Water drawing permit 9 years

Exclusive rights of purchase 20 to 25 years

Exclusive rights of operation of 30 years
piped gas

Exclusive rights of operation of piped gas represent the
rights to operate gas pipeline infrastructure and piped gas
transmission and distribution granted by local government in
various cities in the PRC.

Water
drawing
permit

Bk 3 AT 3%
RMB'000
AREFT

162,633

162,633

162,633

162,633

Exclusive
rights

of purchase
BR
REBRER
RMB'000
ARBETR

10,000

10,000

10,000

10,000

Exclusive
rights of
operation of
piped gas
BREE
MREEER
RMB'000
ARBTT

37,061

12,694
1,229

13,923
1,098

15,021

22,040

23,138

Total

At
RMB'000
ARETTL

397,008

372,641
1,229

373,870
1,098

374,968

22,040

23,138

BRREEN 2 EBUWE - 24 B

IKFFA]

= fe

FBRE

BRI LRERN R BHRF

SHEREENINEBEHTBEE =T
Wig- LB EEREE A ERFH %
FEMEER T R EREEEH:

R 204
BUK AT 78 9%

BR KB HE R 20E 254
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

21.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AN NI X
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
720204 20204
12H31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETTT

Cost of unlisted investments JEEMRE KA 68,799 70,808
Bargain purchase gain B s 22,330 22,330
Share of post-acquisition profits and DG W B 1808 N K B Ath 2 E M AR
other comprehensive income, net of (bR B WE 2 IR 2D
dividends received 30,681 33,588
121,810 126,726
Amount due to an associate JES — A Bt & R | FRIE 46 1,589
As at 31 December 2020 and 31 March 2020, the Group had 2020512 A31H8 &2020F3A31H ' &
interests in the following associates: SRR T B E R A R
Place of Proportion of nominal value
Form of business establishment  of registered capital held by
Name of company structure and operation the Group Principal activities
RIREE AEEREZHERER
PR EBEBEA P ZEE L TEXK
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
20205 120206 0w
12A31A 38318 g &=
g
Southwest Panva Gas Co. Ltd. Limited liability PRC 49.90% 49.90% Cylinder gas supply =
(“Southwest Panva”) company
BIRERRAERAR BREARR h BRMRAE
(lE1fm))
Yunnan Panva Gas Co. Ltd. Limited liability PRC 20.12% 20.12% Cylinder gas supply
("Yunnan Panva")* company oyl TEE R R AL
EHAIRRERAA BREERA
(TEFERAII)*
Qiannan Zhou Civigas Co. Ltd. Limited liability PRC Note 40.00% Cylinder gas supply
("Qiannan Civigas") company HE [ BRMALE
BEMPRRAERAA BBREFAT
(IEmTR])
& Yunnan Panva is a subsidiary of Southwest Panva with 56.94% 3 TEHAIARBIAMZMBAR  BXA
of its registered capital being held by Southwest Panva. 15 H56.94% T & AN -

FRERBRAT 165
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

21 |NTERESTS |N ASSOC'ATES (Continued)

Note: During the 9 Months Reporting Period, the Group acquired
additional 30% equity interest in Qiannan Civigas at a
total consideration of RMB1,500,000. After the acquisition,
Qiannan Civigas became the subsidiary of the Group. A gain
of approximately RMB119,000, being the difference between
acquisition-date fair value and the carrying amount of the
interest in Qiannan Civigas previously held by the Group, is
recognised in profit or loss. Details of the acquisition are set out
in note 40(a)(iv) to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

Summarised financial information of material associates

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
material associates is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs. All of these associates are accounted for using
the equity method in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Southwest Panva Group (including Yunnan Panva as its

21 RBERNR 2= @)

BMiaE: MASREOME A B AEBIREAKEBAR
#1,500,000 C BB/ R R 2 8850 30% %
EoNEZ % BREPRKBAERE ZH
B AR -z 4 AR % 119,0000T (BN BE
ASAARERAEBRErET R LA
EEREMEZMNEE) MERAER K
B FBHIRAFEREE T HEHREM T
40(a)(iv) °

EABELRAZHBERBE

FRAASEEABERRZHBENRE
T - T BEERBRERIN R 2 &5
EREEBYBREEANRE - B ZFH
LRBRBBDEFTAREE 2K E /MK
HK -

BIAMEE (ERZFHBETIERENER

al)

subsidiary)

At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
2020128318 2020%3H31H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR T AR®T T
Current assets mEEE 169,044 120,926
Non-current assets ERBEE 198,006 219,050
Current liabilities mEE & (108,139) (64,840)
Non-current liabilities JEREEE (11,963) (18,202)
Net assets BEFE 246,948 256,934

Equity attributable to owners of BIFMEEA ARIGEZR
Southwest Panva 193,204 201,178
Non-controlling interests FEF A 2 53,744 55,756
246,948 256,934
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

21N E QR 2@ o)
EABE AR M BEREE (H)

271.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates
(Continued)

BIPAEE (BREFETIIERAENEBA
al) (&)

Southwest Panva Group (including Yunnan Panva as its
subsidiary) (Continued)

Nine months

ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
HZ2020F EZ=20204F
12A318 1k 3H31H 1t
9@ A FE
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREEF T
Revenue A 694,273 1,336,997
Profit and total comprehensive income T FE (R AN AR, S s ) K
for the period/year attributable to: HEREBE:
Owners of Southwest Panva BIAEEEA 24,720 47,700
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR R 2= 5,805 5,151
30,525 52,851
Dividend received from the associate ANHARS E S B U EE R RIRR B
during the period/year 17,528 14,242
Reconciliation of the above summarised consolidated financial L ST BEERBE KRGS P BHRE

information to the carrying amount of the interest in Southwest

Panva recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

hERBE IEAER REEZERK:

At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
i i
20209 12A31H 202043A31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Equity attributable to owners of BITaE%EA AEh#ER
Southwest Panva 193,204 201,178
Group's share of equity at 49.90% REER 249.90% (hHEREzZ (BIEA
(including 28.41% Group's indirect EENEFAI2841% 2 HEE
effective interest in Yunnan Panva) PR ) 96,410 100,388
Carrying amount of the Group's interest ~ ANEBR B TIAMER Z#Em 2
in Southwest Panva Group REE 96,410 100,388
FRERERAF

20205 $R(FZE2020F12A31H L A@EA)
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271.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

21 J‘J'A ﬁﬁ**/‘\—‘lzj:é" ()

Direct ownership interest in Yunnan Panva REFRIZEEFRMEEER
Yunnan Panva EHHT
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
JiS I
2020%F12H31H 202093H31H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARETF T
Current assets mENE E 70,286 52,190
Non-current assets IERBEE 106,850 107,506
Current liabilities mENA R (41,313) (25,224)
Non-current liabilities IERBEE (9,590) (14,162)
Net assets BEFE 126,233 120,310
Nine months
ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
#HZ20205 HZE2020F
128318 1t 3A318 1k
N8 B HI S FE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥EF T AREEF T
Revenue WA 274,288 527,609
Profit and total comprehensive income TP G AR FE
for the period/year PHW A 14,625 12,117
Dividend received from the associate ANHARS FFE B U EE & N IR B
during the period/year 1,810 3,018
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21.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21 R E N R 2 &S )

Direct ownership interest in Yunnan Panva (Continued) REMBIZEEMEERZR (B)
Yunnan Panva (Continued) EEHT (&)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to Pt BRI E RS M B wK
the carrying amount of the interest in Yunnan Panva recognised REMBI R REEZ HER:

in the consolidated financial statements:

At At

31 December 31 March
2020 2020
720204 R20204F
12A31H 3H31H
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTT

Equity attributable to owners of ERHALIHEE ARGES

Yunnan Panva 126,233 120,310
Group's share of equity based on its direct AEBEREFHIZ

ownership interest in Yunnan Panva at 20.12%EEEAEERN DG

20.12% < B 25,400 24,206

Carrying amount of the Group's interest in AEBREF EL 2 EH 2
Yunnan Panva BREAE 25,400 24,206

Information of associate that is not individually material: ERTBERN 2 ERNR2ER:

Nine months

ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020 4 b
BZE20208  EZ20205 [JeES
12A318 L 3A31R1E
9@ A FE | =
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETTT

The Group's share of profit and total NEBEERNE™FEHEMN K
comprehensive income for the period/year 2 W 54258 - 96

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's ZAEBRZE L N RER 2
interest in this associate AR E - 2,132
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AY

Z

22.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES D2 REELHE R

At At

31 December 31 March

2020 2020

202012 H31H 2020%3A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET AREEF T

Cost of unlisted investments (Note) JEEMIREKA (FIEE) 303,929 303,929
Share of post-acquisition profits and FEEWER SN R EMETEE

other comprehensive income, net of R B W B
dividends received 985,321 965,756
1,289,250 1,269,685

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in
these consolidated financial statements.

Note: The cost of investments includes goodwill amount
of approximately RMB76,846,000 (31 March 2020:
RMB76,846,000).

Details of the Group’s joint ventures as at 31 December 2020
and 31 March 2020 are as follows:

Place of

Form of business establishment

BELCERAESAA ALFTEEYHR
%o

=

31 : WERABIENE S L AREET6,846,000
7T (202043 A31H : A R%76,846,000

) ©

N £ B 7A2020F12 A31H K%202043 A31
BB EFBUOT:

Proportion of nominal value
of registered capital held by

Name of company structure and operation the Group Principal activities
‘ o AEEBEZEMERY
AR ER EBRBEA B R Q& EELLA TEEH
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
P2020F  1R2020%F
12A31H 3A31AH
Fujian Province An Ran Gas Limited liability PRC 51% 51% Investment holding in subsidiaries
Investments Co., Ltd. compan which are engaged in distribution
_("Fujian An Ran") (Note (a)) BREEAA] and supply of piped gas and
BREAZAMRREFRNA installation of gas distribution
(MREZAL) (WiE@) facilities "~ .
RESSBREEMTREY RER
e 2 L e A
Yunnan Jiehua Civigas Clean  Limited liability PRC N/A 51% Engaged in the distribution and
Energy Co., Ltd. ("Yunnan compan Bl supply of dimethoxymethane
Jiehua") (Note (b)) BERETLA ("DME") and wholesale of cylinder

SRR REZERERAR
([Zr(L]) (FiEb)
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22.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Cont

Notes:

(a)

inued)

The relevant activities that significantly affect the return of Fujian
An Ran require unanimous consent from the Group and the
other joint venture partners holding the remaining 49% equity
interest in Fujian An Ran. In addition, the joint arrangements
does not result in either parties having rights to assets and
obligations to liabilities of Fujian An Ran, hence the Group has
accounted for Fujian An Ran as joint venture.

In prior years, the relevant activities that significantly affect the
return of Yunnan Jiehua require unanimous consent from the
Group and the other joint venture partner and hence the Group
has accounted for Yunnan Jiehua as joint venture. During the
current period, the Group and the other joint venture partner
agreed in writing that the decisions of the relevant activities
are made by majority votes at the board meeting of Yunnan
Jiehua. As a result, the Group controls Yunnan Jiehua and
accounts for Yunnan Jiehua as subsidiary for the current period.
A gain of approximately RMB992,000, being the difference
between acquisition-date fair value and the carrying amount of
the interest in Yunnan lJiehua previously held by the Group, is
recognised in profit or loss. Details of the deemed acquisition
of subsidiary are set out in note 40(a)(v) to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

AY _;m Sz S == N\ 7/ )
NDRNEELEIERS »

=
m

—
Q
~

HIEZLARBREEALE 2 HEEDHH
ERARERARTI0% R AR EE 2 Kl
BELEBHZ —BRAE M AREE
ZHE T EEHEFN-—FTHERLAZE
ERARENEHHEBEREARE AUAN
SEERREZAIMERARELEAK

RBEFE HEERELEREEAFE
ZHBEHFEASEREMEECER
Hr2—RRAE- A AEEEEEERL
PIEEBEEAR - RAHRE  AEERE
HMEECEXEHEAHBCHBEREBDZRATE
BANZEEMRILzESTE SR LUSHE
B o AL - A S B 5| R R R A H
fE 45 =/ AR 51 VERT B A RIABR » a4 A
R#992,0007T (BN iE HHA A v BEIAL
EREER AT EERAEZHEN
EZR) RN BRAER AR ERERB AR Z
PRSI R A FRER S B 75 3R K M 5E40(a)
(v) °
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22.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

Summarised financial information of material joint
ventures

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
material joint ventures is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs. The joint ventures are accounted for
using the equity method in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Fujian An Ran and its subsidiaries (collectively “Fujian An Ran

NDREELEZREZT @

EAGELEZUHBERBE

ERAKBEARELEZEAMBER
BEHSIIT - TIERE M BERBEEMT
RZEBERBEEMBHRELENRR -4
BEOREBEREATALTKEZGRAWE
HK -

BELARENE LA (7R [BELAR

Group”) £H])
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
»n ®
2020%12H31H 202093 H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETF T
Current assets mEEE 848,694 931,502
Non-current assets IERBEE 3,244,535 3,010,613
Current liabilities mEaE (1,124,871) (1,092,309)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (409,157) (368,007)
Net assets BEFHAE 2,559,201 2,481,799

Equity attributable to owners of Fujian An  BELZREEHEE ARG Z

Ran Group R 2,356,207 2,289,175
Non-controlling interests eI IR = 202,994 192,624
2,559,201 2,481,799
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/\ ;x i \ / -
22 . INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 2. NRNEELE 2R @
(Continued)
Summarised financial information of material joint EECECHMBEERBE (&)
ventures (Continued)
Fujian An Ran and its subsidiaries (collectively “Fujian An Ran BRELARENEB RG] (A [1EELA
Group”) (Continued) £E]) (&)
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the tEERGESBEAETNISE:
following:
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
»n ®
2020F12H31H 202093H31H
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETT

Cash and cash equivalents BeMBE&EEEE 347,910 205,348
Property, plant and equipment Y B R 2,886,623 2,672,471
Right-of-use assets EREEE 78,852 126,244
Trade receivables =) 204,471 454,922

Current financial liabilities (excluding trade B¢ R EBE (TEEEZE S K
and other payables) H fth B FRE) (274,780) (357,447)

Biis

Non-current financial liabilities (excluding ~ JEENEi& @ EaE (T8
other payables) H {th FE A FRIE) (329,001) (304,030)
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22.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES N NREELEZER @

(Continued)

Summarised financial information of material joint
ventures (Continued)

Fujian An Ran and its subsidiaries (collectively “Fujian An Ran
Group”) (Continued)

BELECHMBERME ()

BRLXARENB A (%ER[1BELA

£H5]) (&)

Nine months

ended Year ended

31 December 31 March

2020 2020

H £20205 HZ=20205F

12A31H1E 3A318 1k

9E A FE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET T ARETFIT

Revenue WA 1,226,831 1,979,431

Depreciation and amortisation PrEE R 72,929 111,779

Interest income F B WA 3,974 2,249

Interest expense ISR B3 618 11,156

Income tax expense P57 5 X2 34,475 73,855
Profit and total comprehensive income T FE (L AN EAR S s ) &

for the period/year attributable to: HEREBE:

Owners of Fujian An Ran Group BEZAELEEER A 67,031 207,385

Non-controlling interests JEVE IR e 5 17,836 18,979

84,867 226,364

Group's share of results of the joint venture REBEEESEDEELE 34,185 105,766
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22.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES D2 REELEZER @

(Continued)

Summarised financial information of material joint EECECHMBEERBE (&)

ventures (Continued)

Fujian An Ran and its subsidiaries (collectively “Fujian An Ran EBELTARENB LA (FE R [EELA

Group”) (Continued) £E5]) (&)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information PR aMBENBERRNEGE M BERE

to the carrying amount of the interest in Fujian An Ran Group THEREELARE RS L BRAE K

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

At At

31 December 31 March
2020 2020
202012A31H 202093 H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETT

Equity attributable to owners of Fujian An  BELZAREEEE AME(L 2 E2S

Ran Group 2,356,207 2,289,175
Proportion of the Group's ownership REBRBERELASEES 2

interest in Fujian An Ran Group at 51% 51%#E 2= £k 1) 1,201,664 1,167,479
Goodwill (EES 76,846 76,846
Others EAh 10,740 10,740

Carrying amount of the Group's interest in NEBRBELZAER 2
Fujian An Ran Group w2 BREE 1,289,250 1,255,065
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A ;m A Y I P2 AY ] \_/ =
22.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES DL2NREELEZESR @
(Continued)
Summarised financial information of material joint EECECHMBEERBE (&)
ventures (Continued)
Yunnan Jiehua and its subsidiaries (collectively "Yunnan Jiehua EFEERENE AR (4T [ ZFEAFLE
Group”) &)
At At
30 September 31 March
2020 2020
®n ®
2020%9H30H 202043 A31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T ARETF T
(Note)
(FFEE)
Current assets mENEE 51,210 56,469
Non-current assets IERBEE 41,667 45,138
Current liabilities mEaE (45,567) (52,053)
Non-current liabilities IERBEE (868) (1,240)
Net assets BEFE 46,442 48,314
Equity attributable to owners of TERCERERE ARG Z
Yunnan Jiehua Group FE 28,290 28,667
Non-controlling interests FE 2 IR A 2 18,152 19,647
46,442 48,314
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22 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

Summarised financial information of material joint
ventures (Continued)

Yunnan Jiehua and its subsidiaries (collectively "Yunnan Jiehua
Group”) (Continued)

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the

NDNREELEZRETZ »

BELECHMBERME (B)

ZHAHERAMBAT (578 [ERFILE

=) (&)

P EERABERBETIIRIEA:

following:
At At
30 September 31 March
2020 2020
»n N
2020%9H30H 202043 H31H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR T ARETFIT
(Note)
(HF&E)
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEFEHBEER 20,597 49,328
Property, plant and equipment Y - B Rt 17,218 18,723
Right-of-use assets EREEE 9,139 9,871
Trade receivables B 5l F0E 1,858 1,993
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade B¢ R EBE (TEEEZE S K =
and other payables) E A FE A FRI8) (23,014) (44,595) =
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22.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES N NREELEZER @

(Continued)

Summarised financial information of material joint
ventures (Continued)

Yunnan Jiehua and its subsidiaries (collectively "Yunnan Jiehua
Group”) (Continued)

BELECHMBERME ()

TEBERENB A (5 [ TEFEE

=) (&)

Six months
ended Year ended
30 September 31 March
2020 2020
H£2020F HZE20204F
9H30H It 3HA31H1E
618 A FE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARETF T
(Note)
(FE)
Revenue WA 48,506 133,254
Depreciation and amortisation PrEe R 1,468 2,988
Interest income A B A 162 532
Interest expense MERX 361 710
Income tax expense P57 5 X2 763 2,204
(Loss) profit and total comprehensive 5 FEAE AR
(expense) income for the period/year (EB18)RF &
attributable to: 2E (ZH) KRR (376) 5,101
Owners of Yunnan Jiehua Group EEMREEBER A
Non-controlling interests JEVE IR i 5 1,685 3,345
1,309 8,446
Dividend received from the joint venture AEREFEBE W
during the period/year EEMECZKRE - 4,794
Group's share of results of the joint venture AEBEHEEDEELE (192) 2,601
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22.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES NNEELEZER @

(Continued)

Summarised financial information of material joint EELECHBEENBE (B)
ventures (Continued)

Yunnan Jiehua and its subsidiaries (collectively "Yunnan Jiehua EEEERENE A A (718 [EmE1ESE
Group”) (Continued) /) (&)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information PP E R E RRNGRE M wKR
to the carrying amount of the pre-existing interest in Yunnan REEBLIEREELELANEF TR
Jiehua Group as a joint venture recognised in the consolidated ZARHEEZ K

financial statements:

At At
30 September 31 March
2020 2020
» i
2020%F9H30H 2020%3A31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AR¥BTT
(Note)
(B &E)
Equity attributable to owners of Yunnan TERCERER AEG 2 E=
Jiehua Group 28,290 28,667
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 5= BN Em iR EEHE B HE Z51%
in Yunnan Jiehua Group at 51% 1z L 1B 14,428 14,620
Carrying amount of the Group's pre-existing A EB R EE R EB 2 EH 2
interest in Yunnan Jiehua Group [RERTEAE 14,428 14,620
v
Note: B 5 g%
c
©
During the 9 Months Reporting Period, Yunnan Jiehua became the R AR 45918 B B - I“TF';F'WHEZ?W%ME“ £
subsidiary of the Company due to the change of control over Yunnan FEMMBEKRARATZHEB AR - MEER
Jiehua. The summarised financial information are presented for the BMEDNRBEZEEEERIE2E %‘J%“Eﬁﬁﬁ
period up to the date immediately preceding the change of control over B (BN2020F9A30H) ILEAF 251 - A& E FE 15
Yunnan Jiehua, i.e. 30 September 2020. The Group shared the results TR EREAME 2 EEB E202059H30
of Yunnan Jiehua as a joint venture up to 30 September 2020. Details H-BREHIEEE 2 FBHINN AN FEREGEE Y
of the change in control are set out in note 40(a)(v) to the consolidated 1% 3R 3R Ml 5E40(a)(v) °

financial statements of this annual report.
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23.EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI

23ﬁ®ﬁ@ﬁkﬁ
WmzEmTE

ftt 2 |

RMB’000
AREFT
At 1 April 2019 720194718
As previously reported o0 %% B 2 3R 42,133
Prior year adjustments (note 51) BEFEAR (MHE51) 94,083
As restated &7 136,216
Addition NE 689
Fair value change recognised in OCI (Restated) BREEMEEBENARBEED
(&%) (3,959)
At 31 March 2020 (Restated) 720203 H318 (E751) 132,946
Addition NE 433
Fair value change recognised in OClI BREAMEIERENALEEE 34,401
At 31 December 2020 72020 12H31H

167,780

Note: The above investments represent equity interests in certain B 5T

private entities established in the PRC. These entities are mainly
engaged in the manufacturing and sale of glass products,
banking, sale and distribution of cylinder gas and gas appliances,
sale and distribution of cookware and FMCG and food
ingredients supply business. These investments are not held for
trading, instead, they are held for long-term strategic purposes.
The directors have elected to designate these investments in
equity instruments as at FVTOCI as they believe that these
investments are not held for trading and not expected to be sold
in the foreseeable future. Details of the investments are disclosed
in note 37(c) to the consolidated financial statements of this

PR ERERPEXRL 2 ETLAER
2B R BB 2N RBERHEN
BEM RITED HERDHERRR
kiR E HERDHEBERAAUER
ML EANE IS TS - R EREWIFFHER
Z MFERBABBEEN -ERXCRER
R TAPNZEREREREAAE
PAHMEEKE  RERMMRRZS
REWIFFHER 5 BFFTAEAI AR AR
RIEHE REFHERRANFHREAH
BmaR M FE37(0) °

annual report.
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24 LONG-TERM DEPOSITS 24 REiR €
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
20205 12H318 202063 A31H
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARBTT

Deposits paid for acquisition of property, — UEEWE - BB & & # & F A

plant and equipment and right-of-use BEZEMNES

assets 33,042 26,952
25.INVENTORIES 2578

At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
i i
2020612A31H 202093 H31H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETF T
Materials and consumables Yk BOE R 24,964 27,577
Gas appliances MREE 5,760 2,462
Merchandises S 4,588 6,338
Gas KRR 16,275 8,013

51,587 44,390

Biis
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26.TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER 26.B5 - EE R HMEIK
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS B R FENFIE

At At

31 December 31 March

2020 2020

2020%12H31H 2020F3831H

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARBTT

Trade receivables B 5 rEW A 52,770 83,409
Bills receivables F R EWFIE 14,974 8,789

67,744 92,198
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (5.728) (5,036)

Total trade and bills receivables (net of ECL) & 5 M=% fE sk 458

(MEpEMREEESE) 62,016 87,162
Deposits paid for purchase of natural BERAR  EEMK:
gas; cylinder gas; merchandises and ARk IEMEE RS
construction materials 83,149 37,147
Rental and utilities deposits and prepayments & & A FA = £ 154 N T8 208 3,572 12,557
Other tax recoverable H M A] I B F IE 5,629 14,251
Amounts due from non-controlling interests & U4 FE 4% I 4 25 FUIB 36,639 10,235
Other receivables and deposits b fEBGRIA R IR € 65,903 51,530
Total other receivables and prepayments Eh 8 W IR R TR AN FRIE AR R 194,892 125,720
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEBRE (33,259) (37,327)

Total other receivables and prepayments e W IR R TR FOIE B RE
(net of ECL) (MBRFEHEEER) 161,633 88,393

223,649 175,555
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26.TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

(Continued)
Trade receivables

The Group has a policy of allowing a credit period ranging
from 0 to 180 days to its customers. Longer credit period
is also allowed on a case by case basis. The following is
an aged analysis of trade and bill receivables, net of ECL,
presented based on the invoice date, which approximated the
revenue recognition date for sales of gas and the respective
construction contracts completion dates, as appropriate:

26. B 5 » 2B R H A E K

HLARFENIE @

B 5 EWKA

AEBNBK AL THEEF FH0E180H
WEEH - STEANER  AEEIH TR
EMEEH - ZEZ0 8 (HEERRKA
HREHREENELARTK B E (@
B)EE)FTEE S REERMERIE (F0k
TEHEEEE) MERE ST T

At At

31 December 31 March

2020 2020

" I

2020%12H31H 2020%3H31H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®ET R AR®T T

0 to 90 days 0290H 37,702 72,419
91 to 180 days 912 180H 3,310 1,802
Over 180 days 180H A £ 6,030 4,152
Trade receivables B 5 e I8 47,042 78,373
0 to 90 days 0£90H 6,756 3,139
91 to 180 days 912 180H 4,853 5,650
Over 180 days 180H A £ 3,365 =
Bills receivables SRR IR 14,974 8,789

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group's trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of approximately RMB6,030,000 (31 March 2020:
RMB4,753,000) which are past due as at the reporting date.
Out of the past due balances, approximately RMB6,030,000
(31 March 2020: RMB4,152,000) has been past due 90 days or
more and is not considered as in default based on the Group's
assessment of historical credit loss experience of the existing
debtors and available forward-looking information, including
but not limited to the expected economic conditions in the PRC
and expected subsequent settlements. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

202012 4318 » A& B A &R R
FEEERESLERNARKE,030,000
7T (2020%F3 A31H: AR #4,753,000
TR EWERF ELBKRERERARE H
B -FEIHNERKRERN DAR
#6,030,0007T (20203 A31H: AR ¥
4,152,0007T) © B HA00 RN E KM - T &
HEREZENNLRBAREETHERAE
FAFAESHREEEE  BFETRR
B R TEH AR A R TE IR 6 B 4 o
AREEWERZELEARITEEMERR -

PREBRERAR
2020F 3R (B E2020F12A31HLEAER)
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As at 31 December 2020, included in other receivables and
prepayments, there are deposits and advance payments to
suppliers of approximately RMB83,149,000 (31 March 2020:
RMB37,147,000) in relation to the purchase of natural gas;
cylinder gas and merchandises, which will be delivered within
one year from the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2020, included in other receivables and
prepayments, are amounts due from non-controlling interests
of subsidiaries of approximately RMB30,879,000 (31 March
2020: RMB4,876,000) in relation to the sales of natural
gas, cylinder gas and merchandise. Out of the balances,
approximately RMB22,630,000 (31 March 2020: nil) has been
past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default as
subsequent to 31 December 2020, the non-controlling interests
of a subsidiary and the subsidiary of the Company have agreed
that such amount due from the non-controlling interests of a
subsidiary will be settled by amounts due to non-controlling
interests of the subsidiary. The remaining balance of
approximately RMB8,249,000 (31 March 2020: RMB4,876,000)
is aged 0 to 90 days.

As at 31 December 2020, included in other receivables and
prepayments, are amount due from non-controlling interests of
subsidiaries of approximately RMB5,760,000 (31 March 2020:
RMB5,359,000) which are of non-trade nature, unsecured,
non-interesting bearing and repayable on demand.

Details of the impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 37(b) to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

72020512 A31 8 » H b j& Ug 5k 18 K T8 -
REPREBERBERAR BERRLE
mZEeRTHER Z2BENREBENAR
#83,149,0007T (202053 A31H : AR
37,147,0007T) ' FRIB G B & H HIRE —
FRRZf e

72020512 A31 8 » H Atb jE Yg 5k 18 K& T8
REPREBEHEERAR BERRKE
mn 2 FE LR B A R FE = IR M 2w 2 FRIA A
AR #30,879,0007T (202043 H318 :
AR #4,876,000T) c EHAF O ARE
22,630,0007T (20203 A31H : &) 2@
90R =k MA £ B #48 A 1R2020F 12 A31H
BAREX  ARBINBAR ZIFIERERD
BE SEK—FENEB AR 2 IEERERS
ZAIEEE M E AT 2 IR RS 2 R
e R FB A AR #8,249,0007T (202043 A
318 : AR #4,876,0007T) 2 BR ik T F-0=
90H -
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINT

VENTURE AND AMOUNT DUE TO
AN ASSOCIATE

Amount due from a joint venture as at 31 March 2020
was amount advance to Yunnan lJiehua Group. Out of the
outstanding balance as at 31 March 2020 was approximately
RMB14,000,000 which was unsecured, interest bearing at the
rate of 4.35% per annum and repayable on demand.

Other than that, the amount due from a joint venture, and

amounts due to an associate are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

27. B —E & EEFEREA

&Jﬁﬁ
ThIE

MR2020F3A31H Bl —E A& B EKIEA
A e 2 AR L S B 25K R2020F3 A31
H REZHEHH ARK14,000,0007T B
LI G F R R4.35% 51 B R BB SKE

o
R ©

F‘Eﬁ é(é( ** /\ —J Z

Brib 2 9h - R — & B (b ERIA AR B
—MEBERBZHKIAR/EER 28 NAR

;zx\1 3R o

28 IR ARBETTABGZZE

<
B E
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
20205 12A31H 2020%3H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREET T
Financial assets measured at FVTPL BARBEFFABE SREE
Unlisted wealth management products JELETHIEEIE S - 201,942
Analysed for reporting purpose as REBWE KD :
Current portion BN EA R - 201,942
Net unrealised gain included in other gains &t A H Uz K18~
and losses REIR Y25 FRE - 1,121

The Group entered into several contracts to acquire unlisted
wealth management products with various PRC financial
institutions. The returns of those wealth management products
were determined by reference to the performance of the
underlying investments and their expected return rates range from
2.9% to 3.6% (31 March 2020: 2.9% to 3.6%) per annum.

In the opinion of the management of the Group, the fair value
of the unlisted wealth management products at 31 March
2020 approximated their principal amounts as they have short
maturities ranging from 3 months to 6 months. All wealth
management products matured during the 9 Months Reporting
Period.

Eﬁz§2020¢1zﬂ315¢¢r§'$$@£ﬁi%
RPBRESREETIANNBEEIE EME
Euﬂuo%%%IEEJIL%WE’J@a&&ﬁ%%%%ﬁ%ﬁ&
BEMRBET BHERENTEF29%E
3.6% (202043H31H :2.9%%3.6%) °

AEBEEERE H2020FE3A318 ' 3F
ITTEMERNAABERERNGEES B
AZEERNIHEREE N T3EAZE
6f& B - MR 59 B HAM A - A A = &
B RIH -
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 # Z2020%F12831H 1t

ofEl A

29.BANK BALANCES AND CASH 9. BITHBRIRE

At At

31 December 31 March

2020 2020

Interest rate A n

A= 2020%12H31H 20204%3A318

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET ARET T

Cash at bank and on hand 0.03% to 1.75% (31 March 2020: 614,866 276,796
NIRRT R FHEES 0.02% to 3.50%) per annum

ERFE0.03%E1.75%
(202043 H31H :0.02%%3.50% )

As at 31 December 2020, the bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB602,259,000 (31 March 2020: RMB271,275,000).

Included in bank balances and cash, the following amounts are
denominated in currencies other than RMB:

R2020% 128318 AEB A REE
ZIRITHEHBRIR S ABHARE02,259,000
7C (2020438318 : AR ¥271,275,000
JL) °

RITERERSBETINAREAINE
KitEz ™

At At

31 December 31 March
2020 2020
2020%12H31H 2020%3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETTT

Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") B ([BE])
United States dollars (“USD") E7t ([Z=7T])
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REMBERERME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

=7 +
30.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30.E 5 & H th f& {5 58
Trade and other payables comprise amounts outstanding for BoOREMENKRBREE ZEERIFE
trade purchases and ongoing costs with the average credit RAZHAZNEE EEERCTFHEER
period on purchases of goods is 90 days. The following is an HI/RO0H » To ARG BHARBIEZERAH
aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice 2B FENFEZBRRD

date at the end of the reporting period:

At At

31 December 31 March
2020 2020

20209 12A31H8 2020938318
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETTT

0 to 90 days 0£90H 77,561 62,132

91 to 180 days 91£180H 11,360 5,868

Over 180 days 180H A £ 13,346 14,731

Trade payables B 5N IE 102,267 82,731

Piped gas customers deposits PREBRRAT RS 33,478 46,822

Amounts due to non-controlling interests & B B A A FE 1= AR 25 2 FRIE

of subsidiaries (Note (a)) (BFzE@)) 24,895 1,735

Other tax payables JE 1~ LAt 7% TE 23,753 25,311

Wages and staff benefits FeREERN 18,314 14,649

Retention payables and security deposits ~ [EfHRFE S REWREEZ S

received 23,534 25,155

Compensation received in advance (Note (b)) FEUK#HIE S (HIEE(b)) 16,999 =

Accrued charges and other payables FEEHE A K A b JE 1 5/ IE 26,667 5,023

Total trade and other payables B 5 R E M FE FRIE BT 269,907 201,426 [y

.g =
Notes: P 5T - £
('8

(@) Included in the amounts due to non-controlling interests of (@) ERMERRIERER 2 RER AR
subsidiaries approximately RMB23,213,000 (31 March 2020: nil) #23,213,0007T (20203 A31H : &) &
are of trade nature and approximately RMB1,682,000 (31 March Z 58 k& AREE1,682,0007T (20204
2020: RMB1,735,000) are unsecured, non-interest bearing and 38318 : AR#¥1,735,0007T) A &K -
repayable on demand, which is of a non-trade nature. TErERIZREREER BIFEHMEL-

(b)  Compensation received in advance represents amount received (b)y FEEWMBIMEERELE=FRIHAR
from a third party for compensating the removal of the Group's MERRAEEANEBNRRREN S
pipelines and gas facilities. The removal has not yet been BoHETEAFHRAH HFEBRIIEMRT
completed as at the date of issue of this annual report. The A e 72020512 A31H - B - BE &
carrying values of the related property, plant and equipment at REHEREE AL AR EE1,762,0007T ©

31 December 2020 are approximately RMB1,762,000.
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31.CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES 31

BREE AR

At At

31 December 31 March
2020 2020
2020%12H31H 2020%3H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Contract assets — current EREE-RS
Construction contracts in gas MRAEBRENERS L

pipeline construction

Contract liabilities - current EHEB-RY
Sales of piped gas EEMRREE
Cylinder gas supply AR AL E
Gas distribution KRR 5 88

Retail and wholesale of merchandise TE RAEE M

Piped gas connection construction contracts & & R E K EEE LD

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed because the rights are
conditioned on the Group's future performance in achieving
specified milestones at the reporting date on contract work.
The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when
the rights become unconditional.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
assets and contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

Construction contracts in respect of gas pipeline construction

The Group's revenue from construction contracts is measured
by input method. The Group requires certain customers to
provide upfront deposits before the commencement of the
construction work as part of its credit risk management
policies.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current because
the Group expects to realise them in its normal operating cycle.

When the Group receives a deposit before the construction
activity commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at
the start of a contract, until the revenue recognised on the
relevant contract exceeds the amount of the deposit.
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15,403 21,007
161,116 124,799
13,231 10,400
8,224 6,183
3,693 121
51,586 23,790
237,850 165,293

AEHEETZEAKEWRTKTIEZE
FER BN AR HAZSRABURNA
SERANTIERSAPEREERREMR
ZARRRE - ERNK B EGIER  GHNE
EEEEEHRPIERR-

TEORRANEERGNAGESHEMNA
B BRI T -

RREEERZEREN

AEBNEESHRARBRALTE -RE
RIIEFMRA ARBEERETEFRMHE
N AEEERREEBRZ —&D -

AEBEHEANEENEARDEE B
hAREBENEEEEERHNER®
SEE-

EASEETHAMKEIZSR EBES
MFRREELEENAE BEEHBANER
ZEABBIRE SR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

31.CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(Continued)

Sales and distribution of piped gas; cylinder gas; gas
distribution and merchandise

The Group would require advance payment before the usage
of the natural gas for certain customers, any shortage against
the periodically actual charge for the actual usage of natural
gas will be billed by the Group accordingly. These customers
are required to top up the advance payment for future usage
of natural gas to be supplied by the Group. The Group also
requires advance payment before the usage of the natural
gas through the prepaid card for certain household users. The
charge of the actual usage of natural gas will be deducted
directly to the balance of the prepaid card. These customers can
only consume the natural gas up to the balance of the prepaid
card. This will give rise to contract liabilities until the revenue
recognised on the relevant contract exceeds the amount of
advance payment.

The Group sells cylinder gas to its customers. Payment received
in advance that are related to the sales of cylinder gas not yet
delivered to customers are deferred and recognised as contract
liabilities. Revenue are recognised when cylinder gas are
delivered to customers.

The Group sells LNG/CNG to its customers. Payment received
in advance that are related to the sales of gas not yet delivered
to customers are deferred and recognised as contract liabilities.
Revenue are recognised when gas is delivered to customers.

The Group also sells merchandise to wholesalers. Payments
received in advance that are related to the sales of
merchandises not yet delivered to customers are deferred and
recognised as contract liabilities. Revenue are recognised when
goods are delivered to customers.

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current period relates to carried forward
contract liabilities and how much relates to performance
obligations that were satisfied in prior periods.

rzanfﬁz//ﬁaﬁiww

HERDHEERR BERKR
K m

AEEBERTEFERRARAEKE
IR AR E R R B A R A RUE
EHTEWEWA@WE KR - WL EFFHR

ERHREARNEERBHRARINE
- EMETEFPME AKETRER
ERRARNBREFEB/BAN REMNX
NRIE - BEREARARNERABEERTA
R BRI - It BRSPS R RAR
ERMASRNEBNRES- ﬁhEEA@E
& BEERBANERNOIRABBIERMNR
SRR

R D

fElT
?.HT

AEERTFHEEENR - BREERR

RN TFTEFPZERMRARZBWRKRADEL
MERREHNEE - BERAINTEFH

HERRAA

AEBEMEFPHERERAR,BHERAR
R AEMREERRRNTEP ZBEHK
HEELEMERA/AWAE RAXNTE
PR RER A -

AEBTRAEEEEEm - BHARN T
P 7S on $H S A8 B8 A TR UGROIE AR E N
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PaN pr~d =
31.CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES 3.EHNEE BfEw
(Continued)
Sales and distribution of piped gas; cylinder gas; gas MERDHEERR HERR BRDH
distribution and merchandise (Continued) kEHm (&)
For the 9 Months Reporting Period BEAHEER B E
Piped gas
connection Retail and
Sales of  construction Cylinder Gas  wholesales of
piped gas contracts gassupply  distribution  merchandise
EE EERR i 13 ZERME
RIHEE BREZESN MR M RE7 8 i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR ARBTR AR®TR

Revenue recognised that was BB TEHHA N B ELEH
included in the contract YY1 N
liability balance at the

beginning of the period 124,799 20,453 10,400 6,183 121
For the year ended 31 March 2020 HZE2020F3A31HILFE
Piped gas
connection Retail and
Sales of  construction Cylinder Gas  wholesales of
Piped gas contracts gas supply distribution merchandise
BB BEMRR i 3 ZERBE
MREE EEEEEHN igaig AR5 8 &
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&51) (251)
Revenue recognised that was ~ BETEFHANABLEH
included in the contract ERRBKA
liability balance at the
beginning of the year 110,755 21,365 22,306 10,847 3,459
Included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of RHEIHNEHNEBEESRT OARE
the period, approximately RMB3,337,000 (31 March 2020: 3,337,000t (20203 A31H: AR
RMB4,409,000) was not recognised as revenue during the 4,409,0007T ) R &k 2= A ¥ H91E A B I &
9 Months Reporting Period mainly due to the delay in the TRABBA  EERREETIREEM-

construction work.
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1= ==
LEASE LIABILITIES 32.FAE8E
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
i i
2020%12H31H 2020463A31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
Lease liabilities payables: ENEEAaE: AREBT T ARETT
Within one year —F R 5,596 6,347
More than one year, but not more than BE—FETBBAMFE
two years 3,868 4,883
More than two years, but not more than BB FEETHEBRF
five years 8,688 8,228
More than five years BB AF 6,579 8,445
24,731 27,903
Less: Amounts due within one year shown B RBIBEE N —FREIHZ 58
under current liabilities (5,596) (6,347)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities 3F/RE & E1E ~ & 8 19,135 21,556
H £
BANK BORROWINGS 33.8R1TEE
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
2020%12A31H 2020%3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B T ARBTT
Secured bank borrowings BHEBETEE 79,325 113,700
Unsecured bank borrowings EIEIRITEE 20,091 18,000
99,416 131,700
Carrying amount repayable: AIERZREE
Within one year or on demand —FERHIEENR 77,500 66,700
In the second and fifth year, inclusive FEEERAF (BREEMTE) 20,000 45,000
Over five years = 1,916 20,000
99,416 131,700
All secured and unsecured bank borrowings are floating rate FEEERREERRITEEASRETE
borrowings of which interest rates are in the range of People's EREE FEENFHEARRITEARF E
Bank of China base rate plus 0% to 0.15% (31 March 2020: 0% %=0.15% (2020F3A31H : 0.15% %
0.15% to 0.87%) per annum. 0.87% ) °
Certain assets of the Group are pledged for the secured bank AEBZETEEERBRBRITEEE
borrowings, details of which are set out in note 46 to the AR HEFBE R AN F RS R R M=
consolidated financial statements of this annual report. 46 °
FRERERAF
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #Z2020%F12H31H 9@ A

34.DEFERRED TAXATION 34 IE 3E B IE

At At

31 December 31 March

2020 2020

IS I

2020%12H31H 202043 A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AREF T

(Restated)

(E75)

Deferred tax assets RAEFLIAE E 4,605 4,274
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEEFE (32,614) (25,746)
(28,009) (21,472)

The following are the major deferred tax assets/liabilities

THRRAREEA BEME S BEFE

recognised and movements thereon during the 9 Months CEHMRTIBELHMIELE BAERHEE
Reporting Period and prior years: E
Fair value
revaluation
Accelerated  Allowance of equity
tax for credit instruments
depreciation loss Others at FVTOCI Total
BARETA
Hip 2 HE Uz
EBIE FEER ZERIAEZ
neE B Hit AAESMR a&t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®BTT ARETT ARBETT ARETR
(Note)
(PR&E)
At 1 April 2019 M20196F4 /11
As previously reported 41 %5¢ A 2 ¥ (3,659) 4,030 (4,442) (4,504) (8,575)
Prior year adjustments 387k F [E %

(note 51) (KM$3E51) = = = (14,112) (14,112)
As restated Eggl (3,659) 4,030 (4,442) (18,616) (22,687)
Credited to OCI REMEEREFA

(Restated) (&%) - - - 823 823
Credited to profit or RiBz=ETA

loss (note 13) (Mt3E13) 148 244 - - 392
At 31 March 2020 720203 A31H (3,511) 4,274 (4,442) (17,793) (21,472)
Charged to OCI E A 2 E a0 - - - (4,840) (4,840)
Charged to profit or RIE= R

loss (note 13) (Mt3E13) 132 (798) (1,031) - (1,697)
At 31 December 2020 7202012 A31H (3,379) 3,476 (5,473) (22,633) (28,009)
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34.DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 34 IRFEFLIE (@)

Note: The deferred tax was recognised in prior years in respect of M MASEEAEALEEE TWE BFEKEE
the Group's gain on disposal of certain property, plant and EEMEe 2GS EEHBERBES
equipment and prepaid lease payments. According to the EEER - BBEEECEMGERE ~5H
respective EIT Law, the Group can defer the EIT on such gain AR KA HIRERKA (1E ) B3t
after considering deductible reconstruction cost, if any. ZW R T TR R

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated R ERR NEBB DT ARB ARG E

unused tax losses of approximately RMB190,478,000 (31 March B4 ARK190,478,0007T (202043 A31

2020: RMB130,501,000) available for offset against future B : AR%130,501,0007T ) 7] FB 1B 8 A 2

profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of il I == D = A e o N o Rl 3

the losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. BEERARLEHIEEE ZERERNIEE

These unrecognised tax losses will expire in various dates up to BN AR B B ER - BEZE20254 (20205

2025 (31 March 2020: 2024). 3A31H :2024%F) »

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed BBEFRBECEMGRE SPEKE QA

on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC 20084 1 A1 B # BT Bk BUR | FT 5 R 2 %

subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation BH A TE M IA o 18 oK Bh FE 4G A B A

has not been provided for in the consolidated financial B AR Rsta M4 A RE1,182,825,000

statements in respect of temporary differences attributable 70 (202053 831H : AR #1,112,770,000
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting T ERHEEZRBNEE M B WMRFTIRE
to approximately RMB1,182,825,000 (31 March 2020: - REA T AE BB e L R =585

RMB1,112,770,000) as the Group is able to control the DM MZEEREEBaA TR

timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is A T8 &R 2R [B] ¥ o

probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

35.SHARE CAPITAL 35. 1% 7R
Number of shares
g G|
At 31 December At 31 March At 31 December At 31 March
2020 2020 2020 2020 28
R R # T 2
20206128318 202093A31H 20205128318 2020%3A31H =
HKD'000 HKD'000
BRI BB
Authorised: EIE
Ordinary shares of HKD0.07 each GREEB®0.07TT EBR 38,000,000,000  38,000,000,000 2,660,000 2,660,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR:
At the beginning of the year and the end of ~ EHLER
the year 8,934,561,203  8,934,561,203 625,419 625,419

PREZERBRAE 193
2020F 3R (B E2020F12A31HLEAER)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= & B %5 30 R 0 o

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

BSSHARE CAP'TAL (Continued)

35.

IR 7N )

At At

31 December 31 March

2020 2020

R ®

2020%F12H318 2020%3F831H

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBET T AREF T

Presented in consolidated financial REREMBBRERES A

statements as:

At the end of the year RER 564,507 564,507

36.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balances. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, including
bank borrowings as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report, cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to the owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital as disclosed in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report and reserves and the consolidated statement of changes
in equity respectively.

The management reviews the capital structure by considering
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the management, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

Categories of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of each of the following categories
of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period are set out as follows:

3@ IA

(a)

TMITAZSE

NTEEHEREENERABRR
EHRZEEERIIMT

At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
»n i
2020128318 202043 831H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®B T ARET T
(Restated)
(=7))
Financial assets SRMEE
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BRARBEst AHEMEEWRZ
E@mTA 167,780 132,946
Financial assets designated at FVTPL IEERIZARBEFAEBRZ
SREE - 201,942
Financial assets at amortised cost REEKARVEN SR E E 746,165 403,706
913,945 738,594
Financial liabilities cHMas
At amortised cost R SHRC AR 318,892 286,153

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, trade,
bills and other receivables, amount due from and to
a joint venture, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables, amount due to an associate and bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

FEBIZeRMIABERAAE
AAARMEEK R EETA EAR
REMABRSHECEREE -BEH -
SERNEMENE BN RN —
BMEELEIR RITEHBRIRES  H
ZREMEMNTIE BN —EEEQ
AIRERRITEE ZFETRTAZ
ABERBRAMNEARE EZET R
T E ARz B B A BB it 3 R B 2
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I E R R - AR I B B A R0 £ B
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The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to
variable-rate bank deposits (note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report) and bank
borrowings (note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report). It is the Group’s policy
to keep its bank deposits, and bank borrowings at
floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 March 2020, the
Group's fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to its
fixed-rate amount due from a joint venture (see note 27
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report for details). The Group currently does not have
an interest rate hedging policy. However, management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider other
necessary action when significant interest rate exposure is
anticipated.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank
borrowings at the end of the reporting period. Floating-
rate bank balances have not been included in the
sensitivity analysis as the management considers that the
interest rate would not fluctuate significantly in the near
future and therefore the financial impact to the Group
is not significant. For variable-rate bank borrowings, the
analysis is prepared assuming the amounts outstanding
at the end of the reporting period were outstanding for
the whole period/year. A 50 basis points (the Previous
Year: 50 basis points) increase or decrease in interest rate
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates. If interest rates had been 50 basis points (the
Previous Year: 50 basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit
for the 9 Months Reporting Period would decrease/
increase by approximately RMB422,000 (the Previous
Year: RMB560,000).

AREZREHRAEAREERT
BFIRRTTR (AFREA B
F U EE29) LR BRITIE B (A F 85
ABBBEMEIS) M - ARERR
%R B A B B R A R R
SRAT 1 HUA R AR 17 12 B LA B FI 26 21

B o
o

7202012 H31H K2020F3 H31
B AKREZAAEBMNEEARERSR
HEU-—RAELEZEENXERE
B (FBER2HAFREEMBER
RIEE27) o 76 B 3 By 3 S8 6 =R e
BR-AMm BEEEBERMNEEAR X
75 7 T8 A 3R B KN 3K L B B B AR
HRE A 4 Z1TE)

AR 2 SBR[ 2 4 T iR 1R )% &) Fi &
RITEERNRESHRZANERR B
EEMET - F M RIBITHE BT E
MAFREST BAAEEEBRALD
BAXETg XEES AlEAE
BT ETTEK RFEF X
RITEEMS  REZBEIMERRK
RBEBHRZREEABEESENE
FANMRER - BERAANTEZEETEA
B [E 3 7 X & B 05 2 145 F) & 0850
EE2 CBAFE SOEESR) » I8
REEEEBHMNERSEAAEES 2T
e WA R AT FAESOMEE 2 (B
FFEESORER) MATA H fib o] &
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18 A B 2 Bl 18 0 A AR 48 N4y
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560,0007T ) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fReMBRERMNE
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk associated with movements
in foreign currency rates which will affect the Group's
financial results and its cash flow. As at 31 December
2020 and 31 March 2020, certain bank balances of
the Group are denominated in foreign currencies other
than the functional currency of the group entities. The
Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange

3V.ER TR @

(b)

TREAREEEERBER (8)

& 2
BRI iE /NS E R EB)HEE A
BREAEE 7 HFEERARER
= 7 Ak 12020912 A31H %2020
F3[318  AEBEBETRITEHIEN
AEBEEBZIGEEE (BIARE) U
SNEY HNE B W ST B o 2N 5 B 3 4 A ]
SNEESTRIRER o AT © B IR [ BE IR HNE
B WERERERE R

exposure and will consider hedging the potential foreign JRE R ZINE R o
currency exposure should the need arise.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency ARMER NREBUIINEFEZ
denominated bank balances at the end of the reporting IRITHEBZIRABENT
period are as follows:
Assets
BE
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
20209 12H31H 2020%3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMF T AR¥ETTT
HKD i 11,379 4,191
usD ETT 1,228 1,330
Sensitivity analysis Bl 5
The Group is mainly exposed to HKD and USD currency NEE T BE YA R ET Y HIEE
risk. B o

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% (the Previous Year: 5%) increase and decrease in RMB
against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (the Previous
Year: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currencies denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5%
(for the Previous Year: 5%) change in foreign currency
rates.

TRHAVAEERE AR X AR SN
EHEKRRZES% (BEFE:5%)
ZEREE 5% CREFE 5% ) /A
MEEEEEABREINERBRATR
RZBERER X TRREEEHE
Kulge R BB 2 E - FRESMN
ERENIINSHEZ MARFAEEHEIR
B IRBERRABRELBIARBR
SMEE R 25% (BEFE:5% )&
o
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

A negative number below indicates decrease in post-tax
profit for the period/year where the functional currency
strengthens 5% (for the Previous Year: 5%) against the
relevant foreign currencies. For a 5% (for the Previous
Year: 5%) weakening of functional currency against the
relevant foreign currencies, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on profit or loss for the period/year and
the balances below would be positive.

(b)

3.2 T R m

TREAREEEERBER (8)

1 e [ s (435 )
SRR (AR )

28]

T B BRI W ) BE B L AR RE S
BIHES% CBEFE :5%) FREEZ
FEBRBBFNRD - ML ER Lk
HEINERZE5% CREFE :5%)
HaEim FERSEERSERIA
RzFZEMATERASLER-

Assets
B5E
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
»® n
2020%12H31H 2020%3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
HKD i (427) (157)
usD ETT (46) (50)

Other price risk

The Group is mainly exposed to price risk through
financial assets measured at FVTPL and equity instruments
at FVTOCI. The directors do not implement specific
measures to mitigate the price risk.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk, which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties, is arising from the carrying amounts of
the Group's financial assets and contract assets (excluding
financial assets at FVTOCI and at FVTPL) as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the
amount of financial guarantee provided by the Group
as disclosed in note 47 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade and bills receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of HKFRS 9 on trade balances
based on provision matrix. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
effectively managed.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a large number of
counterparties and customers.

Bank balances

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks in the PRC or banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies and the Group has limited exposure to
any single financial institution.

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 March 2020, the Group
performed impairment assessment on bank balances by
reference to the average loss rate for respective credit
rating grades published by international credit-rating
agencies and concluded that the expected credit loss is
insignificant.

3V.ER TR @

(b)

TREAREEEERBER (8)

05 S EETH

REAREMERESERR NEE
EEEEZk—HABRAEEIER
RE EEEHMEMERER N
EARRIURERBR@BHRMN &
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FORE  AEERRAMEEHER
N REBRBEREAZTEIEHE
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P

PH 2= 4k AA
IR77 4% B4
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Amount due from a joint venture

The Group has concentration of credit risk in respect
of amount due from a joint venture of approximately
RMB15,310,000 as at 31 March 2020. During the 9
Months Reporting Period, the Group received interest
income of approximately RMB665,000 (for the Previous
Year: RMB665,000) and recognised as other income in
profit or loss. In view of the timely interest repayment
from a joint venture, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the credit risk in respect to the loan receivable
is not significant. Having considered the financial position
of the joint venture as well as the economic outlook
of the industry in which the joint venture operates and
concluded that there has been no significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. The expected credit
losses on amount due from a joint venture is considered
to be insignificant.

Other receivables

The Group has taken into account the economic outlook
of the industries in which the debtors operate and
concluded that there has been no significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. The expected
credit losses on other receivables are considered to be
insignificant.
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37.E@ T A

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SREREEEZRBEK (B)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EE B RAET G (&)
The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment AEBAREERRTHEEUNTH
comprises the following categories: Al
Trade
Internal receivables/ Other financial
credit rating Description contract assets assets/other items
ESEWRES Hitbem&EE
REEETHR Ml BREE Him g
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL — 12-month ECL
and does not have any past-due amounts  not credit-impaired
1K = B2 HFEFEOVRRRE BREGEMaHeE FENEHEERE- 2EARBEEEE
BEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL — 12-month ECL
but usually settles after due date not credit-impaired
BREE BEEABRNIHBREE KRNI FEHBRHACEEEE - 12@AEBEEER
Big &5 BEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
in credit risk since initial recognition not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
through information developed internally
or external resources
ca=4 FRABRINEKERNEM  EERR FEMEHEERE- FERRHEEEE -
B ) 25 W 58 LA S BR #4E hn BEERE EBEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating that the asset is Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL — ,—3 b
credit impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired §§
g ERBEERZEEREERE FEHMRHERERE- TENBHMEREER - B
EERE EERIE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off ~ Amount is written off
debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery
i gH B RBIBEERES A LR BRI RS SHEC M © WM

AARKEAREER DK ATS

RRERERAE >0
2020F 3R (B E2020F12A31HLEAER)
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The table below details the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL

3.2 T R m

(b) £RIEAMEEBEEREXK (&)

EERR R ERF 1 ()

TRAMIHAEEEREENEER
Rk EXBRREHEEERE:

assessment:
External Internal 12-month or
Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
1218 B K= EH
M SHIBEEFR AFEETIR FAHEEEHE FRE#AE
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
720205 R20204F
12A31H 3A31H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET ARETF T
Financial assets at amortised cost
BRBERARTENERMEE
Trade and bills 26 n/a (Note(i)) Lifetime ECL (not 65,301 89,755
receivables TiE A (BFEEG)) credit impaired
B REEE and provision
U 2 18 matrix)
GEHEREERS
B (EBEERE
N BB )
Loss Lifetime ECL 2,443 2,443
g (credit impaired)
GEBEHEER
BB (EERE)
Amounts due 26 n/a Low risk 12-month ECL 36,639 10,235
from non- TiE A 1B/ Bz (assessed
controlling individually)
interest 2@ ABHEE
JE W FE 42 A B8 (BEERT
W R flr)
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37.E®MIA s

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) £REMREEEERBEE (8)
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERERERE G (&)
External Internal 12-month or
Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
128 A REFEB
Mz SIBEEFKR RABEEFTR RHUEEFAE IREARE

At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
20205 720204
12A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARBTT

Financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)

BBERATIIRNEREE (8)

Other 26 n/a Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not 38,394 21,276
receivables 38 A 75 credit impaired
and deposits and assessed
H th & R IB individually)
ke FEREHEE
R (BEE
DERIEPSERERERY
Loss Lifetime ECL 27,509 30,254
&5 18 (credit impaired)
FEBREHEE
&8 (EERIA)
Amount due 27 n/a Low risk 12-month ECL - 15,310
from a joint 38 A 1K 2 B (assessed 5
N =
venture individually) SB
Bl —HEEE 2@ A FEHEE s
DERIE 18 (BEmaTE) =

FRERERAE >03
2020 3R (B ZE2020F12H31H L hfER)
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

3.2 T R m

(b) EREAMREEEERBER (8)

1= B E B R opl BRI (4)

External Internal 12-month or
Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
1R2@BAREFEDR
Mz IBEETFIR ABEEFTR BHEESE REAE
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
720204 R2020%F
12A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)
RBHEASIRNEMEE (&)
Bank balances 29 Aa2 to Baa3 Low risk 12-month ECL 614,866 276,796
and cash Aa2 £ Baa3 1K [ s (assessed
RITHE R IR individually)
A REABBREES
B (BB Mm)
Other items
Hthig B
Contract 31 n/a (Note(i)) Lifetime ECL (not 15,403 21,007
assets TiE A (BFEEG)) credit impaired
BHEE and provision
matrix)
GEHEREERS
B (EBEERE
N BB )
Financial 47 n/a Low risk 12-month ECL 150,000 150,000
guarantee BNl 1B [ B (assessed
contracts individually)
(Note (ii)) REAEHEES
B IS ERE &Y B (EBFTMm)
(PR 2E (i) )
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes:

(i) For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure
the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with
credit-impaired which are assessed individually, the Group
determines the expected credit losses on these items
grouped by past due status for trade receivables and the
status of the relevant projects of the contract assets. When
there are indicators that the relevant contract assets maybe
credit impaired, the relevant amount will be assessed for
expected credit losses individually.

The Group uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment
for its customers in relation to its operation because
these customers consist of a large number of customers
with common risk characteristics that are representative
of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in
accordance with the contractual terms. Based on the
Group's assessment of historical credit loss experience
of the existing debtors and all available forward looking
information, including but not limited to the expected
economic conditions in the PRC and expected subsequent
settlements, the Group does not consider that default
occurs for those contractual payments that are more than
90 days past due.

3 7.2 ITE
SREAREEREREE (&)

(b)

EER bR X E G (&)

B -

@)

HESRRFARENEE A 5E
ERAEBYBRELFSREL
FRAFEFENBREEERENR
ERE  BREBFANEERERS
AN REEE S EBFIAR AL
BEMBEEBMRRE BRI D
BHESEEETRAEESE A
BREBEOEENETFEEER
B HESESEBTGRRERES

B

AEBEFREBEANRERRTIGER
FHELSEHBZRHE BAZSE
FReREEARRARKBRBEHRZE
FREEBEBEAS NGRS FETEE
NEEMREN BRI AR EEHIREE
HAELEEEBERZFTE R
BRI AMAIEEER (BIFEETRER
AR A TR HA OB AR R R TR HA 1R 1B 4
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

The Group used estimated loss rates based on aging
for classes with different credit risk characteristics and
exposures, and the estimated loss rates are estimated
based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure relevant information about specific debtors is
updated.

(i) For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying
amount represents the maximum amount the Group has
guaranteed under the respective contracts. The Group
has performed impairment assessment at the end of the
reporting period and concluded that the credit risk was
insignificant and there has been no significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial
guarantee contracts. Accordingly, the loss allowance
for financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group is
measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECL and no
loss allowance was recognised in the profit or loss. Details
of the financial guarantee are disclosed in note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37.E@ T A

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) ©RMEAMREEEEZREE (&)
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EE B RAET G (&)
During the 9 Months Reporting Period, the Group HEARREEA BHE  NEERER
made reversal of impairment loss of approximately HERRE S REBREWFKIBERE L
RMB838,000 (the Previous Year: impairment loss of BETIRA ARES38,0005T (AEF
RMB445,000) for trade and bills receivables and contract ERmEEE A AR445,0007T) B
assets based on the provision matrix. AR A -
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL TRETRBEEEHERE S LERE
that has been recognised for trade and bills receivables EWRIBEREHNEECHANTFER
and contract asset under the simplified approach. EHEEBE 228
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL Lifetime
(not credit (not credit ECL (credit
Impaired) impaired) impaired)*

FRARS FRARS FRARY
REFR REFR REFR
(YEEERE) (LREEAE) (FEEE)*

Contract assets Trade and bills receivables Total
EHEE EANRERUT AR &it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

At 1 April 2019 #2019F4A18 11 2,137 2,443 4,591

Reversal of impairment loss recognised BB BRI EE B (1) = = (1)

Impairment loss recognised BRAZAESR - 456 - 456 "
28
.E E

At 31 March 2020 1202043A31H - 2,593 2,443 5,036 _E
('8

Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAA - 1,530 = 1,530

Reversal of impairment loss recognised BB AR EEE = (1,850) = (1,850)

Impairment loss recognised BRRAZRESE - 1,012 = 1,012

At 31 December 2020 1202046128318 = 3,285 2,443 5,728

* Full provision was made for respective credit-impaired 3 EREANEERENE S EWRRK

trade receivable. BEH 2R -

RRERBRAE 507
2020F 3R (B E2020F12A31HLEAER)
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The Group writes off a trade receivable when there

is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of

3.2 T R m

(b) EREAMREEEERBER (8)

EE R LR E G (&)

HBEERBRERARREENTE
N EERBNERN SR AKE
SMEE S REKE MEBALE

recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under BREEARERT -
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
The following table shows the reconciliation of loss that TRETERR2EABHREEESRE
has been recognised for 12-month ECL and lifetime ECL RiFEBBEREEEENESEEM
on other receivables. JE M SR B $T B o
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(not credit (credit
impaired) impaired) Total
FESES
FEER FESES
(YE|EE FEBER
WAE) (FERE) A&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT
At 1 April 2019 R2019F481H 7,073 28,161 35,234
— Reversal of impairment — BB 2 HERARESE
loss recognised - (6,236) (6,236)
— Impairment —ERRREEE
losses recognised - 8,329 8,329
At 31 March 2020 202053 H31H 7,073 30,254 37,327
— Acquisition of subsidiaries  — U EEKTE A &) 387 - 387
— Reversal of impairment — B OB RREBE
loss recognised (2,988) (6,559) (9,547)
— Impairment —EERBEESE
losses recognised 1,277 3,815 5,092
At 31 December 2020 742020512 A318 5,749 27,510 33,259
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains the level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flow. The management manages
liquidity risk by monitoring adequate reserves, banking
facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows.

Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group's
business, the Group ensures that it maintains sufficient
cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity requirements.
The Group finances its working capital requirements
through a combination of funds generated from
operations and bank borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount
is derived from interest rate curve at the end of the
reporting period.

3V.ER TR @

(b)

TREAREEEERBER (8)

325 L TE A F] B
Jit Eb iz,

REERBREAMRE  AEBEER
MEFREEERRRABNASERE
BB KEZRe KREFEERA
YHERERENGZHE -ERE
BAREEERANERRERE
SRSt R SRITIRAE - WM E R
MEBE T E R

ARAEEEEBE AR RIEE &
AEBRRESERRONEHBE
UFAAEBRDASEE - AEE
BREURE LY ESRRTERE
AFTRBREELASEE

TREHNZBIDE EBGT A&
BIETES BB ERNBE VIR ZF
B RDBRERASENEHAE
ARERFRERMRZAZARUHAR
EREMMBmE - LR BEMNERAE
BEME - WA S AFEN R REE - 8
AR B RIBRE R ZF K
ARETE
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37.€E®MIA s

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SREABREEEERBE (&)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mEBE LR (&)
Weighted Within Within
average one year second to Total
effective or fifth years, Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate on demand inclusive fifth years cash flow amount
E-REER
METHER -FRIR  (BRER AERRE
GilE:S EXRE mE)  BEFHNE RELE REE

%  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR

At 31 December 2020 2020128318
Trade and other B SR EMEMFA

payables - 219,430 - - 219,430 219,430
Amount due to an  Ef—RBLAFFA

associate - 46 - - 46 46
Bank borrowings RITEE 414 79,966 22,688 2,101 104,755 99,416
Lease liabilities HERRE 5.27 6,731 15,107 6,856 28,694 24,731

Financing guarantee BEHRZREERAD
contracts issued
— Maximum amount —~RaEREE
guarantee 150,000 - - 150,000 -

456,173 37,795 8,957 502,925 343,623

210 Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
2020 Annual Report (For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37.€” T A )

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SREREEEZRBEK (B)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mE) B (&)
Weighted Within Within
average one year second to Total
effective or fifth years, Over  undiscounted Carrying
interestrate on demand inclusive fifth years cash flow amount
E-ERER
MEFAEER  —FAIR  (BREE RURRE
ME B4 mE)  FLFENE nERE KAfE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT AR%®Tn AR%Tr ARET:
At 31 March 2020 202053431
Trade and other payables 25 REHER *JX - 152,864 - - 152,864 152,864
Amount due to an associate N —HBIE AR - 1,589 - - 1,589 1,589
Bank borrowings RITEE 4.89 71,058 52,782 21,813 145,653 131,700
Lease liabilities HEaRE 5.27 7,664 16,172 9,009 32,845 27,903
Financing quarantee BREEBEARREH
contracts issued
- Maximum - SREREHE
amount guarantee 150,000 - = 150,000 -
383,175 68,954 30,822 482,951 314,056

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations
at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers
that it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial receivables
held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer
credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

ERFFAREEREOVNSERANE
@E%%ﬁi%%?$%ﬁ%@%%
BERATREBETE2ERESBELIARE
KEBNBERSE - RENRBSHR
mﬁ% AEERSERSBEREAH

ARIRR LA o AT - IR
#ﬁ? XS EFRBERELARY
AREEmA TR MENXZEF
FISEEREBEBEFARZEER
KBy HATEZERIOATBEEGIER -

fHF B A R 2B R S E HIREED
MEGEFAR - A LA EEIETE
TRABENIINETASENEH
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #Z2020%F12H31H 9@ A

37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c)

Fair value measurements

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used).

37.EmI B
(o0 AREFE

AEEBY

43

=W

NEMEETIREREHRR
BARERFNE TRERDMEE L
FeMEELARBZER (FRIERMR

ERZEETERBABE)

Fair value  Valuation technique and significant
Fair value hierarchy  unobservable inputs
ARE AREER EXAFTTEEZGAYE
At At
Financial assets 31 December 2020 31 March 2020
SREE 72020128318 R202043A31H
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT
(Restated)
(&31)
Unquoted equity
investments
classified as FVTOCI
PEREALEFNAR
tE2EARZEZF LT
BEIA
An entity engaged in 125,311 99,201 Level 3 Fair value is derived from market multiple -
manufacturing and enterprise value to earnings before interest, tax,
sale of glass products depreciation and amortization (“EV/EBITDA") of
business 9.4 (31 March 2020: 6.5) and discount for lack of
marketability of 20.6% (31 March 2020: 20.6%
(note a)
REHERHEERBERM F=RA  DAERBTHSEH-CEXEEHHRSNERE
B ER $4R1 2 M ([EV/EBITDA 1)9.4(2020%3A31H : 6.5)
Rz 5@ #20.6% (202063A318
20.6%) (MEa)=
An entity engaged in 32,833 21,342 Level 3 Fair value is derived from the market price-to-book
banking business ("P/B") ratio of 0.9 (31 March 2020: 0.65) and
discount for lack of marketability of 20.6% (31 March
2020: 25%) (note a)
RERTECER F=RA  DAEREHERE ([MKRX])0.9(202063H318 :
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements (Continued)

37. %rﬁl (%)
(o0 2RE

1113
fein /

(43
\El

Fair value  Valuation technique and Significant

Fair value hierarchy  unobservable inputs
ARE MREER EXATUBEZBAUE
At At
Financial assets 31 December 2020 31 March 2020
SHEE 72020128318 R202043A31H
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETT
Unquoted equity
investments
classified as FVTOCI
PEREALEHAR
2 B %
ZHLHEHETA
Entities engaged in sales 9,303 12,004  Level 3 Fair values are derived from market multiple — EV/
and distribution of EBITDA of 8.5 (implied P/B ranging from 0.9 to 1.5)
cylinder gas (31 March 2020: P/B ratio of 1.4) and discount for
and gas appliances lack of marketability of 20.6% (31 March 2020:
business 25%) (note a)
REHERDHERMR =R RAERBTSEH- EV/EBTDA 0.4(BEHEREN
RRFERKE L ER TF0.9%1.5) (2020838318 : MEXA1.4) ki
< WG AL #206% (202093A318 :25% )
(Ma) B
An entity engaged in 200 277 level 3 Fair value is derived from the market multiple-EV/

sale and distribution
of cookware business

REHERDHEEERE
FHcER

EBITDA of 12.7 (31 March 2020: EV/Sales of 1.73)
and discount for lack of marketability of 20.6% (31
March 2020: 25%) (note a)

E=HA  DAEBRETISEE- EV/EBITDA 12.7(2020F3 A31
B hEEE/HERIT) RBZTERBENE
20.6% (2020438310 :25% ) (Mizta)?s
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements (Continued)

3.2 T R m

() 2AREFEE)

Fair value  Valuation technique and Significant
Fair value hierarchy  unobservable inputs
ARE AAEER EXATUBREZBAZE
At At
Financial assets 31 December 2020 31 March 2020
tREE 7420205128318 H202043A318
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#T R ARETT
An entity engaged in 133 122 Level 3 Fair value is derived from the market P/B ratio of
FMCG and food 1.8 (31 March 2020: 1.8) and discount for lack of
ingredients supply marketability of 20.6% (31 March 2020: 25%) (note a)
business
RERMHENESEHB E=HA DR EREMERX1.8 (2020638318 :1.8) kit
ZER TG RAEHTE206% (2020634310 :25%)
(Biteta) 5
Wealth management - 201,942 Level 3 Discounted cash flow
products in the
PRC classified as Key inputs:
financial assets at Expected yields of underlying investments invested
FVTPL by financial institutions (note b)
PEREALETABE F=HA  HRReRE
ZEREEZFEEH
Ei TEHAHE:
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurements (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The higher the market multiples, the higher the fair value,
and vice versa. The higher the discount, the lower the fair
value, and vice versa. The significant unobservable input
is the discount for lack of marketability. A 5% increase/
decrease in the discount rate for lack of marketability,
holding all other variables constant, the fair value of the
investments would decrease/increase by approximately
RMB10,338,000 as at 31 December 2020.

The EBITDA and net asset value of the respective investees
used for the valuations at 31 December 2020 are based
on the audited financial statements or, where the audited
financial statements are not available, the management
accounts of the investees up to 31 December 2020.

The management of the Group consider that the impact
of the fluctuation in expected yields of the underlying
instruments to the fair value of the wealth management
products was insignificant as the products have short
maturities ranging from 3 to 6 months, and therefore no
sensitivity analysis is presented.

Loss of approximately RMB1,164,000 is recognised
in profit or loss relating to the change in fair value of
wealth management products classified as Level 3 for the
9 Months Reporting Period (the Previous Year: Gain of
RMB1,122,000).

37. ﬁl’ﬂml,\u )

(c)

D RE

o :

(a)

(43
\Ag )

-1/13
Imlm

mEEHEE AAESS  R2TR
RNeoTEME AABEBEK K2R
R-BRPNABRBABBERRZ
T 35 7 38 1 3T 28 0 7020204F 12 A 31
H #R= i’w‘//mﬁﬁ?ﬁ’"im/}ﬁ
L5% FTEEMESRFNE 4
BZRARER/BD /i%"jJD%\’J/\Eﬁz
10,338,0007T °

M2020F12 A318 2 G {EFF B HEE
REH R ZEBITDAR B E FE Jh iR
BREBGZM B RRIMEEESL
BRI HmE - AIREHREZE2020
F12A318EEBERB (B -

AEEEEERSERTAENELY
Yo a5 O B B IR B EE A R Y R
BYTEXR RERSZSTERPRR
BN FIE6E A - &2 55Ut
DT

RARSREE A BIf - Lo 48 7%”*
HrBRYERALBEZBEAER
HRBELOARKI 164, 00071:(15
AFE Wz ARK1,122,0000T) ©
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

Fair value measurements

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of

financial assets

37.€mI A

(d) 2AEE

Unquoted equity investments HLriEmTA
RMB'000
AREEF T
(Restated)
(E5)

At 1 April 2019 7201944 518 &

As previously reported 1h 45 Bl 2 3R 42,133
Prior year adjustments (note 51) BEFEFAE (HE51) 94,083
As restated =7 136,216
Additions NE 689

Fair value change recognised in OCI (Restated) BREEMEEREN AR BEED
(&%) (3,959)
At 31 March 2020 M2020F3 A31H 2 &8 132,946
Additions NE 433
Fair value change recognised in OCI BREEMEERSN AR BEEEZY 34,401
At 31 December 2020 2020912 318 2 &84 167,780
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37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

3. €@ I A

Fair value measurements (Continued) Rﬁtfﬁ% 2 (')
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of TREEF RN EG SRS R
financial assets (Continued) (&)
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREFTABEZZLHMEE
RMB’000
AREF T
At 1 April 2019 MR2019%F4 A 1H & =
Additions NE 1,084,000
Redemption & @l (883,180)
Fair value change recognised to profit or loss BREET ) 1,122
At 31 March 2020 202093 A31 8 & 201,942
Additions NE 669,682
Redemption FE (870,460)
Fair value change recognised to profit or loss BRE #E) (1,164)

At 31 December 2020

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent
it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the management establishes the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The management
reports the findings to the directors half yearly to explain
the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets
and liabilities.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that
are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during
the period.

M2020512 A31 B &8 _

ANAEGTE R G EEF

REFEEXBRENAIAEBR A&
ERAERATSIEREE -EE&
FREE-—REARER EEES®
REEEARYSENGERERE
ABE - BEREEGYFRAEZERSE
RUBREBEERABAABERKINER
B o

WHUNE IR EZ N A B EL
BEEKEHBEEZ N AE

EERB NEAMBHRRPIZHEH
RARENEREE RSB ABBENE
EEEEQAAERE-

HIRE— &
B -

FE_BRBE=RZEH
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

38.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for

BBREFTIMELEREBZ

#f Bk

TRFAVNAEEREETHMELTABE
H(BRERENFRECE) BELHM
EEZREEERSRECHARIADR

which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be classified in EBERAEEGERERERTOEAR
the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows BEERensEv8E.
from financing activities.
Consideration
receivable for Dividend
disposal of partial payable to
interestina  non-controlling
subsidiary without interests of
losing control subsidiaries
(included in other (included in Bank Others Lease
receivables)  other payables) Borrowings (note) liabilities Total
HEGELE
BHEZKE
DABIERE  EHKELR
ZEURE  FERESC
GHPN:{ RE (BarA Aft
EhzE) HHEAFRE) BfEE (Kt HEER At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETTR ARETR ARETTR ARETTR ARETR
At 1 April 2019 1201954A18 (1,449) 900 172,240 6,305 24,677 202,673
Financing cash flows BERLE 1449 (44,969) (50,590) (3,070) (8.967) (106,147)
Dividend declared to non-controlling B 2 A SEERER T k2
interests of subsidiaries & = 44,069 = = = 44,069
New leases itish- - - - - 10,795 10,795
Finance costs recognised ERARERA = - 10,050 = 1,390 11,440
Exchange realignment EiAE - - - - 8 8
At 31 March 2020 R202063A318 - - 131,700 3,235 27,903 162,838
Financing cash flows BERLTE - (33,083) (38,778) (1,553) (5,750) (79,164)
Dividend declared to non-controlling B 2 Al FEERER T k2
interests of subsidiaries k& = 33,083 = = = 33,083
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 40) MEEHB 2 7] (Hi340) - - - - 1,547 1,547
Finance costs recognised ERARERA = - 6,494 = 999 7493
Exchange realignment EiAE - - - - 3 3
At 31 December 2020 20208124318 - - 99,416 1,682 24,731 125,829

Note: The amount includes amounts due to non-controlling interest of
subsidiaries that are of a non-trade nature (included in trade and
other payables) and amounts due to an associate that are of a

non-trade nature.
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39.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. HE M E 2 A

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HZE2020F3A31HLLFE

On 1 May 2019, the Group disposed of 100% equity interest in M2019F581H AEBENUREARK
Chengdu Zhonglian Huaan Gas Co., Ltd. (“Zhonglian Huaan") 230,000t [A] — B F 3 56 = 5 i & A &R B
at consideration of RMB230,000 to an independent third party. ETMRARAB ([HEEZ])2100%
Zhonglian Huaan was principally engaged in the sales and PR - PEEL F BN FRERRME
distribution of cylinder gas. As a result, the Group lost control MEHE - AL NEB A AP ELR 2
on Zhonglian Huaan. -

The aggregate net assets of Zhonglian Huaan as at the date of REETNEE AR EEFELENT

disposal were as follow:

RMB’000
ARBTT
Net assets disposed of: EEFEE:
Property, plant and equipment M HE LR 172
Trade and other payables B 5 & E e I8 (93)
Net assets disposed of HEFEE 79
Cash consideration RENRE 230
Gain on disposal & e 151
Net cash inflow on disposal: HEEEZHEESRAFE:
Cash consideration received BUE S RE 230
Bank balances and cash disposed of HERTEHRRES -

B

230
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On 5 June 2020, EtRHFEREEREBR QA
(Beijing Civigas Zi He Keji Company Limited*,
“Beijing Civigas Zi He"), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into equity
transfer agreements with certain transferors (all of
them are independent third parties of the Group).
Pursuant to the equity transfer agreements, Beijing
Civigas Zi He conditionally agreed to acquire and
the transferors conditionally agreed to dispose of
an aggregate of 83.75% equity interest in % &
XU R)BERMAER AT (Yu Bai Jia (Beijing)
Shangmao Company Limited*, “Yu Bai Jia"),
formerly known as 1A#& & (L) BEKRH B R
A 7] (Bo Ge Sen (Beijing) Keji Company Limited*),
at a total consideration of RMB2,763,750 (the
“Acquisition”). During the current period and
before the Acquisition, It R REHEHFBFR A
7] (Beijing Civigas Zi Lian Keji Company Limited*,
“Beijing Civigas Zi Lian"), indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, has acquired 16.25% of
Yu Bai Jia at a total consideration of RMB536,250.
Yu Bai Jia is a company incorporated in the PRC
with limited liability, the issued shares of which are
quoted on the over-the-counter trading platform
operated by the NEEQ, (stock code: 870275). Yu Bai
Jia is principally engaged in the area of laboratory
equipment sales, installation and commissioning,
repair and maintenance services; provide laboratory
supporting scientific research equipment solutions
and testing services; provide laboratory equipment
import agency services in the PRC. The Acquisition
was completed in June 2020 and the control in Yu
Bai Jia was passed to the Group.

R2020F6 A5H Ik RHRE
AEREERAR ([LEPRE
&l AEBEHEZENBA
ANEETEELS (BRAKHE
BN E =T )R] AR E
EoRBERESZEDZ ILRP
REGAEBKHEREWE mEE
FEKEREHES £83.75%
AR (ER)EEROERA
AI(MMER] Al ABRKR
(R BHEEOBRAF) 2K
- ERERARMEK2763,750
T (TWBEE]) - HAAHE R
WEEE A ERPRERE
RERAR ([LtRFREH]
rEEzHEZEMNBAR)E
U B 16 A R 2 16.25% /% & - 42
REAARYS36,2507T 1 A
RE—ERPREEMK 2GR
~E HEBTROPRBRERS
KERIZINZ ST A ERE (%
=5 :870275) AR EE
RABRREEREREHEE &
ELRAR HERRERSE 2
HEBZEIZERAOBFRERER
FRMAART  REERER
HEORERS - WESEHER
2020F6 H 5ok - M fai B K 2 4%
FlEEEREAREH-
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40.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

(a) For the nine months ended 31 December 2020
(Continued)

(1)

BEZXR (1E7)EER AR A (Yu Bai Jia (Beijing)
Shangmao Company Limited) (Continued)

0. BB B 2 = (o0

(a) EH ZE2020F12H318 LA (&)

(1)

AR (IER)BERDBERA

A (#&)

Consideration transferred: BEENAE
RMB'000
ARET T
Cash He 3,300

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date
of acquisition are as follows:

REERHERBEEREER
BEWT:

RMB’000
AR¥BTT
Inventories BE 374
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E A e Ug FR 08 4,819
Bank balances and cash WITHEBRIRE 298
Trade and other payables B 5 K& H M FE T 50R (873)
4,618
Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately WEEHBRASEN A RIK

RMB360,000 have been excluded from the
consideration transferred and have been recognized
as an expenses in the current period, within
the "administrative expenses” line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The fair value as well as the gross contractual
amount of trade and other receivables at the date of
acquisition was approximately RMB4,819,000. The
best estimate at acquisition date of the contractual
cash flows not expected to be collected was nil.

Bargain purchase gain amounting to approximately
RMB1,318,000 on acquisition of Yu Bai Jia is
recognised in profit or loss within the "other gains
and losses" line item in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

360,0007T B # 8 5 X B &
B IWERGEBEEMER
WamHmERA [{TTHAS ] "RZiE
mPER -

RUEEBE - B 5 & E A UG
B RAREUNRBEHNSEEL
AR ¥4,819,0007T ° AU BE B
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ZEEMFT AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= & B %5 30 R 0 o

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

40.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

(a)

For the nine months ended 31 December 2020
(Continued)

(1)

WAEZ (IE7) BERZ AR A (Yu Bai Jia (Beijing)
Shangmao Company Limited) (Continued)

Net cash outflow on acquisition of Yu Bai Jia:

40. WX BB I B8 2 B] )

(a)

#HZ2020%F128318 1L9@ A (&)

WEZXR (IER)BERG AR

435 )

Al (4)

WENmBER RS R FE:

RMB'000

ARETF T

Cash consideration paid EXHEeRE 3,300
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired B EWERE MRS EEER (298)
3,002

Included in the profit for the 9 Months Reporting
Period was loss of approximately RMB1,657,000
attributable to the consolidation of the loss of
Yu Bai Jia after the acquisition date. No revenue
was generated from Yu Bai Jia for the 9 Months
Reporting Period.

Had the acquisitions of Yu Bai Jia been completed
on 1 April 2020, total group revenue for the
9 Months Reporting Period would have been
approximately RMB1,748,517,000 and profit for
the 9 Months Reporting Period would have been
approximately RMB149,675,000. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purpose only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 April 2020, nor is it intended to be projection
of future results.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #Z2020%F12H31HLL9EA

40.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

(@) For the nine months ended 31 December 2020
(Continued)

(i)

AN R AR 2 A (Dali Civigas Company
Limited)

On 3 July 2020, EEHFREMAER A E (Yunnan
Civigas Company Ltd*, “Yunnan Civigas”), an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Group,
entered equity transfer agreements with certain
transferors (one of the transferor is Yunnan Jiehua,
the then joint venture of the Group, it was a related
party transaction of disposal of 70% of equity
interest thereon with consideration of approximately
RMB234,000). Pursuant to the equity transfer
agreements, Yunnan Civigas conditionally agreed
to acquire and the transferors conditionally agreed
to dispose of an aggregate of 100% equity interest
in KEFRRMIERAE (Dali Civigas Company
Limited*, “Dali Civigas”) at a total consideration
of RMB334,800. Dali Civigas is a company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability. Dali
Civigas is principally engaged in the area of sales
and distribution of cylinder gas. The transactions
were completed in August 2020 and the control in
Dali Civigas was passed to the Group.

40 W B T B A B) ()

(a)

#HZ2020%F128318 1L9@ A (&)

(i)

AREAEMRER 2 F]

R2020F7 438 ZEMHRMRT
ERAR([EEHPR]  A&EEH
ZEEzENBAR)BETE
BH(EBEEHER—HFALAEER
ERZEECEEEREL Rit
HET0% KR  REHEARM
234,0007T W ABHR 5) 5]
SRR R - AR R R
W EEPREKEREWE
MEZF KGR E L EREF
RBMREBRRAR ([REBHERE])
G H100%KE BREAAR
#334,800L° KIEFR R AR F
Bl XA Z BB R A Al o KIEAH
RESEWEHEMRBE - ZR
5 B 20208 H ST AX » T A IR
PRZIEHEEEBREAER-

Consideration transferred: BEEERE:
RMB'000
ARBT T
Cash in 335
Acquisition-related costs amounting to WHEEBEKRASENHNARK

approximately RMB24,000 have been excluded
from the consideration transferred and have been
recognised as an expense in the current period,
within the "administrative expenses" line item in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FMEMBERRME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

40.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. W BB B /8 2 B

(Continued)

(a) For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 (a) & =20205F12H831HWL9EA ()

(Continued)

(i) RNEBEHFRMTERA A (Dali Civigas Company (ii)
Limited) (Continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date
of acquisition are as follows:

REHEMRBR A (E)

KRB B HE W EE R ERR
BEWT:

RMB’000

ARETF T

Property, plant and equipment Y B Rk 226
Right-of-use assets EREEE 287
Inventories FE 1,090
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H g W GRIA 589
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRS 211
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk EH M E R 5RIA (1,638)
Lease liabilities HESE (235)
530

The fair value as well as the gross contractual
amount of trade and other receivables at the date of
acquisition of approximately RMB589,000. The best
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash
flows not expected to be collected was nil.

Bargain purchase gain amounting to approximately
RMB195,000 on acquisition of Dali Civigas is
recognised in profit or loss within the "other gains
and losses" line item in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

40.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

(a) For the nine months ended 31 December 2020
(Continued)

(i)

AN R AR 2 A (Dali Civigas Company
Limited) (Continued)

Net cash outflow on acquisition of Dali Civigas:

0. BB B 2 = (o0

(a) EH ZE2020F12H318 LA (&)
(i) AEHPEMRBEMRAA (E)

WEARERR 2B R FRE

RMB’000
ARETF T
Cash consideration paid EXHEeRE 335
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired B BEWERSRRSEFEER (211)
124
Included in the profit for the 9 Months Reporting RAEF REE CEINEFEG

Period was profit of approximately RMB456,000
attributable to the additional business generated by
Dali Civigas. Revenue for the 9 Months Reporting
Period includes approximately RMB6,387,000
generated from Dali Civigas.

Had the acquisitions of Dali Civigas been completed
on 1 April 2020, total group revenue for the
9 Months Reporting Period would have been
approximately RMB1,749,577,000 and profit for
the 9 Months Reporting Period would have been
approximately RMB151,964,000. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purpose only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 April 2020, nor is it intended to be projection
of future results.

i 49 A R #456,0007T B 5F A
AREEABHE 2w -H=E
AR E9E B HA R A B IR KR
FRESZH ARE,387,000
3T o

fisf st B K32 A R 7420204 A1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= & B %5 30 R 0 o

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

40.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

(a) For the nine months ended 31 December 2020
(Continued)

(ifi)

5 ] 52 oA 25 2T BEIR £H 1% A IR 23 & (Yunnan Jiahong
Ming Xin Nengyuan Keji Company Limited)

On 27 August 2020, Yunnan Civigas entered equity
transfer agreements with certain transferors (all of
them are independent third parties of the Group).
Pursuant to the equity transfer agreements, Yunnan
Civigas conditionally agreed to acquire, and the
transferors conditionally agreed to dispose of, an
aggregate of 51% equity interest in 227 5z 5A 4T AE
JREEHEAB R A F] (Yunnan Jiahong Ming Xin Nengyuan
Keji Company Limited*, “Yunnan Jiahong Ming") at
a total consideration of RMB453,000. Yunnan Jiahong
Ming is a company incorporated in the PRC with
limited liability. Yunnan Jiahong Ming is principally
engaged in the area of sales and distribution of
cylinder gas. The transactions were completed in
September 2020 and the control in Yunnan Jiahong
Ming was passed to the Group.

40. W BB KT B A~ B] ()

(a)

#HZ2020%F128318 1L9@ A (&)

(iii)

T3 A HEFTRERFHR B IR A A

MR2020%F8 H27H  Emgh R &
ATHEZERS (MAXSE BT
FE=F)EINREERGE R
BEREEZERE EMTRARK
HREWE mEEFBKRER
EHEAH51%E /M 5 oh 8
BEREHAER AR ([EEEGA
gz BRREBARY
453,0007c° EF 5L 86 5 —
RAREMKZZERAR E
MR FTEREEER M
fE-ZER HEMN2020F9A &
B MErE oA 2 HIED 8
BEREH-

Consideration transferred: B AE
RMB’000
AREF T
Cash B 453
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

40.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES A40. W BB BT B 2~ B (a0
(Continued)
(a) For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 (a) EH ZE2020F12H318 LA A (&)
(Continued)
(i)  ZE 5 5A S FTREIRTHE B R 2 A] (Yunnan Jiahong (i) ZEmMEASEFTEERFHEEGR A A
Ming Xin Nengyuan Keji Company Limited) (&)
(Continued)
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date U EE B HI B U A E R TR
of acquisition are as follows: BEEAT:
RMB’000
ARBTT
Property, plant and equipment Y - B Rt 220
Inventories TE 32
Trade and other receivables B 5 K& A b e W FkIE 150
Bank balances and cash RITHESBRRIRE 478
Trade and other payables B 5 R E M FEMRIA (553)
327
The fair value as well as the gross contractual RUHE BB - B 5 & A A UG
amount of trade and other receivables at the date of BZAREARBREHNEBRA
acquisition of approximately RMB150,000. The best A R #150,0007T 1A Y 8 H HB
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash B rglEsEHREREZ
flows not expected to be collected was nil. HEMFTRET-
Acquisition-related costs amounting to RMB nil. WEEEXNASBEARKES T
28
3 =
c
£
('8
PFRERERAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FMEMBERRME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

40.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. W BB B /8 2 B

(Continued)
(a) For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 (a) & =20205F12H831HWL9EA ()

(Continued)

(i)  ZE 5 5A B FTEEIRTHE B R 2 A] (Yunnan Jiahong EFE 5 oLt FTEE R B IR A A
M/ng Xin Nengyuan Keji Company Limited) (%)
(Continued)
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WEEE ZEE:
RMB’000
AR¥ETT
Consideration transferred BEEENRE 453
Plus: Non-controlling interest (49% share of net il : é‘HinTﬂ_ (EEERAEEFE
assets of Yunnan Jiahong Ming) 160
Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired : EH&ZE%EI%%E‘JEEZQ/‘ME (327)
286

Note: The non-controlling interest in Yunnan Jiahong Ming
recognised at the date of acquisition was measured
by reference to the respective proportionate shares
of recognised amounts of net assets of Yunnan
Jiahong Ming.

Net cash inflow on acquisition of Yunnan Jiahong
Ming:

BifeE: U E B AR R BRI 52 0084
JEEI R DR2EERER
EmZ A EEFENMERLL
PItD Rt &

WEEmMELE ZRERAF
2H -

RMB’000

AR¥ETF T

Cash consideration paid BEXNBESNRE 453
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired BoBWBERe KRB EEEER (478)
25

Included in the profit for the 9 Months Reporting
Period was profit of approximately RMB49,000
attributable to the additional business generated
by Yunnan Jiahong Ming. Revenue for the 9
Months Reporting Period includes approximately
RMB3,737,000 generated from Yunnan lJiahong
Ming. No revenue, profit or loss was generated
by Yunnan Jiahong Ming before the date of
acquisition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #Z2020%F12H31HLL9EA

40.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

(@) For the nine months ended 31 December 2020
(Continued)

(iv)

Qiannan Civigas

On 19 August 2020, EMP ERMEER A A
(Guizhou Civigas Company Limited*, “Guizhou
Civigas”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, entered equity transfer agreement
with transferor. Pursuant to the equity transfer
agreement, Guizhou Civigas conditionally agreed
to acquire, and the transferor conditionally agreed
to dispose of an aggregate of 30% equity interest
in Qiannan Civigas at a total consideration of
RMB1,500,000 (the “Acquisition”). Prior to the
Acquisition, the Group had 40% equity interest
in Qiannan Civigas which was accounted for as
an associate of the Group. Qiannan Civigas is a
company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability. Qiannan Civigas is principally engaged in
the area of sales and distribution of cylinder gas.
The transaction was completed in September 2020
and the control in Qiannan Civigas was passed to
the Group. On completion of the Acquisition, the
Group has 70% equity interest in total in Qiannan
Civigas.

Gain on re-measurement of pre-existing
interest in an associate to the acquisition date
fair value

The pre-existing interest in Qiannan Civigas held
by the Group immediately before the business
combination was approximately RMB1,979,000. The
acquisition-date fair value of pre-existing interest in
Qiannan Civigas was approximately RMB2,098,000,
and a gain of approximately RMB119,000 on re-
measurement of pre-existing interest in Qiannan
Civigas at acquisition date was recognised in profit
or loss within the "other gains and losses" line item
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

40 W B T B A B) ()

(a)

#HZ2020%F128318 1L9@ A (&)

(iv)

BETE

202058 198 @ & M B R
RERLB ([BMPR] - A"E&E
ErmE2EKBAR) EEE
T3 BT SR R R o AR IR IR
BERE EMNPREGERE
WErREZSERGERELE
AH3I0%BHPRZIEE  B1R
EA AR%1,500,0007T ([ U EE
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R ZBRAR BEFREE
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THIED SR EAEE - RUREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FMEMBERRME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

40.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 40.WEEHT B A 8] ()

(Continued)

(a) For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 (a) # ZE2020F12H318 L9AA (&)
(Continued)
(iv)  Qiannan Civigas (Continued) (iv) BEFE (&)
Gain on re-measurement of pre-existing B ER —RBHEELGZRE
interest in an associate to the acquisition date BnZWEARAALBEZ K
fair value (Continued) (#&)
Consideration transferred: EERENAE:
RMB'000
ARET T
Cash bizhc 1,500
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date PRUEE B R W & = RERER
of acquisition are as follows: BENRT:
RMB'000
ARET T
Property, plant and equipment Y% BB K& 16
Inventories 58 231
Long-term deposits RH%Z® 1,500
Trade and other receivables B 5 H b fE IR 1,342
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRE 2,083
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk H A FE R FIE (225)
4,947
Acquisition-related costs amounting to RMB nil. WHERAKASBEARKES T
The fair value as well as the gross contractual RUEE B - B 5 R H A JE K
amount of trade and other receivables at the date BZARERNRBEERRFERE
of acquisition of approximately RMB1,342,000. The AR #1,342,0007T - A U B8 B
best estimate at acquisition date of the contractual HEGTgRE &5 0RSRE
cash flows not expected to be collected was nil. ZEEMFT AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

40.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 40.WEEHT B A 8] ()

(Continued)

(a) For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 (a) EH ZE2020F12H318 LA A (&)
(Continued)
(iv)  Qiannan Civigas (Continued) (iv) BEFE(E)
Gain on re-measurement of pre-existing B ER—RBHEELGZRE
interest in an associate to the acquisition date BnZWEARAAEZ KD
fair value (Continued) (#&)
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WIEEE ZEE:
RMB'000
AR¥ETTT
Consideration transferred EERAKE 1,500
Plus: Non-controlling interest (30% share of i : JE¥ERIER ((EB P REEFE
net assets of Qiannan Civigas) #30% ) 1,484
Acquisition-date fair value of the Group's AEEZRHESERRERKERD
previously held equity interest in Qiannan ANIE]
Civigas 2,098
Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired Ji : B WEE I #RIEEZ AR E (4,947)
135
Note: The non-controlling interest in Qiannan Civigas Mzt : RS BB P RIE
recognised at the date of acquisition was measured ERER HE2EZEERY
by reference to the respective proportionate shares R R & D E /AR A 140
of recognised amounts of net assets of Qiannan it = o
Civigas.
e s L,
Net cash inflow on acquisition of Qiannan Civigas: KWEEETPRZBSRAFE: S
RMB’000 =
AREFTT
Cash consideration paid BEXFHHEESRE 1,500
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired B BWERERRSEEER (2,083)
583
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= & B %5 30 R 0 o

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

40.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

(a) For the nine months ended 31 December 2020
(Continued)

(iv)  Qiannan Civigas (Continued)

Gain on re-measurement of pre-existing
interest in an associate to the acquisition date
fair value (Continued)

Included in the profit for the 9 Months Reporting
Period was loss of approximately RMB37,000
attributable to the additional business generated
by Qiannan Civigas. Revenue for the 9 Months
Reporting Period includes approximately
RMB156,000 generated from Qiannan Civigas.

Had the acquisitions of Qiannan Civigas been
completed on 1 April 2020, total group revenue for
the 9 Months Reporting Period would have been
approximately RMB1,748,260,000 and profit for
the 9 Months Reporting Period would have been
approximately RMB151,867,000. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purpose only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 April 2020, nor is it intended to be projection
of future results.

(v)  Yunnan Jiehua

On 1 October 2020, Yunnan Civigas, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered
supplemental agreement with the other shareholder
of Yunnan Jiehua that the decisions of relevant
activities that significantly affect the return of
Yunnan Jiehua are made by majority votes at the
board of directors’ meeting of Yunnan lJiehua. As
the Group holds 51% of equity interest in Yunnan
Jiehua and controls the composition of the board
of directors, Yunnan Jiehua became the subsidiary
of the Group with effect from 1 October 2020.
Such change of control did not involve any cash
consideration nor change in shareholding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

40.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 40.WEEHT B A 8] ()

(Continued)

Acquisition-related costs amounting to RMB nil.

The fair value as well as the gross contractual
amount of trade and other receivables at the date of
acquisition of approximately RMB29,112,000. The
best estimate at acquisition date of the contractual
cash flows not expected to be collected was nil.

WERBKASBARES T

RUEEBE - B 5 & E A UG
HZAREUNRBEHNSEEL
AR #29,112,0007T - AUk B& B
HEGTgRE &5 0RERE
ZEEMFTAS -

PREBRERAR
2020F 3R (B E2020F12A31HLEAER)
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(a) For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 (a) & =2020F12H831HL9EA ()
(Continued)
(v)  Yunnan Jiehua (Continued) ) ZEFFEE (&)
Gain on re-measurement of pre-existing BN ER—RBEELEZEFER
interest in a joint venture to the acquisition EZZREBEARAABEZ K
date fair value
The pre-existing interest in Yunnan Jiehua held by the MREBEEZEEBEH ZAASERE
Group immediately before the business combination MR BEZRBERER/HAR
was approximately RMB14,428,000. The acquisition- #14,428,0007T ° A =8 R 1L R
date fair value of pre-existing interest in Yunnan Jiehua BREEZKERBAREAROA
was approximately RMB15,420,000, and a gain of R ¥15,420,00070 ' REFH T2
approximately RMB992,000 on re-measurement of pre- PRI EE B IR EE R LR A s
existing interest in Yunnan Jiehua at acquisition date Z W 89 A R #992,0007T B Y
was recognised in profit or loss within the "other gains BmiiraiEs R Mk
and losses" line item in the consolidated statement of MEAE s REE] B
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. R o
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date AU EE B EA B Uk B A E R B RERR
of acquisition are as follows: BENRT:
RMB’000
AR¥ETTT
Property, plant and equipment LES VN 17,218
Right-of-use assets EREEE 9,139
Inventories FE 1,501
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b jE W5k IE 29,112
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERSE 20,597 e
Contract liabilities ERAEE (840) |
Trade and other payables B 5 K& H M FE R 50R (43,611) [
Tax liabilities MIEAR 672) [=
Lease liabilities MEAaE (1,312)
Non-controlling interests — subsidiaries of IR E S -E R E A
Yunnan Jiehua (18,152)
12,980



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FMEMBERRME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

40.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 40.WEEHT B A 8] ()

(Continued)

(a) For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 (a) # ZE2020F12H318 L9AA (&)
(Continued)
(v)  Yunnan Jiehua (Continued) ) ZEHEE(E)
Gain on re-measurement of pre-existing BN ER—BEELEZRE
interest in a joint venture to the acquisition BRZRBRAALEZ KR
date fair value (Continued) (#)
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WEEEZmE:
RMB'000
ARET T
Consideration transferred BEERE =
Plus: Non-controlling interest of Yunnan Jiehua Al : ZE 5L IEE S ((H 2R 1L
(49% share of net assets of Yunnan Jiehua) EEFERNLI9% ) 6,360
Acquisition-date fair value of the Group's AEEZRIFEEmA bERKER D
previously held equity interest in Yunnan AN
Jiehua 15,420
Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired Jg : E W AR EEFEZ AL E (12,980)
8,800
Note: The non-controlling interest in Yunnan Jiehua i - RURE 2 B iR eV =R AR ML 3F
recognised at the date of acquisition was measured R DE2ECDHRE
by reference to the respective proportionate shares A AR AL & B F (B /AR At 1 40
of recognised amounts of net assets of Yunnan HatEo
Jiehua.
Net cash inflow on acquisition of Yunnan Jiehua: WHEEm AL 2R E&MAFE
RMB’000
ARETFTT
Cash consideration paid BEXBEESRE -
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired B BWERERRSEEEE 20,597
20,597
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REMBERERME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

40.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. W BB B /8 2 B
(Continued)
(a) For the nine months ended 31 December 2020 (a) EZ2020F12H831H 19 A (&)
(Continued)
(v)  Yunnan Jiehua (Continued) v) ZEFEFENE(E)
Gain on re-measurement of pre-existing BN ER—BEELEZRE
interest in a joint venture to the acquisition EZZREBEARAABEZ K
date fair value (Continued) (&)
Net cash inflow on acquisition of Yunnan lJiehua: W EER(b cREMAFRE
(Continued) (&)
Included in the profit for the 9 Months Reporting HEBHEEERIELEE
Period was profit of approximately RMB744,000 ZEEINETS AR A AR
attributable to the additional business generated 744,00070 B 5T AR SR & 9fE A H5
by Yunnan Jiehua after the acquisition date. i 2 i M) o 78 3 591 A HAfE ik
Revenue for the 9 Months Reporting Period includes ABERIKE B B%ZmEE
approximately RMB34,714,000 generated from 2K ANR®34,714,0007T

Yunnan Jiehua after the acquisition date.

Had the acquisitions of Yunnan Jiehua been fisg 15 B 52 79 AR (L 7820204F4 A1
competed on 1 April 2020, total group revenue for HSERK # E2020F12A31H8
the nine months ended 31 December 2020 would WIER 2 AEE WA BER R
have been approximately RMB1,796,059,000 and 4 N R #1,796,059,0007T K& A&
profit for the 9 Months Reporting Period would WEIE A HB 2 AL A
have been approximately RMB153,071,000. The R #153,071,0007T < Z # £ &
pro forma information is for illustrative purpose BHEHFHPARSE T —EXRT
only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue U B 20204 A1B =R IB N
and results of operations of the Group that actually TAEEERIE < WA RLE
would have been achieved had the acquisition been XE M TRIERRRERCTE

completed on 1 April 2020, nor is it intended to be Al o
projection of future results.
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= & B %5 30 R 0 o

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

40.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2020

(b)

(1)

Beijing Daoting

On 22 March 2019, Beijing Zhongmin Zhongfeng
entered an equity transfer agreement with certain
transferors (the”Transferors”, all of them are
independent third parties of the Group). Pursuant
to the equity transfer agreement, Zhongmin
Zhongfeng conditionally agreed to acquire, and
the Transferors conditionally agreed to disposed
of, an aggregate of 73.50% equity interest in it
RAEREZEZMRISDBR A A (Beijing Daoting)
(formerly known as dt Rt B B BRI D B IR A 7
(Beijing Guangdian Interactive Technology Company
Limited)) at a total consideration of RMB6,321,000.
Beijing Daoting is a company incorporated in the
PRC with limited liability, the issued shares of
which are quoted on the trading platform operated
by the NEEQ (stock code: 871892.NEEQ). Beijing
Daoting is principally engaged in the area of
software development and information technology
consultancy in the PRC. In July 2019, Zhongmin
Zhongfeng acquired an additional 5.0% interest in
Beijing Daoting, increasing its ownership interest to
78.50%. Cash consideration of RMB336,000 was
paid to the non-controlling shareholder.

40 YR B T B A B) ()

(b)

B E2020F3831HLLEE

(i)

It REE

R2019F3 8228 bt A R &
femATEES ([#EF] 18
AAREBBYE=T )] AR RE
R E RIS E R
FRABBRE KGR B EmEE
FHEGHERZE LS 7EE (51
Bt R KB EEBERROERA
A1) 2£73.50% 2 B ARRE RS - AR
A ANR%6,321,0007T ° 4t =
BEA—BRPBEFMELIZE
RAR EEBETRMDREZEF
NEEBROEERGBRETA
AKENRSFE ERE (BRE
AR5 :871892. NEEQ) o4t i
L B B B R A
18 B iy 58 3 B 5 ° 742019457
B P REBKELRELZZHE
HN5.0% M e + A% EL P R A 2 3
INZE78.50% ° A R%336,0007C
ZHREREE I FIEZEB
%o

Consideration transferred: B AE
RMB'000
ARET T
Cash Be 6,657
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REMBERERME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

40.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES A40. W BB BT B 2~ B (a0
(Continued)
(b) For the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued) (b) EZE2020F3A31BILEFEE (&)
(i) Beijing Daoting (Continued) ()  JEFEE (E)
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date U EE B EI B Ui A E R TR
of acquisition are as follows: BEEAT:
RMB'000
AREFTT
Property, plant and equipment Y B R 1,200
Trade and other receivables E 5 & H b e W5k IE 105
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRINE 2,291
Trade and other payables B 5 R E M0 FERIA (244)
3,352
Disposal group held for sale FEH & 2 HEAAR 1,557
4,909
The fair value as well as the gross contractual U B H - 8 5 Rk H A eI R
amount of trade and other receivables at the date of BZARBEARREHNEERL
acquisition of approximately RMB105,000. The best AR #105,0007T ° 7 Ug B A H
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash BT ERE2EHREREZ
flows not expected to be collected was nil. HEMFTRET -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMEBERERME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

40.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES A0 BB BT B A Bl ()

(Continued)

(b) For the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued) (b) EHZE2020F3A31BILFE (&)
(i) Beijing Daoting (Continued) ()  JEFEE (E)
Premium charged for the NEEQ status arising on IR R mE £ 2 iR E
acquisition: EH:
RMB'000
AR¥ETT
Consideration transferred BEEERE 6,657
Plus: Non-controlling interest (21.5% share of Al : FEIEMREZ (G REEEEFE
net assets of Beijing Daoting) #921.5% ) 1,072
Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets acquiredii; : B W EE Al 4RI EEFEZ AR E (4,909)
2,820
Note: The non-controlling interest in Beijing Daoting MoeE: RUEEE BRERMIL RBIEIE
recognised at the date of acquisition was measured TR D2 EBRERIL
by reference to the respective proportionate share of REBEAEFEML A ER
recognised amounts of net assets of Beijing Daoting. £
The premium paid is recognised in profit or loss in BERED R B A E b s &
other gains and losses. EHRERER -
Net cash outflow on acquisition of Beijing Daoting: WL REE R &ML FE
RMB'000
AR¥TT
Cash consideration paid BENRERE 6,657
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired B BWERERRSEEIER (2,2917)
4,366
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fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

40.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

(b)

(i)

Beijing Mutong Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
Mutong”)

On 8 November 2019, Zhongmin Zhongfeng and
Beijing Civigas Gas Installation Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
Installation”), both wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Group, entered the equity transfer agreements
with four transferors, all of them are independent
third parties of the Group. Pursuant to the equity
transfer agreements, Zhongmin Zhonfeng and
Beijing Installation conditionally agreed to acquire,
and the transferors conditionally agreed to disposed
of, an aggregate of 100% equity interest in Beijing
Mutong (formerly known as Tianjin Mutong
Technology Limited (XKEMEBEERMNDER
/A®])) at a total consideration of RMB2,202,000.
Tianjin Mutong is a company incorporated in the
PRC with limited liability, the issued shares of which
are quoted on the trading platform operated by the
NEEQ (stock code: 872691.NEEQ). Beijing Mutong
is an enterprise data value-added service provider
specialising in big data analysis and software
development, including technology development
services, system integration services, sales of
hardware and software products, and provision
of data statistics services. The transaction was
completed on 20 December 2019, on that date the
control in Beijing Mutong was passed to the Group.

40. W BB KT B A B] ()

(b)

HZE2020F3H31BLLEFE (&)

(i)  EREEBFHE
([4E R BEE])

MR2019F11 A8 R AEN
IRPERRRIBLZEER AR
(TEtRIRBRLE]) (BAEAE
Br2EWEBAR)MENZE:E
H(BAEAEB ZBIE=7)
A1 R REEE E R o IR IR AR A 8
EZa PREBRIUERIER
EEKHERBEWE mMEEFS
&R 2 R E4 mREEE (B A
EMERAREROERAR)H
100% 2w BREBA
R #2,202,00070 c K EEER A
—ERFBEEMKIZZAEBRA
A EEBITRMARBRERFL
EHRZGEEEHRE(BRER
5 :872691.NEEQ) ° it R = 3@
EREFHBEEERERD &
JERNEE REE T A & 7
B OORBENHRERS RHiE
X AR 75 B 0 BE 14 2 R A 8 B A
FMREEESRRE - ZRX IR
2019412 208 e Ak » 4b R EE
BEHEERZBEBR TAE
@o

Consideration transferred: B (E
RMB'000
AREF T
Cash Be 2,202
RREZERERAF

2020F 3R (B E2020F12A31HLEAER)
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For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

40.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
(b) For the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued) (b)

(i) Beijing Mutong Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing (i)

Mutong”) (Continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date
of acquisition are as follows:

40. I BEMI B A A ()

HZE2020F3HA31B LLEFE (&)

I REBENRR G BRA A
([dtREERE]) (&)

KRB B HE WS E R ERR
BEWT:

RMB'000

ARETF T

Property, plant and equipment Y B Rk 693
Inventories FE 304
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H e W8 45
Bank balances and cash RITEHER S 241
Trade and other payables B 5 R EH M E IR (2,727)
(1,438)

The fair value as well as the gross contractual
amount of trade and other receivables at the date of
acquisition of approximately RMB45,000. The best
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash
flows not expected to be collected was nil.

Premium charged for the NEEQ status arising on

RUE R B 5 Rk E bR
BZAREURBENEREEL
AR ®45,0007T - AU HE B B3 T8
ATeREZANEEREZ &
EHEAAZ-

B8 R g A 2 B R (B

acquisition: B
RMB’000
AREF T
Consideration transferred BEEAE 2,202
Less: Fair value of identifiable net liabilities B BKRERRNEEFECARE
acquired (1,438)
3,640

The premium paid is recognised in profit or loss in
other gains and losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

40.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 40.WEEHT B A 8] ()

(Continued)

(b) For the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued) (b) #EH Z=2020F3A31BLEE (&)
(i) Beijing Mutong Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing (i) b REEBEPIFRG AR E]
Mutong“) (Continued) ([dEREEAE]) (&)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of Beijing Mutong: WL R 2 R R
RMB'000
AR¥BTT
Cash consideration paid ENBREESRE 2,202
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired B BEWEReRIRSEFEIER (241)
Less: acquisition-related costs (note) R BB AR (M EE) (525)
1,436
Note: Bt o
Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately WiE B AN £ B4 A K #525,000
RMB525,000 have been excluded from the consideration TCE R EE A ERMER - WERBRE
transferred and have been recognised as an expense for FEERARAX -

the Previous Year.

41 .SHARE-BASED PAYMENT MUBRGAEREBRI 2R
TRANSACTIONS Z

The Group operates a share option scheme for remuneration of rEERAEEL2RBESE (BEES) B
its full-time employees (including directors), consultants, agents il RIB A RAZ HBNER 7 — AR AR A =T
and advisors of the Group. £l
28
©
All services received in exchange for the grant of any share FAERBERTHRENRBEIRAAR §§
options are measured at their fair value. These are indirectly BEtE U2 EMETHRERERERRN B
determined by reference to the fair value of share options ZAgEmMEEEE  EEEREL BT
granted. Their value is appraised at the grant date and excludes ity 7 Bk B 1 o] AR 75 % 3E 11 35 2= IR B BB (R 14
the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting (Blgn - 2R RIEEERER) NTE -

conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth targets).

RREBRBRAF 241
2020 3R (B ZE2020F12H31H L hfER)



The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants of the
Share Option Scheme include full-time employees (including
directors), consultants, agents and advisors of the Group. The
Share Option Scheme is valid and effective until 8 September
2026.

As at 31 December 2020, the total number of shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme was 694,495,413
(31 March 2020: 694,495,413), representing approximately
7.77% (31 March 2020: 7.77%) of the issued share capital
of the Company. Without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders, the total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time, and the aggregate number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any individual
in any year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time.

No amount is payable on acceptance of an offer to grant an
option to subscribe for the shares of the Company granted
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme (the “Offer”). The Share
Option Scheme may be exercised at any time for a period of
ten years commencing from the date of acceptance of the
Offer, subject to the conditions imposed by the board of the
directors. The exercise price of the option shares would be at a
price equal to the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares
of the Company on the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of offer of the option; (ii) the average closing prices
of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer of the
options; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share option was granted, exercised or outstanding during
the 9 Months Reporting Period and the Previous Year.

RARHRE —EBEREE ([ERES
2 BEUASE OB AER 2 KINE
EEHER A BB HE - BREE 2
BERSHEREASB Z2BES (BIF
FE) FBRA RERER - BRETEIR
2026F9A8H Z R BB B K ERK -

72020F12 A318 - iR B AR #E 5T 2] 7] 2
172 1D Ha  5694,495,4130% (202043 A
31H :694,495,4138 ) + (5§ A" 2 B 722020
F12A31BE BEITRALT.77% (202043
A318:7.77%) - A B ARG IR EE Lt
o IRBRE S TRECBRES R
R BB BHEBAR RN EMERED &
TTR%AD 2 10% » 1 AT A7) 47 & 1] ) (£ a] & Bl
ATEEZBRES R ZBROBETSE
BARNBNEMEHE ZEITRD Z21% ©

BEARBBERES SR L TRBARABRN
ZEBECED ([2H)) BAMNKIEA-
BRI AN A RMBELN B ERB105F
AERRRTE HEAZXRRESSEMZ
i - R 2 ITEBRAFN T2
BeE: (WEOBEREZ BBIHMEHE®
BRAIARRBRD 2 WHE: (NEEFRH
BBt 2 B RTS AR 5 B B 52 B P @ AR 1 &)
Betn 2 FH W E ¢ R (i o m{E -

BERELTERTHRAEAZTEREHNBR
RELERBEZHER -

RAREME A HIF LB EFE - HER L
TR M AR T (] R A e
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fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

42 .EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT

SCHEMES

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of retirement benefits schemes operated by the PRC
government. The relevant PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute defined percentages, ranging from 12% to 25%,
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits in compliance with the applicable regulations of the
PRC.

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees
in Hong Kong under the rules and regulations of the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of the
relevant payroll costs or capped at HKD1,500 (for the Previous
Year: HKD1,500) per month per employee to the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme in Hong Kong, which contribution
is matched by employees. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the
specified contributions under the respective schemes above.

Due to the impact of an outbreak of COVID-19, a number
of policies including the relief of social insurance have been
promulgated by the PRC government since February 2020 to
expedite resumption of economic activities, which contributed
to the relief of certain defined contribution plans during 9
Months Reporting Period.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of approximately
RMB3,924,000 (for the Previous Year: RMB14,547,000)
represents contributions paid or payable to these schemes by
the Group for the 9 Months Reporting Period. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in the
future years at 31 December 2020 and 31 March 2020.

42 & B R IKERIET S

RARRABEMEARZEETIFBRBFZ
EREFEKE - AEFBENER AN
TEXAZEEBRED L (N T12%=E25% )
RERAREMAEEZUAFT AP R Z @A A
e

AEBAMBREERIMEABRSEER
HMAIRERETZEERBE B RER A
BertéE el fEEAEEEEY AT
B HEFANESEAEE AEERET
HEEZERBERIEX AR BRESEIE
H5%sk IR ABE1,5000 (RBEFE:
VE1,5007T ) 38 - & B IR/E R AR R L )4
Ko RNEBZE—FEHABBES Lzt EIm
RIREFFFEIEL B EH—R -

209K MERBBYE FEBMA
20202 A B A M it = R R %2 F £ B
R LMBEAOE R ENE R BRN AR EME
BHEETREERRGTE 2 HERERE -

RIE=ER 2 F SRR AR%3,924,000
T (RBEFE: ARE14,547,0000T) ¥
REBZEAREIEABEAAEE MZETE
Bk 2 5K R2020F 12 A31H &
20203 A318 ' HER W 2 BT AR
BB AR R FE R 2 e

TRERBRAA
2020F (B E2020F12831HLEAEA)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FMEMBERRME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

43.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS ABEHEBEEALTZRS
Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial B RS ISR R M E D T EE N A&
statements, the Group entered into the following transactions SEEMBATRFRNET L IR S :

with related parties during the period/year:

Nine months

ended Year ended

31 December 31 March
2020 2020
220205 B Z=2020%F
12A31H 1t 3H31H It
9fE A FE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETTT

Transportation expenses to Yunnan Jiehua A1 & f#{L 2 {1 iE 85 & B 2,914 5,542
Sale of cylinder gas to a subsidiary of mMEMB N —FHRBAGHEE

Yunnan Jiehua T EE PR 449 415
Interest income from Yunnan Jiehua SRR EMWA 665 665
Purchase of cylinder gas from BEIAEEBRERR

Southwest Panva 4,696 8,512
Purchase of cylinder gas from Yunnan Panva B ZEr & L FRERERE 389 307
Sale of cylinder gas to Qiannan Civigas MEEFTRHEEEENR 247 674
Purchase of natural gas from BREFRE RARKR D B R A A

Shaanxi Provincial HERAR (MFE1)

Natural Gas Co., Ltd.* (Note 1) 79,172 133,533
Purchase of gas from Xianyang Haihui BRI EEFERERA

New Energy Co., Ltd.* (Note 2) FEEME (MEE2) 4,752 4,729
Sale of gas to Xianyang Haihui M) X k5 8 FE T RE R B TR A 7]

New Energy Co., Ltd. (Note 2) SHE MR (FzE2) 22,223 26,573
Purchase of cylinder gas from Yunnan Jiehua B =B ZERMAZEGR QA

Clean Energy Development Co., Ltd.* HERENRE (E3)

(Note 3) 10,778 =

*  For identification purpose only

ERs
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fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

43.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

The above transactions were made on terms mutually agreed
between both parties.

Notes:

1. Shaanxi Provincial Natural Gas Co., Ltd. is also a connected
person of the Company by holding 40% equity interests in Xi'an
Civigas Co., Ltd. (“Xi'an Civigas"”), a subsidiary of the Company.

2. Xianyang Haihui New Energy Co., Ltd. is also a connected person
of the Company by holding 49% equity interests in Xi‘an Civigas
Haihui New Energy Co., Ltd. (“Xi'an Haihui"), a subsidiary of the
Company.

3. Yunnan Jiehua Clean Energy Development Co., Ltd. is also a
connected person of the Company by holding 49% equity
interests in Yunnan Jiehua.

Compensation of key management personnel

The directors of the Company considered they are the sole
management personnel of the Group, and their remuneration
during the period/year is disclosed in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report. The
remuneration of the directors of the Company is determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to the performance
of individual and market trends.

44 .OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessor

The Group leased its investment properties, as set out in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report under operating lease arrangements with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from 2 to 5 years at fixed rental.
Net property rental income earned during the 9 Months
Reporting Period was approximately RMB3,740,000 (for the
Previous Year: RMB4,730,000) with minimal outgoings. The
terms of the leases generally also require the tenants to pay
security deposits.

43.

44

EHEBREALTZRS @
B L% 5 TR S G 2 AT -

P & -

1. BRABRARBOHERARFERRBMN
BRAAZPRMBRERAAF ([BELF
R1)Z40% B Az AR RE 2B E
Ao

2. REBEHMERERARFAALTRE
EHEERARAR ([AREE] RNRFZ
MEARR) 249% B AR MAKRAFR
FEAL

3. EEBRCBERERHAEARARAKEESE
fRIC249% Rk - AUt RARRREAL

TEEEAESME

ARREERRRE/AEEE —HNEE
AB BERFAZHMERAFRIEEME
BRMENARE - ARAREZZH WA H
MEZEEeRBENALZRERTHBES
BE-

MEMERIE
AEBAER AN

MARFRERA VSRR MF18FTH A%
ERECLHELHNEEHS HBERER
BEYE CRANGHEFHA2ESF -RA
Ao A BEBRE Z MERSF WA BL
AR #3,740,000t (RBAFE: AR
4,730,0007T) ' MHEE D 2L - AE KR
—BNMERBRARIREFILRS -

PREBRERAR
2020F 3R (B E2020F12A31HLEAER)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FMEMBERRME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

44 .OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 44 &= 50 E&IE «»
(Continued)
The Group as lessor (Continued) AEBERHBAA(E)
Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows: HERE X ERERNKET :
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
i i
2020%12H31H 202063A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETTT

Within one year —FR 2,614 4,455
In the second year B 2,872 1,328
In the third year B 826 904
In the fourth year EJutkes 747 606
In the fifth year FRF 84 442
7,143 7,735
;m -
45.CAPITAL AND OTHER 45 B 7R K H A5 4E
COMMITMENTS
Capital and other expenditure contracted for but not provided ERINERARGEVBREIBEEBE CER
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of: R EAth f X%
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
» i
202012H31H 2020%F3H31H
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETT

Carrying amount of: AT & 18 2 BRTE{E
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB Mk 19,921 28,100
Right-of-use assets FRESE 11 6,640

19,932 34,740
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46.PLEDGE OF ASSETS 16. EERHNEERH
The Group pledged certain assets to banks to secure certain AEEERBTEFETEEUREAE
bank borrowings of the Group. Carrying amounts of the assets BvETRITIEE BERFEEZREAR
pledged were as follows: Ik

At At

31 December 31 March

2020 2020

2020%12H31H 202043H31H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETTT

Property, plant and equipment W HE KR E 87,661 209,166
Investment properties WEME 6,200 11,300
Right-of-use assets PREEE 2,807 12,709
96,668 233,175
Restrictions on assets BEERS
In addition, lease liabilities of approximately RMB24,731,000 SN - FA2020F 12 A31H - EERBEEAE
(31 March 2020: RMB27,903,000) are recognised with related #) AN %24,731,0007T (20203318 :
right-of-use assets of approximately RMB28,805,000 (31 AR #27,903,0007T) RAEFAEREEELN
March 2020: RMB30,579,000) as at 31 December 2020. The AR #28,805,0007T (2020F3 A31H : A
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the [R#30,579,0007T) -BRHHA A B ENHE
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor BEFHNERERIN  HE WD MEINER
and the relevant leased assets may not be used as security for HEm2Zw WA EHEHAEEERNABIES
borrowing purposes. EmER-
47 .CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 47 (AR EE
On 29 September 2019, Beijing Civigas Co., Ltd. ("Beijing RR2019F9A29R St R RMAAR DA BEED
Civigas") together with the joint venture partner entered (TR R ERABLEBHE MR N
into a guarantee agreement with a bank, whereby Beijing THIRBEAR BRHIEFRPFREEELE I
Civigas and the joint venture partner have agreed to provide EHRAEREBRLAMRITARTAE I8
a joint and several corporate guarantee, on proportion of BEEPERELZA ERBERA) AR
their shareholdings, in favor of the bank for the facility line of 150,000,000t EFHFEEEL EFT R FEE
RMB150,000,000 granted to Fujian An Ran (as borrower), a joint BR R G 2FBHRAAFHEA2019
venture of the Group. Details of this transaction are set out in FI9HA30B 2R e

the Company’s announcement dated 30 September 2019.

Up to 31 December 2020, Fujian An Ran has drawn approximately HZE2020F 128318 BELZABRIY
RMB90,000,000 (31 March 2020: RMB80,000,000) of the facility A R #90,000,0007T (20203 A31H : A
line. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value R #80,000,0007T) M B ERE/E - N A R E
of the financial guarantee contracts of the Group are insignificant ERAE KERBBRELREN 2R -
at initial recognition after taking into consideration the possibility REBTBEREGR AR BERVIAER
of the default of Fujian An Ran. Accordingly, no value has been BrEUEE T A o B - 4R A B B 3R 3R i
recognised in the consolidated financial statements. TR EE -
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= \ O
48.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL A48. 78N \) Z B AR R ¥R &=
Statement of financial position of the Company at the end of RRARRBEHAR 2 BERR BRI
the reporting period includes:
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
2020%F12H31H 2020%3H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBT AREF T
Non-current assets IERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB Mkt 12 43
Right-of-use assets FAEEE 89 426
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZIZE 772,865 772,866
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E ] 55,488 57,283
828,454 830,618
Current assets mENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries [N ENGIE s 96 75
Other receivables and prepayments A 8 WGRIA K TR FOR 693 660
Bank balances and cash RITEHRERE 12,310 5,210
13,099 5,945
Current liabilities ViEI =R
Other payables H th & 1~ RIB 1,379 3,150
Lease liabilities HEAE 43 376
1,422 3,526
Net current assets mEEEFE 11,677 2,419
Total assets less current liabilities BEERMDERE 840,131 833,037
Capital and reserves B A R 5
Share capital (note 35) AR A (B 5E35) 564,507 564,507
Reserves 1 275,608 268,506
Total equity HrE R 840,115 833,013
Non-current liability FEmBEAR
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 24
840,131 833,037
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= \ o3
48 .STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 48.7K X |) 22 B B AR 5 Ak
POSITION OF THE COMPANY ()
(Continued)
Note: B 5
The following table sets out the components of the reserves of the TEREHNARRIFBHEZ AR D RERAEFE R
Company and the movements thereof during the current period and BAFE2E8-
prior years.
Deemed
Share  Contributed  contribution Capital  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve  contribution losses Total
RRE BABH RIETERB ENES 2 ER )
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT AR¥EFTRT ARETRT ARBTT ARETRT  AR%Txn

At 1 April 2019 R2019F4R1R 1,003,995 104,932 26,628 1,121 (874,566) 268,710

Loss and total comprehensive AFEEEREZES HE
expense for the year ® - - - - (204) (204)

At 31 March 2020 7202034317 1,003,995 104,932 26,628 1,121 (874,770) 268,506

Profit and total comprehensive 7% % 7l I 2 B W28

income for the period ek - - = = 7,102 7,102
At 31 December 2020 ©2020612A31H 1,003,995 104,932 26,628 7,721 (867,668) 275,608
The contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal MABBIEAATEZRTRMEAERED I
value of the Company's shares issued and the value of net assets EEENE AR EE SE = - BiER
of the underlying subsidiaries acquired. Under the Companies Act 21981 E RN FE (KB AEIENLT
1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may not declare or pay R T] LA A B 84S R ok R 1 AR & 5% =
a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if there EH SR A T W EEI?E{'E(D’D\ETJ‘E’\\?)EH =

are reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the company is, or would DA e e N 1 oty ey AR 5
Sl e S REAER NGIK
after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; R A REARBE R EIMETS : R(NARA

@ & YA = . =
(i) the realisable value of the company’s assets would thereby be less EZARRESEEIREAR BRITR

. . g . . . N (N L B EH o
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share A B Bt i (B B 2 4B 6B
premium account.

=
Io
v
<
15
=
('S
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49.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 19. X EM B A7
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 72020512 4310 Kk202063H318 - R
December 2020 and 31 March 2020 are as follows: REIZEEWMBRARGFBLOT
Place of
incorporation/ Capital contributed Held by the Company Held by the Company
Name of company?* establishment by the Group Group effective interest directly indirectly Principal activities
ARAE" HAL/
AUbY AREEE rEERRER RELAERER HALAEREE  IERE
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020

WNENANE 020E3/318  NNENENE 2000E38318 WNFRENE  2020E3831H

IRER PRC USD60,000,000 100% 100% 100% 100% - - Investment holdings
(Bejng Civigas) hE 60,000,000% 70 RERR
m) R R AL ERAT PRC RIB300,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holdings
(Sichuan Civigas Investment Co,, Ltd) Bl AR300,0000007 FERR
TrRREERRERAR PRC RMB152,222,200 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holdings
(Bejing Zhongmin Tongjin Gas e ARHE152,222,001 REER

(o, Ltd)
REPRMAMERRAT PRC RMB100,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holdings
(Tianjin Civigas Technology Co, Ltd) ARH100,000,0007 REER
FRAREFEMEHERARDA PRC RMBT6,100,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holdings
(Bejing Zhongrmin Ruojia Super i ARE76,100,0007 RERK

Market Chain Management

Limited)
HnRMEARAT PRC RMB20,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Piped gas transmission and distrbution
(Yanting Civigas Co, Ltd.) EF AE%20,000,0007 EfclibEry
RIMRREARAA PRC RMB70,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Piped gas transmission and distribution
(Mianzhu Civigas Co,, Ltd) i ARE70,000,0007 EBNREE
BUMERMRZEEREALT  PRC RMB15,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Piped gas transmission and distrbution
{Mianzhu City Long Teng Gas i AR 15,000,0007 EBHREE

Installation Co, Ltd.)
BHTERRARARARA PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Piped gas transmission and distribution
(Mian Zhu City Han Wang Natural 8 AR 10,000,007 EBHREE

Gas Co,, Ltd)
FNErRERERAR PRC RMB16,762,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Piped gas transmission and distribution
(Beichuan County Cvigas Co, Ltd) &l AE%16,762,00070 EBHREE
ERTRAAARAA PRC RMB44,080,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Piped gas transmission and distrbution
(Chongging Civigas Co, Lt i AR %44,080,00070 EEHREE
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49.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 9. FEM B QT )
Place of
incorporation/  Capital contributed Held by the Company Held by the Company
Name of company** establishment by the Group Group effective interest directly indirectly Principal activities
ARAE" #AL/
RI%E AEEEE AEMERER BALRERKE BAAEERRE E3:54
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020

WNENAE 200838318 20FNENE 2000838318 N0FNA3E  2000E3A31H

EERRERIEMRARAE  PRC RVIB2,000,000 51% 51% - - 51% 51%  Piped gas transmission and distribution
(Chongging Civigas Fugiang e ABR#2,000,0007 EENARE
Industrial Gas Co, Ltd.)
EERRAGEGMRARAT  PRC RIB1,000,000 51% 51% - - 51% 51%  Piped gas transmission and distribution
(Chongging Civigas Xiangyang L ABRH1,000,0007 EENARE
Compressed Gas Co., Ltd)
BTERRNRARLR PRC RMB10,000,000 60% 60% - - 60% 60%  Piped gas transmission and distribution
(Fuping Civigas Co,, Lt L ARE10,000,0007 EENARE
AZHR PRC RMB62,080,000 51% 51% - - 51% 51%  Piped gas transmission and distribution
(X'an Chigs e ARH62,080,000% BENTEE
EMEERETRMABRELAA PRC RMB20,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Piped gas transmission and distrbution
(Guizhou Province Zhenfeng County R AR 20,000,007 EERRER
Ping'an Gas Co,, Ltd)
AZHE PRC RMB5,000,000 51% 51% - - 51% 51%  Gas distribution
(Xi'an Haihui) HE ARHS,000,0007 ik
HERRRAERAA PRC RMB26,000,000 55% 55% - - 5% 55%  Cylinder gas supply
(Hunan Civigas Co,, Ltd,) +E AR 26,000,000 EXMALE
(TR
(“Hunan Civigas")
ks
HRRRARARAT PRC RMB10,000,000 28.05% 28.05% - - 28.05% 28.05%  Cyiinder gas supply § :
(Xupu Civigas Co, Ltd k] AB10,000,0007 ERMALE =
(THAERR])
(*Xupu Civigas")
ERHR PRC RMB66,260,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Cylinder gas supply
(Yunnan Civigas) HE B %66,260,0007 EXRRLE
AERRAAARAA PRC RMB10,000,000 51% 51% - - 51% 100%  Cylinder gas supply
(Baise Civigas Co, Ltd) hE AE#10,000,0007 ERMALE
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49.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 9. EEMBRA
Place of
incorporation/  Capital contributed Held by the Company Held by the Company
Name of company*# establishment by the Group Group effective interest directly indirectly Principal activities
ARAE #AL/
RULE AEMEE AEEERER HAARERKE HALEEENE E3:54
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020

WNENA3E 2020838318 20FNENE 2000838318 N0ENAE  200083A31H

ERHRMEARAA PRC RMB12,353,000 51% 51% - - 51% 51%  Cylinder gas supply
(Guangdong Civigas Co,, Ltd) e ARE12,353,0007 BXNRLE
REHGHIRIRHERRAT  PRC RIB6, 640,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Cylinder gas supply
(Tianjin Ji County Civigas Co,, Ltd) &} 6,640,000 ERMALE
AEBBHERREENRERAT PRC RMB16,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Cylinder gas supply
(Tianjin Binhai New Distrct Civigas B 16,000,007 EERRLE

(o, td)

A RMEARAA PRC RMB13,925,483 60% 60% - - 60% 60%  Cylinder gas supply
(Hebei Civigas Co,, Ltd) hE ARE13925,48370 ERMALE
AEPRIRERAA PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Cylinder gas supply
(Henan Civigas Co, Lt +E ARE10,000,0007 EXMALE
ENtRIRERAR PRC RMB76,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100% ~ Cylinder gas supply
(Guizhou Civigas Co,, Ltd.) hE AE&76,000,0007 EXMALE
RERRMEARAT PRC RMBS,000,000 60% 60% - - 60% 60%  Cylinder gas supply
(Changshun Civigas Co,, Ltd) hE ARH5,000,0007 BRMAMLE
ERPRBENAARAT PRC RMB25,700,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Cylinder gas supply
(Chongging Civigas Lianua) e ARE25,700,0007 BXNRMLE
ERTRIAERRERAT PRC RMB300,000 51% 51% - - 51% 51%  Cylinder gas supply
(Chongging Xian dan lu Gas Co, AR#300,0007 EXNRLE
(td)

RERRERKRARAR PRC RMB32,500,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  FMCG and food ingrediient supply
(Tianjin Civigas Heng'an Gas Co, ARE32,500,0007 RIEENES
(td)

REMEREENMBERAD  PRC RMB3,010,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  FMCG and food ingredient supply
(Tianjin Yun Ze De Biotechnology 6l ARH3010,0007 RIEENES
(td)
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49.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 9. FEM B QT )
Place of
incorporation/  Capital contributed Held by the Company Held by the Company
Name of company** establishment by the Group Group effective interest directly indirectly Principal activities
ARAE" #AL/
RI%E AEEEE AREERER BALRERKE BAAEERRE E3:54
31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020

WNENAE 200838318 20FNENE 2000838318 N0FNA3E  2000E3A31H

ERRAFETEREREARA  PRC RMBS5,000,000 80% 80% - - 80% 80%  FMCG and food ingreciient supply
(Chongqing Yubaijia Supermarket & ABR55,000,0007 RIEENER
Chainstore Co, Ltd.)

EREREENAREENRERR MC RMB10,000,000 80% 80% - - 80% 80%  FMCG and food ingredient supply
REFAR e ARE10,000,0007 RIREAES

(Chongging Grain Group Yubajia
Agricultural Technology
Development Co,, Ltd.)

ERMREEMTIAARERAR PRC RMB1,789,390 80% 80% - - 80% 80%  FMCG and food ingrecient supply
(Chongging Keweija Logistics HE ARH1,7893907 RHHENES
Distribution Co, Ltd)

ERETEAARAR PRC RMB10,000,000 80% 80% - - 80% 80%  FMCG and food ingredient supply
(Chongging Huiguan Trading Co,, Bl AEE10,000,0007 RNREAES

td)
ERPRERMERERERAT  MC RMB10,000,000 53.50% 53.50% - - 53.50% 53.50%  FMCG and food ingredient supply
(Chongging Zhongmin Ruojia Supply &1 ARE10,0000007 RNHENES

Chain Management Co, Ltd.)

R PRC RMB20,000,000 51% note - - 51% note  Cylinder gas supply
(Yunnan jiehua) e AR 20,000,007 Mt fid EXBRELE

B
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49 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 49. E;Bﬁ% a) (&)

Wholly foreign-owned enterprises registered in the PRC.

“” Xupu Civigas is a 51% subsidiary of Hunan Civigas. As a result,
the total effective interest held by the Group in Xupu Civigas is
28.05%.

b English translated names are for identification only.

Note:

Yunnan Jiehua was a joint venture of the Group with 51% equity
interest as at 31 March 2020. During the period, Yunnan lJiehua
became a subsidiary of the Group, the details of which are set out in
note 40(a) (v) to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during
the period/year and at the end of both period/year.

All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in their
respective place of incorporation/establishment.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or net assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.
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50.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY SO.EBERFERER 2
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE FEERBHE L EF
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING ]
INTERESTS
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TRINTHEBERNFERE R 2 NEB3E
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling 2EHEBMB QRS :
interests:
Place of incorporation Proportion of ownership
and principal place of interests and voting rights Profit (loss) attributable to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary business held by non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
RLIAR L FERBRREZHER
WEAREH IEERBY BRRRRELA FREREREGEN (KR it FERER
Nine months
ended Year ended
At At 31 December 31 March At At
31 December 31 March 2020 2020 31 December 31 March
2020 2020 BE200% HE2000E 2020 2020
#2020% 720204 1283181 3A31ALE #2020 #2020
128318 3A31R 9f A 5 128318 38318
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TR NS AE®TR ARETT

Hunan Civigas PRC

HERR ﬁF 45% 45% 9,092 17312 20,136 27,878

Xi‘an Civigas PRC

BZHR B 49% 49% 11,219 10,757 97,038 90,658

Xupu Civigas PRC 0
HERR ki 71.95% 71.95% 8,194 10,312 19,372 21,251 s
Yunnan Jiehua PRC =
ZHRL B 49% N/A 1,907 N/A 26,420 N/A

Individually immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interests

HREERER  BUFEANBAR 6,323 (4,489) 73,121 67,994

36,795 33,892 236,087 207,781
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50.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY SO.EBERFERER Z
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE #%:ﬂzﬁﬁﬁmﬁz\ GE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING 1% )
|NTERESTS (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the BEERFERES S AEBMEBA
Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests Zﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂﬁgﬁﬂﬁlﬂ?°—|—§|Jﬁ7ﬁ‘%§ﬂ$ﬁﬁ
is set out below. The summarised financial information below EEEENARFEEIEA 225
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.
(i) #WEHER
(i) Hunan Civigas
At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
2020%12H31H 202043AH31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company

Non-controlling interests
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mEBEE 30,287 48,953
FERBEE 46,642 46,711
mEBRE (31,427) (33,046)
FRBAMB (756) (667)
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50.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY SO.EBBARFERER 2
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE F2ERBMBAAF
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING 15 (&)
|NTERESTS (Continued)

(i) Hunan Civigas (Continued) (i) HEPR(E)
Nine months
ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
H%2020% HZE2020F
12A31H 1t 3A31H Ik
ofEl A FE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARKETE

Revenue PN 67,605 151,038
Expenses 53 (47,400) (112,567)
Profit for the period/year KNEAR S F 20,205 38,471

Total comprehensive income attributable  ANAF S AJE(L 2 2 E IS AEE

to owners of the Company 9,789 20,351
Total comprehensive income attributable JE#ZEAX#E z fE (L 2 2 T = 258
to the non-controlling interests 8,009 16,651
Total comprehensive income N FEE2ER AR
for the period/year 17,798 37,002
ks
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests i F JE4% I i 25 2 B B 15,750 21,600 é :
.uE_
Net cash generated from operating KEXEBEE RS FE
activities 15,763 16,926
Net cash generated from investing REEHEEZREFHE
activities 12,370 8,487
Net cash used in to financing activities B EEBTA 2R & F5E (35,000) (48,000)
Net cash outflow RE&mt F58 (6,867) (22,587)
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50.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING

| NTE RESTS (Continued)

N

SO.EBERGFERER Z

15 )

I EEBEHNBER

Bl &

(ii) Xi'an Civigas (i) ARHFE

At At
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
2020%12H31H 2020%3H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREEF T
Current assets MEEE 150,914 108,607
Non-current assets ERBEE 202,104 195,139
Current liabilities MEBAE (153,440) (118,729)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (1,542) =

Equity attributable to owners of the RAEER AELER
Company 100,998 94,359
Non-controlling interests VIR == 97,038 90,658
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SO.EBERFERER Z
?i%ié%‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬁ%ﬁé
|8 @

50.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
|NTERESTS (Continued)
(i) Xi‘an Civigas (Continued) (i) AZHPE(E)

Nine months

ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
# 220205 EZ2020%F
128318 1t 3A31H1E
9fEl B FE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBTTT
Revenue YA 109,651 194,769
Expenses 53 (86,633) (172,816)
Profit for the period/year REARE RS A 23,018 21,953
Profit and total comprehensive income ~ ARA G A AFE(R 2 %5 &
attributable to owners of the Company 2 YR z5 4258 11,739 11,196
Profit and total comprehensive income — FE4% A% 4% 25 FE 1l 2 % 7 &%
attributable to the non-controlling 2HEWRERE
interests 11,279 10,757
28
Profit and total comprehensive income — ANHAfE, /[ amF &2 E RS L5 g =
for the period/year 23,018 21,953 s
=
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 1 5 FE4% A% 4 25 2 A B 4,900 4,900
Net cash generated from operating MEEBEE RS T
activities 82,324 30,446
Net cash used in investing activities REEHAA2REFHE (13,495) (15,743)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEEATA 2R E T8 (9,100) (11,800)
Net cash inflow BEeRAFE 59,729 2,903
PFRERERAA

20205 $R(FZE2020F12A31H L A@EA)
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= & B35 3 R0 5

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

50.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
|NTERESTS (Continued)

N

SO.EBERGFERER Z

FEERRME QA

15 )

(iii) Xupu Civigas (iii) BBEFE

At At

31 December 31 March

2020 2020

2020%12H31H 2020%3H31H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T AREEF T

Current assets MEEE 12,771 15,723
Non-current assets ERBEE 16,110 16,305
Current liabilities mEaE (1,958) (2,494)

Equity attributable to owners of the RAEER AEIERER

Company 7,551 8,283
Non-controlling interests JEVE IR == 19,372 21,251
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

SO.EBERFERER Z
?i%ié%‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬁ%ﬁé
|8 @

50.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
|NTERESTS (Continued)
(iii) Xupu Civigas (Continued) WERR (8&)

Nine months

(iii)

ended Year ended
31 December 31 March
2020 2020
#Z20205F HZ=2020%F
1283181t 3A3181E
9fE A FE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TR ARET T
Revenue WA 36,373 53,358
Expenses 53 (24,984) (39,026)
Profit for the period/year REARE RS A 11,389 14,332
Profit and total comprehensive income — ANRA A A A FE(E 2% T &
attributable to owners of the Company 2 YR z5 4258 3,195 4,020
Profit and total comprehensive income — FE4% A% 4% 25 FE 1l 2 % 7 &%
attributable to the non-controlling 2HEWRERE
interests 8,194 10,312
Profit and total comprehensive income — ANHAfE, /[ amF &2 E RS L5 '
for the period/year 11,389 14,332 s
=
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 1 5 FE4% A% 4 25 2 A B 10,073 16,656
Net cash generated from operating SRS EE RS FH
activities 10,238 15,466
Net cash used in investing activities REEHAA2REFHE (290) (658)
Net cash used in financing activities BEFEBMACH S FHE (14,000) (23,150)
Net cash outflow WE L FE (4,052) (8,342)
HRERERAT 61
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FMEMBERRME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

50.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY SO.EEBEREERER 2
OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE #%:’f%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING 15 (@)
|NTERESTS (Continued)

(iv) Yunnan Jiehua and its subsidiaries (ivy EERILELREHE QT
At
31 December
2020
n
2020%12H31H
RMB’000
AREFT
Current assets MEEE 54,314
Non-current assets IERBEE 25,843
Current liabilities mEAE (45,535)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (965)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ZNA BB A B HERS 7,237
Non-controlling interests FE5E R 2 26,420

262 Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
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fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

50.DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY

OWNED SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING

|NTERESTS (Continued)

(iv) Yunnan Jiehua and its subsidiaries (Continued)

SO.EBERFERER Z
?i%ié%‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬂﬁi
B ()

(iv) EmBLERENBLR (&)

Three months

ended
31 December 2020
HZE2020%F
12A31B 3@ A
RMB’000
AR®TR
Revenue WA 34,714
Expenses 53 (32,095)
Profit for the period N HA R 2,619
Profit and total comprehensive income RNRRHER ABAE 2% M &2 R E
attributable to owners of the Company paks) 712
Profit and total comprehensive income RS 2w ke E SRR
attributable to the non-controlling interests 1,907
Profit and total comprehensive income for the 7 B RS 3% 7| K2 & 1 M0 25 42 58
period 2,619
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests T IEERER 2 KRS -
Net cash used in operating activities REXBRAZE 2% (1,734)
Net cash used in investing activities BEEHMA 2R FE (38)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEETA 2R &5 (232)
Net cash outflow Rem bR (2,004)
HRERERA

20205 $R(FZE2020F12A31H L A@EA)
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The prior year’s consolidated financial statements of the
Group require restatements in relation to adjustments on
fair value change on equity instruments at FVTOCI, the
related deferred tax liabilities and carrying amounts of equity
instruments at FVTOCI. Prior to the application of HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments at 1 April 2018, the unquoted equity
investments were classified as available-for-sale (“AFS")
investments and measured at cost less impairment under HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. At
the date of initial application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, AFS
investments were reclassified to equity instruments at FVTOCI
and recognised at their fair values as at the date of transition
to HKFRS 9, of which the fair value gains relating to those
unquoted equity investments previously carried at cost less
impairment under HKAS 39 and the corresponding deferred
tax impact were adjusted to investment revaluation reserve,
deferred tax liabilities and non-controlling interests as at 1 April
2018. In addition, the impairment loss previously recognised
was transferred from retained earnings to investment
revaluation reserve at 1 April 2018.

One of the equity instruments at FVTOCI (the “Investment”),
being an investee which is principally engaged in the business
of manufacturing and sales of glass products in the PRC, had
been fully impaired many years prior to the initial application
of HKFRS 9. The full impairment loss could not be reversed
by adjusting the carrying amount of such equity investment
prior to the adoption of HKFRS 9 even though the investee’s
operations had improved substantially in the years following
when the full impairment loss was recognised by the Group.
Though provision for impairment was fully made on the
carrying amount of the Investment, it had never been written
off nor derecognised in the books and accounts of the relevant
subsidiary which holds the Investment in the previous years. At
the time of the initial application of HKFRS 9 and thereafter, the
Investment continued to be carried in the consolidated financial
statements at nil carrying amounts, instead of at its fair values
at the respective dates. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the nine-month period ended 31 December
2020, the Group has engaged an independent professional
valuer to carry out the valuations of the Investment at the end
of the reporting periods for the current and prior period/years.
Based on the valuation report, the fair values of the Investment
were approximately RMB125,311,000, RMB99,201,000 and
RMB94,083,000 as at 31 December 2020, 31 March 2020 and
1 April 2019 respectively. Accordingly, the Group has made
prior year adjustments to re-measure such fair values of the
Investment.

AEEBAFEZEAEVERREKRET
EREA AR B AEMEERS 2 ERT
B2 AR EED HEECEHEEBERER
hAEFAEBEERSECESZTAZE®
B2 A% -7P2018F4 A1 HEBEBYBER
EAER|EOS @ T AR - JELEMERT A
DEAERHEE ([AIHEE])KERIBE
BB EREIREM T A R RTE
R A B E o 2018FA R 1B E X
FERB B ISREERFESHE B Al H
ERBEHFHEERALEFAEMEE
Wz TE WIRERBEZEE BTG
MEERFSFBHZ AAERER  EPZ
LHBEREE BT ERFEIGRIEK A
BMEREBEYRZIELITERAZATIEEBZA
hEWERIEEEERIEFEE1K201854
R1BAZRAKREEHHFER BEERIEBEAE
FIEfE R #E # o AN - 7R20185F4 A 18 » 1B
FHAZREEEHRBANNEHEEZRE
EhEE-

BAREFAEMEE K2R TAEZ
—([&RE]) TERNFELEHEE
mEERBEEZREHR EREXERS
7B 7S SR HE B B 05k A B BB BHGT IR BB ©
IR E B B S RS R 95 Al - W RSB
BT L IR B 2 BR TE (B /5 18 7 [0 2R EUR
BEEE MEREHRERBERERIBZ
BEFEEZIEERNEEZNES BERER
HERRENIRABESE TR RS
E—ERAZFRENEBEWNE QTR RA
E IR B A& 5T MR 83 LEHERR - FELARTF
EEAEFEZHRENNRBXNERASEEY
TEIRE B FEOR 2 B N H 8 X IR B B 1%
TEREE MIEEENBEERZ AR ER
GRETBRERALR - RIEREZ2020F12A8
318 IENE A SR Z R P HRERE - A%
ECEEG T BE L EMAANEE MBE12
BRI, FEETZRENRERLRZ
HE - RIEMERSE  7R2020F128318
202053 A318 K2019F4 818  ZIWE 2
NAED B A ANRE125,311,0007T * A
R#99,201,0007T &2 A R #94,083,0007T °
At AEECERBEFEFARE  UEH
SAEREREZARE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBERERME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

51.PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (continuedy  51.3BF EE T (&)

Fair value of equity instruments at FVTOCI (Continued) RAOAESAHEMMEZEAKE2ERTIAEZ
D ARE(E)
As a result of the above adjustments, comparative figures have AR LM AR RETFE TE - Wt
been restated and summarised below. Line items that were not AR AR EikETE 2IBE WARBEE
affected by the above adjustments have not been included. Al e
For the year ended 31 March 2020 B E2020F3A31B LFE
()  Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other () #HEBEmkEMZEK=EE
Comprehensive Income
RMB’000
ARETR
Other comprehensive expense Ht 2 Mm%
Other comprehensive expense FREMPERFX  RER2 W
for the year, as previously reported (7,461)
Fair value change on equity instruments at BEARBEFAEMEENRG 2 AR EE
FVTOCI, net of tax B MRrTIA 4,350
Other comprehensive expense FREMEZEMS KET
for the year, as restated (3,111)
(i)  Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (i #FHAMBARREK
At 31 March 2020
M202053H31H
As previously
reported Adjustments As restated 218
5 5 B 2 4R Eil. CE LI ©
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 _E
— — — ('8
AR®TRT AR¥®TR AR®BTrR
Non-current assets FRBEE
Equity instruments at FVTOC| BARBERAEMEERSE  EETE 33,745 99,201 132,946
Non-current liabilities FnBaE
Deferred tax liabilities EERBAR (10,866) (14,880) (25,746)
Equity R
Investment revaluation reserve R EEEHFEE 12,536 78,790 91,326
Retained earnings REBF 510,525 5,531 516,056

FRERBRAT >4
2020 3R (B ZE2020F12H31H L hfER)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FMEMBERRME

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12831H 19 A

51.PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (continued)

Fair value of equity instruments at FVTOCI (Continued)

(ii)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

B s

At 1 April 2019
R20194H18
As previously

reported  Adjustments  As restated
RERT 2] A ZE5|
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTT ARETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BARBEAEMEHAKE 2
BETH 42,133 94,083 136,216
Non-current liabiliites FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERBEE (12,605) (14,112) (26,717)
Equity i
Investment revaluation reserve KEEHFEE 19,308 74,440 93,748
Retained earnings RE & T 347,194 5,531 352,725
Impairment loss previously recognised for the Investment ERIRZRERRZBEEESHRSE R

was transferred from retained earnings to investment
revaluation reserve. Accordingly, the retained earnings
as at 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2019 increased by
approximately RMB5,531,000.

The above prior year adjustments have had no impact on
the Group's profit and the basic and diluted earnings per
share for the Previous Year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

52.COMPARATIVE FIGURES

In addition to the prior year adjustments, certain other
comparative amounts have been adjusted and reclassified to
conform with the current year's presentation and disclosures
in respect of the change in the composition of reportable and
operating segments as disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report. The comparative
figures in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of financial
position, consolidated statement of changes in equity, and
disclosure notes have been restated.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

53.

(a)

Acquisition of It R REBFHFBRERGER A &
(Beijing Ye Lang Chu Fang Network Technology Co.,
Ltd*)

On 3 November 2020, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into equity transfer
agreement to acquire 89.41% equity interest in Jt &
REP BT 48 B AR D B BR 2 @ Beijing Ye Lang Chu
Fang Network Technology Co., Ltd* (("Ye Lang Chu
Fang”) formerly known as dbt 5 £ # #7 8 @ 45 B 3%
AR 7F) Beijing Zi Jing Xin Rui Network Technology
Co., Ltd*) (“Acquisition”) from the shareholders of Ye
Lang Chu Fang. Ye Lang Chu Fang was established in the
PRC with limited liability and principally engaged in the
information transmission, software and IT service and the
issued shares of which are quoted on the trading platform
operated by the NEEQ (stock code: 837863.NEEQ).
Before the Acquisition, another indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company acquired 10.59% equity
interest in Ye Lang Chu Fang in August 2020. As at 31
December 2020, the Acquisition had not been completed.
The 10.59% equity interest in Ye Lang Chu Fang held by
the Group at 31 December 2020 was classified as equity
instruments at FVTOCI. 40.33% equity interest in Ye Lang
Chu Fang under the Acquisition was completed in January
2021 and together with the 10.59% equity interest
already held by the Group as at year end date, the Group
obtained control in Ye Lang Chu Fang in January 2021.

*  For identification purpose only

EREF

52

53.

LT

BRBEFEREZIN ETHHERESHED
RABRREFIBRUTEERFERZRE
REDFAREE (NARFRER S B EHRK
M6 E) 2 2 MK E RaBa R E
E2EKRERR FEMBRARER KE
REEPHRLBEEMNETAZLBRBFES
5l] e

=+ /,

HwEHRSE

(@) WL EEBESEANRROER
AR

7R2020F 11 A3 - AR A —HEE#E
EEWNB AR M REE R H A
Bt RREEFHBEB G AR
AA ([EEBES] - g fsd KA
HRABEBIERO AR AR ) ZEEIK
ERESE Y 289.41 %% # ([WIBE
B ) - REBE A — KB
RIZBRRAE REEXEEEE
W M RITART BB #ETRMON
BEZFEENIZFFEE LHRE (K
Z= /5 :837863.NEEQ) R U EE =
B2 AARD—EEEEENB
A A B R2020F8 A W R BB BT 2
10.59% M # - }A20205E12 A31H - g
B8 ETH i R SEAK 0 7220209F 12 A31H
ANEEFTHRERBE S 210.59%#EE
PEARARBEFAEMEEKEZ
B TR - WEEEETRRBES
Z240.33% % #EE 7202161 H FEAK -
URERASEEHEZFLAHERAZ
10.59% M # 2021 F1 A A EEE
EX 1S 1R B BT bh 2 122 il 4

PREZEREBRDAF

20203 (BE2020F12A31BLLAER)
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The major assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the
date of acquisition were property, plant and equipment of
approximately RMB612,000, trade and other receivables
of approximately RMB3,578,000, bank balances and cash
of approximately RMB1,506,000, and trade and other
payables of approximately RMB1,167,000. The net assets
were approximately RMB4,550,000.

The net cash outflow on the acquisition was
approximately RMB651,000, being the cash consideration
paid for the acquisition of 40.33% equity interest of
approximately RMB2,157,000 and less the cash and cash
equivalents acquired of approximately RMB1,506,000.

The goodwill arising on acquisition of Ye Lang Chu
Fang would be approximately RMB158,000, being the
consideration plus non-controlling interest being 49.08%
share of net assets of Ye Lang Chu Fang and fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interest in Ye Lang Chu
Fang less the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired.

The goodwill arising on acquisition of Ye Lang Chu Fang
is determined on a provisional basis as the Group is in the
process of completing a valuation to assess the fair values
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
The provisional fair values recognised on acquisition as
shown above may be adjusted upon the completion of
the initial accounting for the business combination during
the measurement period, which shall not exceed one year
from the acquisition date.

Revenue and loss after tax of Ye Lang Chu Fang for the
9 Months Reporting Period amounted to approximately
RMB2,910,000 and RMB2,966,000 respectively.

*  For identification purpose only

EHH

RWERPEWREETEEENER
REGEAME BERIEHOARE
612,0007T « & 5 R E b FE B GRIELH A
R #3,578,0007T  iR1ITEHRRBE 24
AR #1,506,0007T M & 5 N E A e~
FIELAREET 167,0007T LA R & BE#
EAH AR4,550,0007T °

g 2 FREmE B AREE51,000
70 BIK B840.33% AR EE MR &K
BHARE2 157,00070H B IR S
MIREZEMEER L ARM1,506,000
=

WHERBENEL ZEEANARE
158,0007T * BNR B M0 FE#E Ak i == (FE
B RES BT & = 7F (H49.08% ) A &
ANEBERFTHRBEHREZ AR
B BREWBAHANEEFEZAR
fH o

H 7 7N 5% [ IE 42 b &Y fih AT U 8 T 281
BERAERBZARBEZKMA
B - AEERBREENEE 2HE
NEEEEBTF - EXATREER
BRZEE AL BN E2HMHER
BHUT e EETKRFLFE
KT 2B WS A e —F-

N5 25 O fE A HA RS 1R BB B 3 2 WA K B
HIZEED B A% ARYE2,910,0007T
& AR #2,966,0007T °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fReMBRERMNE

For The Nine Months Ended 31 December 2020 #HZ20205F12H31H1E9{@A

53.EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(Continued)

(b)

Acquisition of EESBEHFEXE R A7 (Chongqging
Jingtong Xiye Industrial Co., Ltd.*)

On 12 January 2021, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company namely EEEFE X AR A
Al (Chongging Xiye Industrial Co., Ltd.*, “Chongqing
Xiye"), EESBEHTEXBRAF (Chongqmg Jingtong
Xiye Industrial Co., Ltd.*) (“Target Company”) and
the sole shareholder of Target Company entered into
the capital injection agreement, pursuant to which
Chongging Xiye has conditionally agreed to contribute
RMB35,000,000 to the Target Company. Upon the
completion of the capital injection on 13 January 2021,
the Group holds 60.34% of the equity interests in the
Target Company which becomes an indirectly non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. The Target Company
was established on 22 December 2020 in the PRC with
limited liability and is principally engaged in property
investment and operation and other related business in
Chongging, the PRC. Details of the transactions are set
out in the announcements of the Company dated 12
January 2021, 15 January 2021 and 1 February 2021.

The assets acquired and liabilities recognised and
the net assets of Target Company before the capital
contribution by Chongging Xiye were other receivables of
RMB23,000,000, representing receivable from the other
shareholder of Target Company as capital contribution
which was settled by capital injection in the form of land
and buildings subsequent to 31 December 2020.

There is no related revenue, profit or loss (before and
after tax and exceptional items) recorded in the financial
information of the Target Company for the period from
the date of establishment (being 22 December 2020) to
31 December 2020.

*  For identification purpose only

Ead i)

53.5k & HA

(b)

BEIE (o)

WEEESBEFEXARAA

R2021F1 8128 AR el Z2EEEE
WBAREERETEXERAR([E
EEREY|) ZEE=BETETEERA
AI(BEEQARA])KREZERRZMH—
PRERFTIEERREG R B EERE
FEKEREMNBZAREEARE
35,000,0007T > 72202141 8138 =
B@zéﬁ%lﬁ{é REBEFEBEEZEAR
260.34%HE 25 ﬁaﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ
TZF‘W#%QW%@T RSNG|
AN2020E12 B22B AR EKRSI 2 A
BAR TERTEHEETHREYE
KEREBELERETCHEBES - BER
52 FBEHINAAE BEA20214F
18128 202141 H158 K&202142
B1BZ Ao

EFEFLEMBEEAFEKRENE
EMEERANAENRFEEAHEM
JE U 5% A R #23,000,0007T © A FE Uk
BRRRREARRA L ERE - 20204
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Five-Year Financial Summary

AFEMBEER

For the nine
months ended
31 December For the year ended 31 March
BE
12A31H
1EofE A BZE3A31BLEFE

2020 2020 2019 2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRI
(Restated)  (Restated)
(&E75)) (&E7))

RESULTS ES
Revenue WA 1,747,553 2,232,600 1,955,486 1,200,359 969,524
Profit before tax B 84 B s 168,758 242,165 238,931 256,617 207,352
Income tax expense FriSfif (24,057) (25,644) (23,227) (26,706) (32,284)
Profit for the period/year BIbE e K2 NBRFE

from discontinued operation i Al - - - = 53,433
Profit for the period/year RE % F 144,701 216,521 215,704 229,911 228,501
Profit for the period/year oG AERRE, FE A -

attributable to:

Owners of the Company VN/NGIEZZ DN 107,906 182,629 174,325 201,456 205,895

Non-controlling interests FEEIRE 36,795 33,892 41,379 28,455 22,606

144,701 216,521 215,704 229,911 228,501

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BEBE 3,536,600 3,255,315 3,093,284 2,635,760 2,357,158
Total liabilities BERE (710,314)  (594,923)  (603,305)  (427,685)  (531,045)
Net assets EEFE 2,826,286 2,660,392 2,489,979 2,208,075 1,826,113
Equity attributable to owners AREHEEAELER

of the Company 2,590,199 2,452,611 2,272,384 2,027,546 1,657,176
Non-controlling interests FEER R 236,087 207,781 217,595 180,529 168,937
Total equity B 2,826,286 2,660,392 2,489,979 2,208,075 1,826,113
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Principal Activities
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Cylinder Gas
i 5 R SR,

. %Iinder Gas Supply
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Gas Distribution
MR D8

FMCG and Food Ingredients Supply
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